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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Li Bao Ge Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively known as the
“Group”), | hereby present to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) the audited consolidated
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
together with the comparative figures for the corresponding
period in 2019 as set out below for their consideration. Unless
otherwise specified, terms used herein shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the Company’s prospectus
dated 24 June 2016 (the “Prospectus”).

Business Review

The operating environment of the catering industry was
continued to take a down turn in 2020 with the outbreak
of coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”). Many of our
operations were restricted due to the anti-infection measures
implemented in Hong Kong and China which further escalating
business pressure on the Group. During the year under
review, the Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately
HK$236.4 million (2019: approximately HK$352.9 million),
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 33.0%. Loss
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$39.8 million (2019: approximately HK$59.3
million in profits) during the year. For financial review, please
refer to the section “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report.

During the year under review, the Group generated revenue
primarily from Cantonese restaurants operating in Hong Kong
and Shenzhen. In view of the flourishing online catering market
in the PRC, the Group was striving to look for diversification
and exploring new business opportunities as well while
consolidating its own principal business. At the end of year
2019 and the beginning of year 2020, the Group announced
respectively that it successfully entered into cooperation
agreements with Shenzhen Freshippo Network Technology
Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Freshippo Network Technology Co.,
Ltd. (collectively, the “Freshippo”), the new retail flagships of
Alibaba Group, to work together on developing the enormous
online to offline (“O20”) catering market in the PRC by
launching a Li Bao Ge store-in-store on Freshippo platform
in Shenzhen and Shanghai, which enabled the Group to both
benefit from the huge consumer flow attracted by Freshippo
itself, and launch the O20 business on Freshippo platform.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRE @)

On the fast-growing Freshippo physical and online platforms,
the Group was able to launch a business diversification plan
and complement its own capital-intensive business model
featuring large-scale Cantonese restaurants by incorporating a
business model that featured asset-light O20 integrated light
meal catering. The first Li Bao Ge Freshippo store-in-store
(Nankang Store) opened in Longhua New District, Shenzhen
in the fourth quarter of 2019, turning a new chapter for Li Bao
Ge’s business diversification. As the collaboration between
the Group and Freshippo began at the end of year 2019, the
effectiveness of the new business model is expected to reveal
gradually in the future.

Future Outlook

The economic environment remains very uncertain this year
due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 in China and Hong
Kong since January 2020 creating a particularly severe impact
on the catering and retail industries. Amid this adversity, the
Group has been paying close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 and making efforts to prevent and control the
spread of the virus.

In an attempt to further expand the market with high spending
power and high growth in Mainland China, following the
access to the O20 market in Shenzhen and other cities in
the Greater Bay Area with the asset-light business model at
the end of year 2019, the Group announced the acquisition
of 70% of shares in Yaoliang (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd., the
brand owner and operator of Shanghai Sun Kau Kee, in early
2020. Shanghai Sun Kau Kee operates more than 30 stores-
in-stores on Shanghai Freshippo. These stores mainly sell
roasted meat. The acquisition was completed in July 2020,
it will both deepen the Group’s collaboration with Freshippo
and enable the Group, after moving into Shanghai’s catering
market, to further expand its business in East China and
increase the number of outlets in the first- and second-tier
cities in the PRC by using Shanghai as an access point to
generate a diverse source of revenue and establish a more
stable operating revenue base.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRE @)

The Group believes the economic outlook remains very
challenging in the short term, complicated with a tough
business environment for the catering industry. However, by
leveraging its ongoing innovation and reform programmes,
and with the strong assistance of Freshippo, the Group has
worked out a comprehensive strategy for its medium- and
long-term development. When external uncertainties are
eliminated, the Group’s business is expected to recovery
quickly and soar again. With the expected resumption of
full operation of the Group’s restaurants and the gradual
reopening of economy in Hong Kong and China, the Group
currently expects its financial performance in 2021 will
improve as compared to the same period in 2020.

Appreciation

| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all of our
business partners, staff, investors and customers for their
support. The Group will continue to work tirelessly to boost
the sustainable development of the overall business.

Chan Chun Kit
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

AEEHEEERMERBENRDALES
é &ﬁA%E’JZ‘“ f&i“‘EEE AT REED

$§%l€%¢§ﬁ§é‘)§¢tﬂi\ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁ%'
FHONBETHBARZERE  ARENEH
AEMRER  BARISR - BEELEE
ETEEEEE2MIMEES jiﬂé.i;‘%fu
REEEZR S ER  NEBERE R

—Eﬁﬁﬁﬁi‘ki‘%iﬁﬂﬁ?fgfviﬂﬁﬁﬁ
FEgE o

B

Tl RARLDEHAAEBBH BT -
BAENBEROIS AEBGRES N
T HBRBEBOAHELR -

R I 15¢
ETEERBTEE
HEE —E-_—F=H=+H

Li Bao Ge Group Limited Annual Report 2020 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENW LD

Business and Operational Review

The Group is a Chinese restaurant group recognised for
delivering Cantonese cuisine and Chinese banquet and dining
services.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group operated
five full-service restaurants in Hong Kong under the brand
name of “Star of Canton (F & &)” (including the Sheung
Wan Restaurant which was closed in February 2020), a Thai
cuisine restaurant in Hong Kong, which was opened in June
2019, under the brand name of “La Maison D’ Elephant (%
[£)” (the “Thai (Mongkok) Restaurant”) in a shopping mall in
Mongkok district, three full-service restaurants in Shenzhen,
the PRC under the brand name of “Star of Canton (%25 &))",
and twenty-five food counters in Shenzhen and Shanghai,
the PRC under the brand names of “Star of Canton (%] &
)’ and “Sun Kau Kee (¥TEA&2)”. The Group also operated
a Jingchuanhu cuisine restaurant in Hong Kong under the
brand name of “Beijing House (i & &)”. However, due to
continued unsatisfactory customer visit, and the unfavourable
market conditions, the Group ceased the operation of the
Sheung Wan Restaurant and the Beijing House Restaurant
in February 2020 to avoid further loss and make available
the occupied working capital for other operation needs
of the Group. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 3 March 2020. All of the Group’s
restaurants are strategically situated in landmark shopping
arcades or commercial complexes at prime locations. The
Group maintains a business philosophy of offering quality
food and services at reasonable prices in an elegant and
comfortable dining setting. All of the Group’s restaurants
target at mid-to-high end spending customers.

8 FBNEEERAR —S-SEEERS

EBEREEDRE
AEBR—RINBHEX(EE PAER
RERRS T ABREE2LEOFRER
M-

BE_ZT - F+_A=+—HIFE"
AEBELAER] mEREEB(BER=2ZEZ
TF_ALENLERBE) REELERR
REZERBOBEE UIKEIREELTE
RESTAERRGEE HEAHERE
RN (EA)BED (R=ZZ—-—NEAHA
) UIFER] mEEBRFBERYILE
“HERHEZERBHNBZE WA [FE ]
MR 2B R BRI £G4
E_+HERMEH ANEBTAITRER]
mEREBEE—BR)IEIOEE - A -
AR EREN G AR ARMWIEE » BTRRKE -
AEBR T -_TF_AYELRAEHE
REBRBENESE UWeBESTIEL I
BREMANEEESARNAEEEME
BETZ - BHFE B2HARRBEHAC
T _EF=-RA-HMAE - AEEMAR
T A SR RS I B Ak T BESE R AR BR W) S 5
LB HBENEESRAERNEAN - AEER
EREHITENAERIE NG EERE
HETREMERBOCEES ASEFA
BEEEHNPEEEERFPREERF -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
ERE W& DN @)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had:

In Hong Kong:

0)

(i)

four Chinese restaurants, which were located in Tsim
Sha Tsui (i.e. The One Restaurant), Causeway Bay (i.e.
the CWB Restaurant), Olympian City (i.e. the Olympian
Restaurant) and Kwun Tong (i.e. the Kwun Tong
Restaurant), respectively;

one Thai cuisine restaurant (i.e. the Thai (Mongkok)
Restaurant) located in Mongkok;

In Shenzhen, the PRC:

(i)

three Chinese restaurants, which were located in Futian
District (i.e. the Shenzhen Restaurant and the Shenzhen
One Avenue Restaurant) and Baoan District (i.e. the
Shenzhen Uniwalk Restaurant), respectively;

one small-scale Cantonese dim sum tea houses, which
was located in Luohu District (i.e. the Star of Canton Tea
House);

three food counters inside Shenzhen Freshippo stores;
and

In Shanghai, the PRC:

(V)

twenty-two food counters inside Shanghai Freshippo
stores.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE W& DN @)

In December 2019, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with Shenzhen Freshippo Network Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Freshippo”), a member of Alibaba
Group, which provides the Group to have access to the
PRC'’s growing food delivery and takeaway market through
the implementation of the online and offline innovative retail
model that integrates physical stores and e-commerce
platforms. Under the cooperation agreement with Shenzhen
Freshippo, the Company undertook to set up not less than
10 counters at Shenzhen Freshippo* (& 55 & 4 ) stores on
or before 15 December 2020. In January 2020, the Group
extended its cooperation with Alibaba Group by entering into
a cooperation agreement with Shanghai Freshippo Network
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Freshippo”), pursuant
to which the Group undertook to set up not less than 10
counters at Shanghai Freshippo stores on or before 31
December 2020. However, due to the impact of COVID-19,
the expansion plan has been delayed and three new counters
were opened during the year ended 31 December 2020.
The Group will continue to strengthen its cooperation with
Shenzhen Freshippo and Shanghai Freshippo and is expected
to open more food counters at Freshippo stores in 2021.

Furthermore, on 9 January 2020, the Group entered into an
equity transfer agreement to acquire 70% equity interest in a
target company which operates food counters selling roasted
meat and delicatessen under the brand names of “Sun Kau
Kee* (#TFA5E)” and “Chaojiangjun* (1% E)” through online
and offline stores at Freshippo in Shanghai, the PRC. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 9 January 2020
for further details. The acquisition was completed in July
2020.

The acquisition and cooperation with Freshippo together
further expand the Group’s presence in China. The Group
targets to evolve as one of the leading players in offering
quality roast meat and Cantonese delicacies in China online
and offline food catering market.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE W& DN @)

The Company will leverage Freshippo brand awareness and
high traffic to attract more young people, develop multi-
channel sales and penetrate the Chinese takeaway and
food delivery market efficiently. The cooperation enables the
Company to capture the huge opportunity in next generation
of online and offline retail catering market in China through
commodification of its highly regarded Cantonese dim sum
dishes and delicacies under the brand of “Star of Canton”.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
titled “Voluntary Announcement - Business Update” dated
16 December 2019 and titled “Discloseable Transaction in
relation to Acquisition of 70% Equity Interests in the Target
Company” and “Voluntary Announcement — Business
Update”) dated 9 January 2020.

Financial Review

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
total revenue of approximately HK$236.4 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 33.0% as compared to
approximately HK$352.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 mainly comprised the aggregate revenue of the six
Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong of approximately HK$71.7
million (2019: approximately HK$180.9 million), revenue
from the sales of food ingredients of approximately HK$0.2
million (2019: approximately HK$0.1 million), the revenue
of the Thai (Mongkok) Restaurant of approximately HK$7.6
million (2019: approximately HK$6.3 million), the revenue
of the three Chinese restaurants in Shenzhen, the PRC
of approximately HK$136.6 million (2019: approximately
HK$159.2 million), the revenue of the small scale dim sum
tea houses in Shenzhen, the PRC of approximately HK$0.7
million (2019: approximately HK$4.8 million), and the revenue
from Freshippo operation inside Shenzhen and Shanghai
Freshippo stores of approximately HK$19.6 million (newly
opened or acquired in 2020).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE W& DN @)

Excluding the revenue contributed by the Sheung Wan
Restaurant and the Beijing House Restaurant which were
ceased operation in February 2020, the aggregate revenue
of the Group’s four Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 December 2020 decreased by approximately
49.2% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2019.
On the other hand, the aggregate revenue of the Group’s two
Chinese restaurants in Shenzhen (excluding the Shenzhen
One Avenue Restaurant which was newly opened in
December 2019) decreased by approximately 29.1% over
the same period. The Directors consider such decrease in
revenue for both Hong Kong and Shenzhen regions was
mainly due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and suspension
of business in accordance with the anti-infection measures
implemented by the government. Furthermore, the social
unrest in Hong Kong which occurred in June 2019 and lasted
over year 2020 seriously affected the retail and catering
sectors in Hong Kong.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit (i.e. revenue minus cost of materials
consumed) amounted to approximately HK$137.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease
of approximately 39.3% from approximately HK$226.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was in line
with the decrease in revenue during the year. Nevertheless,
the Group’s overall gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 64.1% for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately 58.1% for the year ended 31 December
2020. Such decrease was mainly due to (i) the Group offered
more concessions to attract customers in view of the sluggish
economy and the negatively affected catering sector as
described above; and (i) increase in specific food cost, in
particular, the further increase in price of food ingredients
upon the outbreak of COVID-19, impacting the global food
production and logistics of ingredients, which resulted in an
overall decline in the Group’s gross profit margin for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expense was approximately HK$66.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately HK$95.0 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 30.3% as compared to 2019 which was mainly
due to the cessation of operations of two Chinese restaurants
in Hong Kong and one tea houses in Shenzhen during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Depreciation

Depreciation for the year ended 31 December 2020 included
approximately HK$43.8 million (2019: HK$47.2 million) in
respect of right-of-use assets in relation to the Group’s leased
properties.

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly include but not limited to expenses
incurred for the Group’s restaurant operation, consisting of
operating lease expenses, building management fee and air
conditioning charges, cleaning and laundry expenses, utility
expenses, service fees to temporary workers, advertising and
promotion. For the year ended 31 December 2020, other
expenses amounted to approximately HK$61.5 million (2019:
HK$89.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$27.9 million or 31.2% which was mainly due to the
combined effects of (i) the decrease of temporary workers
expenses by appropriately HK$11.4 million compare to 31
December 2019; (ii) the decrease of operating lease payments
by appropriately HK$11.6 million compare to 31 December
2019, which including the COVID-19 rent concession and
contingent rent for premises.
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Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Sheung Wan Restaurant and the Beijing House
Restaurant, which were managed by the same operating
subsidiary of the Group, continued to record unsatisfactory
financial performance since their commencement of operation
in 2015. In particular, the two restaurants recorded aggregate
operating losses for each of the years ended 31 December
2015 to 2019. As such, the Sheung Wan Restaurant and
the Beijing House Restaurant were provided impairment
loss on right-of-use assets amounting to approximately
HK$3.6 million and HK$18.2 million respectively in 2019.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Sheung Wan
Restaurant and the Beijing House Restaurant terminated the
remaining leases earlier and the remaining lease liabilities
were recognized as gain on early termination of lease, net of
HK$21.1 million.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2020 included
approximately HK$12.9 million (2019: HK$10.9 million) in
respect of interest expense on lease liabilities in relation to the
Group’s leased property, plant and equipment.
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Loss attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$39.8 million, whereas the Group recorded a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$59.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Such
loss-making position for the year ended 31 December 2020,
representing an improvement of financial performance by
approximately HK$19.5 million as compared to the last year,
was mainly due to the combined effects of (i) the decrease
in aggregate operating losses of the Group’s restaurant
operations in Hong Kong by approximately HK$25.5 million;
(i) the increase in aggregate operating loss of the Group’s
restaurant operations in Shenzhen, the PRC by appropriately
HK$16.3 million; and (iii) the record of gain on early
termination of lease, net of approximately HK$21.1 million in
respect of the Sheung Wan Restaurant and the Beijing House
Restaurant; (iv) the record of impairment losses on equipment
and right-of-use assets of approximately HK$5.0 million and
HK$13.5 million respectively in respect of the Group; (v) the
decrease of employee benefits expenses of approximately
HK$28.8 million for the two Chinese restaurants and one
tea house which ceased operation during the year; and (vi)
the increase of other income of approximately HK$19.9
million which mainly due to government subsidy related to
COVID-19.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
Capital Structure

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for its Shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to its Shareholders,
return capital to its Shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged during the
year ended 31 December 2020, was to maintain the gearing
ratio at an acceptable level.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were approximately HK$28.9 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$42.3 million as compared
with approximately HK$71.2 million as at 31 December
2019. The decrease was mainly due to acquisition of two
subsidiaries, namely Shanghai Zhijie Food Co., Ltd.* (_E/&&
HERMAMR A A and Yaoliang (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd.* (12
R (E®)BMRARR A, inthe PRC during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposits amounted to approximately HK$28.9
million, of which approximately HK$12.1 million and HK$16.8
million were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”), respectively.

Indebtedness and Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank borrowings
of approximately HK$20.0 million and HK$2.4 million, which
were all denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively, bearing
interest rates range from 2.75% to 3.65% per annum and
were guaranteed by The Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “HKSAR”), certain of the exiting and former
controlling shareholders, one of non-controlling shareholders
and third parties.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 40.0%, which is calculated based on the
interest-bearing debts (excluding lease liabilities) divided by
total equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31
December 2020 and multiplied by 100%. The Directors,
taking into account the nature and scale of operations and
capital structure of the Group, considered that the gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2020 was reasonable.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Most of the income and expenditures of the Group are
denominated in HK$ and RMB, which are the functional
currencies of the respective group entities. Although
HK$ is not pegged to RMB, the historical exchange rate
fluctuation on RMB was not significant during the year under
review. Thus, no significant exposure is expected on RMB
transactions and balances. Accordingly, the Group does not
have any material foreign exchange exposure. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had not used any
financial instruments for hedging purposes.

* For identification purpose only
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Securities in Issue

As at 31 December 2020, there were 1,000,000,000 ordinary
shares in issue. There was no movement in the issued share
capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020.

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition
or Disposal of Subsidiaries and Affiliated
Companies and Plans for Material Investment or
Capital Assets

On 9 January 2020, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement to acquire 70% equity interest in Yaoliang
(Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd.* (i R (_L/8) & m AR A 7)) which
operated food counters selling roasted meat and delicatessen
under the brand names of “Sun Kau Kee* (¥ #4 5¢)” and
“Chaojiangjun* (i #% )" through online and offline stores at
Freshippo in Shanghai, the PRC. The adjusted consideration
was approximately RMB21,387,000.

For details, please refer to the announcements titled
“Discloseable Transaction in relation to Acquisition of 70%
Equity Interests in the Target Company” and “Voluntary
Announcement — Business Update” dated 9 January 2020,
and Note 36(i) to the Financial Statements of this annual
report. The acquisition was completed on 22 July 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
acquired a 70% equity interest in Shanghai Zhijie Food
Co., Ltd.* £ EFE R M B R 2 Al. The acquisition was
completed on 12 August 2020. For details, please refer to
Note 36(i) to the Financial Statements of this annual report.

Saved as disclosed above, there was no significant
investment held, material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year ended
31 December 2020. Save as disclosed in this announcement,
there was no plan for material investment or capital assets as
at 31 December 2020.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group pledged its bank
deposits of approximately HK$11.0 million as securities for
the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately HK$7.4 million.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any charge
over its assets.

*  For identification purpose only
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Contingent Liabilities

On 31 December 2019, Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company received a
Writ of Summons together with an indorsement of claim dated
31 December 2019 issued in the High Court of the HKSAR
(the “Court Action”) by Foxhill Investments Limited as plaintiff
against Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited as defendant.
For details, please refer to the announcement tilted “Inside
Information — Litigation” dated 6 January 2020. A provision of
HK$3.5 million has been made in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
Company is currently seeking legal advice in respect of the
foregoing. The Company is of the view that the Court Action
did not and will not have any material adverse impact on the
ordinary operation and financial positions of the Group. To
the best knowledge of the Directors, no trial in relation to the
Court Action has been scheduled yet.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had approximately 683 employees as at 31
December 2020. The employee benefits expense, including
Directors’ emoluments, of the Group were approximately
HK$66.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$95.0 million).

The Directors and the senior management of the Company
(the “Senior Management”) receive compensation in the
form of salaries and discretionary bonuses with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and the performance of the Group. The Group regularly
reviews and determines the remuneration and compensation
package of the Directors and the Senior Management with
reference to, among other things, the market level of salaries
paid by comparable companies, the respective responsibilities
of the Directors and the Senior Management and the
performance of the Group.
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The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) reviews and determines the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Directors with reference to
their responsibilities, workload, the time devoted to the Group
and the performance of the Group. The Directors may also
receive options to be granted under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 16 June 2016. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, no share option was granted to
the relevant participants pursuant to such scheme.

Dividend

The Directors has resolved not to recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).

Prospects

The successful Listing and the Transfer of Listing marked
major milestones as well as new chapters of the Company.
Nevertheless, due to the uncertainties of the Hong Kong and
China economies and the outbreak of COVID-19 in Hong
Kong and China since January 2020 which seriously affected
the catering industry and is expected to continue throughout
2021, the Directors anticipate that the Group’s business will
face various challenges in the foreseeable future. The Group’s
key risk exposures and uncertainties are summarised as
follows:

(i) the Group’s future success relies heavily on its ability to
constantly offer menu items, creatively-designed banquet
and dining services based on changing market trends
and changing tastes, dietary habits, expectations and
other preferences of the Group’s target customers. As
such, significant costs to survey and research customer
trends and preferences and to develop and market
new menu items, banquet and dining services may
be required, this may place substantial burden on the
Group’s managerial and financial resources;

(i) the Group may fail to obtain leases of desirable
locations for new restaurants or renew existing leases
on commercially acceptable terms, and the aforesaid
potential failure would have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s business and future development;
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(i) the operation of the Group may be affected by the
price of the food ingredients, including the price of the
imported food ingredients which will be affected by the
fluctuating exchange rate;

(iv) there may be labour shortage in the future and
competition for qualified individuals in the food and
beverage industry may be intense;

(v) the Hong Kong and China economies may be further
worsened as a result of the unfavourable development
of the China-US trade war which would negatively affect
the consumption sentiments of the general public and
consequently the retail and catering sectors; and

(vi) the outbreak of COVID-19 in Hong Kong and China
since January 2020, which may become serious and
adversely affect the Group’s restaurant operations in the
year to come.

For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please
refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

Nonetheless, the management is optimistic that the Group
can succeed and enhance the Shareholders’ value in the
medium to long run, based on the years of experience of
the Senior Management in managing Chinese restaurant
business in Hong Kong and China and its business strategies
as detailed below.

The operations of the Group’s food counters inside Freshippo
stores which were newly opened in 2020, are expected to
be gradually put on track. These new food counters incurred
operating loss during the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Directors expect their financial performance would improve in
the near future.
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Going forward, the Group’s objective is to become a reputable
multi-brand restaurant group with a diverse customer base
in Hong Kong and the PRC to provide Chinese cuisines,
Chinese banquet and dining services for large-scale events,
as well as other non-Chinese cuisines. Although the Group
currently does not have specific plan for opening other non-
Chinese cuisine restaurants, given that it is the Group’s
business philosophy to offer quality food and services at
reasonable prices under an elegant and comfortable dining
environment, the Group would target to capture the mid-to-
high end spending customers when considering the opening
of any new non-Chinese cuisine restaurants in the future,
in order to maintain the Group’s positioning in the mid-to-
high end catering market. The Group will continue to utilise
its available resources to implement its business strategies,
namely, expansion in Hong Kong with its multi-brand strategy,
progressive expansion in the PRC market, continuing
promotion of brand image and recognition through marketing
initiatives, enhancement of existing restaurant facilities and
strengthening of staff training aiming to attract more new
customers.

Apart from traditional restaurant operations, the Group
entered into cooperation agreements with Shenzhen
Freshippo and Shanghai Freshippo of Alibaba Group in
December 2019 and January 2020 respectively, to set
up not less than 10 counters at Freshippo stores in the
respective regions, which provide the Group to access the
PRC'’s growing food delivery and takeaway market through
the implementation of the online and offline innovative retail
model that integrates physical stores and e-commerce
platforms. Please refer to the subsection headed “Business
and operational review” above for further details.

The Group will also consider the expansion of its catering
business into other types of cuisines and operation modes
when opportunities arise, taking into account the Group’s
available resources, with the aim to maximize the return to its
Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Effect of COVID-19

In view of the outbreak of COVID-19 in China and Hong
Kong since January 2020, the Group has been paying close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 and making
efforts to prevent and control the spread of the virus. As part
of the Group’s efforts to facilitate better prevention and control
of the virus and ensure the health and safety of its employees
and customers, the Group has been shortening the operation
hours of its restaurants in Hong Kong. Besides, the Hong
Kong Government order for restaurants to increase spacing
between tables and limit the number of customers further
hit consumer sentiment and escalated business pressure
on the Group. The Group’s restaurants in Hong Kong have
resumed limited operation in evening hours because of the
partial relaxation of the Hong Kong Government order since
late February 2021. As regard to the Group’s restaurants
and tea houses located in Shenzhen, China, operation was
suspended in light of temporary anti-infection measures
implemented by local government since the commencement
of Chinese New Year in late January 2020, and have resumed
limited operation in late March 2020.

Based on the above, the Group currently expects its financial
performance in 2021 will improve as compared to the same
period in 2020, which is due to the expected resumption
of full operation of the Group’s restaurants and the gradual
reopening of economy in Hong Kong and China.

The Group will closely monitor the market situation and the
development of the COVID-19, and will adjust its business
strategies to cater for the market trend and customer demand
in order to improve its financial performance going forward.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Use of proceeds from the Listing

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 30 June 2016 with net
proceeds received by the Company from the placing in the
amount of approximately HK$59.1 million after deducting
underwriting commissions and all related expenses.

As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds from the placing

tHFBREARAR

Apmm (TBHD R TR EXA
E+EIEH§ﬁ§<ﬁerEMirD R ER B 1
EMABEMERRAXRE  ARRWREREE
PGS RIERFEAS01AEB T °

R-ZE_ZTFE+_A=1t—H EEFRE

were applied as follows:

FTIRFEAR TR

Planned use of
proceeds as
stated in the

Prospectus from
the Listing Date

Actual use of
proceeds from
the Listing Date

up to up to
31 December 31 December
2018 2020
AR = A2 Bt
f_ b HEE B Ak
BEE-ZT— )\ EHEZZ-ZHF
+=—A=+—H +=ZA=+-—H
ﬁfr?%fé’\ i8I
u+ EJ = |§%¥\ Fﬁ ﬁ
HK$’OOO HK$’000
FHET FET
Progressive expansion in the BEAEERBETS
PRC market 48,000 48,000
Enhancement of existing restaurant RARBBIER
facilities 1,500 1,500
Enhancement of marketing and MBS HEEREE
promotions 3,000 3,000

The business objectives as stated in the Prospectus were
based on the best estimation of the future market conditions
made by the Group at the time of preparing the Prospectus.
The use of proceeds was applied in accordance with the
actual development of the market.

As at 31 December 2020, all of HK$59.1 million out of
the net proceeds from the Listing had been fully utilised in
accordance with the planned usage as detailed above while
approximately HK$6.6 million was used for the Group’s
working capital and general corporate purposes.

The Company applied the net proceeds in the manner as
stated in the Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Use of proceeds from the Rights Issue

The Company’s rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) was
completed on 17 December 2019 with net proceeds received
by the Company in the amount of approximately HK$45.8
million after deducting underwriting commissions and related
expenses. For details, please refer to the announcement titled
“Results of the Rights Issue on the Basis of One Rights Share

MR AERIERR

ARmEBR(HEKRDR=_FE-AE+_H
THERRK SN eHAS RARFAXE
ARABWER TSR FEA 468 A BB
TToHBERE2HBHR-_TE-NFT A
THREBRIERNCHARESHEAHRIRE
Hﬁfﬁﬁgﬁ* PR R (0 2 B ITHARZ

for Every Four Existing Shares Held on the Record Date” #&RIARQE -
dated 16 December 2019.
As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds from the Rights RZ-ZT_TF+_-_F=+—H #HEME
Issue were applied as follows: FKIBFEARTMAR -
Planned use of
net proceeds
as stated in Actual use of
the listing net proceeds
documents dated up to
22 November 31 December
2019 2020
+—A=-+=H —EEF
Xt +=-HA=+—H
ﬁﬁ?—%?ﬁ Fri8 & IE
FEEETEI A HEER AR
—T—%ﬁ FET
HK$’'000 HK$’000
Repayment of the Group’s EEAEEEB R
indebtedness and interest FEFRXZ
expenses 7,500 7,500
Payment of renovation and XNAEEEBEAD
refurbishment costs of BT RSP AR
the Group’s restaurants 20,500 18,447
General working capital —REEES 17,800 17,800

As at 31 December 2020, approximately HK$43.7 million out
of the net proceeds from the Rights Issue had been used
in accordance with the planned usage as detailed above.
The portion of net proceeds yet to be used was deposited
in licensed banks in the PRC, and is expected to be
progressively utilised in the first half 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE OF
31 DECEMBER 2020

The Board is pleased to announce that with effect from 4 May
2021, the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office of the Company (the “Share Registrar”) will be changed
to Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited. For details,
please refer to the announcement titled “Change of Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office” dated 30
March 2021.

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in this annual report,
the Board is not aware of any important event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Introduction, Environmental, Social and
Governance Policies

Li Bao Ge Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, “the Group” or “we”) is a Chinese restaurant
group recognised for delivering Cantonese cuisine, Chinese
banquet and dining services. During the financial year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period” or “2020”), the
Group operated twelve restaurants and twenty-five food
counters, including eleven full-service Chinese restaurants
and tea houses in Hong Kong and Shenzhen, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) (of which two restaurant
and one tea houses ceased business during the Reporting
Period), under the brand names of “Star of Canton”, “Beijing
House” and “Star of Canton Dim Sum Tea House”, one Thai
cuisine restaurant in Hong Kong under the brand name of
“La Maison D’ Elephant” and twenty-five food counters in the
PRC under the brand name of “Star of Canton” and “Sun Kau

”

Kee”.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”) summarises the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances of the
Group and demonstrates its commitment towards sustainable
development.

The Group attributes the growth and success to its
dedication by offering quality food and services to customers.
While striving for performance, we also pursue business
sustainability by being a responsible corporate citizen. We
are committed to maintaining high standards of business
practices in relation to environmental protection, social
responsibility and corporate governance, as we believe this is
the key to our continuous success in the future.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has established the ESG taskforce (the
“Taskforce”). The Taskforce comprises core members
from different departments and is responsible for collecting
relevant information on our ESG aspects for preparing the
ESG Report. The Taskforce reports to the board of directors
(the “Board”), assists in identifying and evaluating the Group’s
ESG risks and the effectiveness of the internal control
mechanisms. The Taskforce also examines and evaluates our
performances in different aspects such as environment, health
and safety, labour standards and product responsibilities in
the ESG aspects. The Board sets up a general direction for
the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness in the
control of ESG risks and internal control mechanisms.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RIE - tERERTE @)

Reporting Scope

Unless specified otherwise, the ESG Report covers the
Group’s ESG performance of the headquarter office, and
the twelve restaurant operations in Hong Kong and the
PRC. We collect the Group’s key performance indicators
(“KPI”) in environmental and social areas through the Group’s
operation control mechanism. We will continue to expand
the scope of disclosure in the future after the Group’s data
collection system becomes more mature and the sustainable
development work is enhanced.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in the Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”).

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance
practices has been set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 68 to 93 of this annual report.

Reporting Period

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the financial year ended
31 December 2020.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related
to its business and ESG issues. In order to understand and
address stakeholders’ concerns, we communicate with our
key stakeholders, including but not limited to investors and
shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees, government
and regulatory bodies, and the community, non-government
organisations (“NGOs”) and media through different channels.
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In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures,
we take into account stakeholders’ expectation and strive
to improve our performance through mutual cooperation
to create greater value for society. The Group’s major
stakeholders’ communication channels and their
corresponding expectations are as follows:

EHEEERBALRE HEMERKE
Hels - HPIEE B ENE - W E B
EEEBSNRASEEN RUESAIESR
REE-AEERIEZHHNENBERRE
RRENHENT

Stakeholders Communication channels Expectations
¥ E BERE e
Investors and e  Annual general meeting and other e  Complying with relevant laws and
shareholders shareholder meetings regulations
REEMEKER e BRBEARGMHMBRREGR o HETHBEREER
e Financial reports e Disclosing latest information of the
o WBWE corporate in due course
e Announcements and circulars o HAREBEARISHAM
o NEREMK e  Financial results
e Corporate website o WBEE
o AAEAHUL e  Corporate sustainability
s GERAFBEER
Customers e  Customer satisfaction surveys and e  Product and service responsibility
g feedback forms o FEEmMERBEME
s XPmEERFAEERRER e Customer information and privacy
e Customer service manager protection
o  HRKIRE s EFPEEKLERE
e  Direct communication e  Food safety
s HEABR e AEm%TE
Suppliers e Supplier management meetings e  Fair competition
L rEn and events o REBF
e HEmMEEEBREH e Business ethics and reputation
e Supplier audit management system o 3B E L EE
o HEMBIEEGE e Cooperation with mutual benefits
e Site visits o HEHER
o EHRE
Employees e  Employee opinion surveys e  Health and safety
(== e EEER#AZL s RREHEZTE
e  Channels for employees’ feedback e  Equal opportunities
(forms, suggestion box, etc.) s TEHe
e [EERBERE e Remuneration and benefits
(BER%x BRMEZE o FHBHKRAEA
e  Notice boards e  Career development
e EHRIR e BERERE
28 FEMEBERAT —B-BEFERS
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Stakeholders Communication channels Expectations
¥ E BRERE HE
Government and e Performance reports e  Tax payment as required by law
regulatory bodies o BWWmE o R
S R BEE s e Written response to public e  Business ethics
oonsultation o WEEE
o EBNTEHA e Complying with relevant laws and

° S|te visits

o EMZE

regulations

o ETHBIEREMR

Community, e Community investment programs e  Giving back to society

NGOs and media o (BRI EETE
fE - JERTAEL N o ESG reports
1 g o IRIE -HENERAWRE

We aim to collaborate with our stakeholders to improve our
ESG performance and create greater value for the wider
community on a continuous basis.

o [EIEHE

e  Environmental protection
e [MFEHE

e  Compliant operations

s AHKE

EMNERREFSNESHE RERME

RIE - -HE@RERTENKRE  URHE/T
B AIEE AEE -
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Materiality Assessment

The Group’s management and staff in major functions are
involved in the preparation of the ESG Report in order to assist
the Group in reviewing its operations, identifying relevant
ESG issues, and assessing the importance of those relevant
matters to our business and stakeholders. We have compiled
a survey in accordance with the identified material ESG issues
to collect information from relevant departments, business
units and stakeholders of the Group. The following matrix is a
summary of the Group’s material ESG issues.

Materiality Matrix
BEMEE

BB
AEEETERENEEEREREAESHE
REBARE AHBPAKEREEEBEEE -
HAIERRE - HERERFEE - Wrth&
FHRBEEEHRMEBEBNENERE
HARBEJINNERRE HEREAR
EEHREENES  MAKENHEBER -
EBBEURFOEREER - TR
AAREENERNRE HENEREH

Food Quality and Safety
EmEEETS

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour
SIEET RMHAT
Customer Service

B IR%

Health and Safety Management
T2 EE

o Advertising and Labeling EERIEE

_ Development and Training 2 & K 153l

o Indoor Air Quality Management ZENZ=R/E & E 12

)

E Working Hours and Rest T K& i £

& Recruitment Promotion and Dismissal 352 « &7} f# (&

?i Anti-corruption R &35 \.
& Divgrsity and Equal Opportunities

R Sl BERRTEHE o

% Remuneration and Benefits B % 27 \.

= Supply Chain Management ﬁi\ﬁgﬁiﬁﬁﬁ\%

% Emgggngas Energy Management &£ % 12

B FERIER o Water Management Fi7/K &2 /

\ Corporate Social Responsibility 1>+ & & {£

.\ Waste Management EE47% 12

Greenhouse Gas
Emissions
BEREHN /

Use of Packaging Materials 523 #4£Hs F

- Sewage Discharge ;5 KBk

Level of Influence on Stakeholders’ Assessments and Decisions

Level of significance of Economic, Environmental and Social Impacts

HEE BERMEFENEEMEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that it
has established appropriate and effective management
policies and internal control systems for ESG issues, and
confirmed that the disclosed contents in the ESG Report are
in compliance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guide.
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Contact Us

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advices in respect
of the ESG Report or our performances in sustainable
development by email at enquiry@starofcanton.com.hk.

A. Environmental

A1l. Emissions
The Group recognises that the long-term viability of
the Group’s business is closely linked with the well-
being of society. We are committed to promoting
green environment by introducing environmentally
friendly business practices, educating our
employees to enhance their awareness on
environmental protection, and complying with
relevant environmental laws and regulations. We
strive to minimise the potential impacts of our
business on the environment and society in which
we operate so to fulfil our commitment on social
responsibility.

In order to mitigate the environmental impacts
brought by the Group’s operations, we have
adopted and implemented relevant environmental
policies. These policies apply the emission
mitigation principles as well as the waste
management principles of “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle
and Replace”, with the objectives of minimising the
adverse environmental impacts, and ensuring the
emissions or wastes being generated are managed
in an environmentally responsible manner.

We have also embraced our responsibility to
create an environmentally sustainable business
by implementing measures that promote energy
conservation, waste reduction and any other green
initiatives across the life cycle of our services. We
are committed to educating our employees to raise
their awareness on environmental protection and
compliance with the relevant environmental laws
and regulations.

Bt 48 3R A

BB LAFHEREERLREZ - B
N R] 2R PR BE AN R S K PI 1E RT B R
RIATENEREREHEEER HiuL R
enquiry@starofcanton.com.hk °

A. BB

Al. HERUYD
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BeoBMEBBITRERIAEE
TN HEEBTRSREEH
METHBNREEZRER X
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o

RERAEESERDHREN
TE BMPCEBLEBRMEBRY
RIBBR © % F BR KA R R
AAR DR - =/ - @i - FK
MENERRA  FERARE
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KB ZIRREVAFERRD
CERCE ERERBBEHA
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has
not identified any material non-compliance of
environmental laws and regulations in relation
to exhaust gas and greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions, water and land discharge, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes that have a significant impact to the Group.
Such environmental laws and regulations include
but are not limited to the Hong Kong Air Pollution
Control Ordinance, the Hong Kong Waste Disposal
Ordinance, the Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The major source of exhaust gas generated by
the Group’s business operations were mainly fuel
consumed by vehicles and towngas for cooking.

The Group strictly controls the emissions of
oil fumes in accordance with the legislation
requirements of Hong Kong and the PRC. To
control the emissions of oil fumes and other exhaust
gas, all restaurants of the Group have installed
exhaust emission systems and air pollution control
equipment, including mechanical ventilation systems
and oil fume exhaust filters. In addition, the Group
has formulated policies and implemented various
emission reduction measures to reduce emissions
from sources, such measures include but are not
limited to:

e  Encourage the use of public transportation for
business commuting purposes;

e Reduce the number of business trips through
utilising electronic communication means such
as video conferences;

e QOperate vehicles that meet the emission
standards of the government; and

NEMEBBRAR —T_TFFERSE
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e Conduct monthly vehicle maintenance to
reduce fuel consumption effectively, thereby
reducing carbon and exhaust gas emissions.

Due to the expansion of restaurants by the Group,
the overall exhaust gas emissions has increased
during the Reporting Period. The Group’s exhaust
gas emissions performances were as follows:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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e BAET - REWEE N
B RO DR BRI R
Ko BERIEIN -

AR AKRENERER A
BERINERBESHEEML
Fto REBEMERBEBERIT

Types of exhaust gas Unit Emissions
BE SR 3E Rl B BHE
2020 2019

—E=%FF Z—FT-NF
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) kg 1,859.69 3,792.86
AL (NOX) /N
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) kg 8.65 18.59
— &b Fi (SOx) /NN
Particulate Matter (PM) kg 19.73 10.87
BOZ R (PM) NG

GHG Emissions

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions
are direct emissions from towngas cooking,
diesel and petrol consumed by vehicles (Scope
1), and indirect emissions from towngas cooking
and purchased electricity (Scope 2). The Group
actively adopts electricity conservation and energy
saving measures to reduce GHG emissions, such
measures include but are not limited to:

e Actively adopt vehicular emission reduction
measures. Relevant measures are described in
the section headed “Exhaust Gas Emissions” in
this aspect; and

e Actively adopt measures for environmental
protection, energy conservation, and water-
saving. Relevant measures are described in
the section headed “Energy Management” in
aspect A2.
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The Group’s total GHG emissions has decreased by
about 52% from approximately 63,732.50 tCO2e
in 2019 to approximately 30,283.98 tCO2¢ in
2020. This was mainly due to limited operation of
restaurant in Hong Kong for anti-infection measures
that results in an decrease in the consumption
of electricity and towngas. The Group’s GHG
emissions performances were as follows:

AEEMBEEREHERASEH -
T — N F463,732.50 M — A (K
EERIHRHRE T _TEFY
30,283.98M8 — AL EE - EF
ZREAREBRZ THEERE
KEZR - BREHIRERBERE
ERL AEBEMNEBEERBEK
BRI -

Indicator? Unit Emissions
EZ2 B BHE
2020 2019

—E=-%FF Z—T-NF
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCOe 21,986.63 48,915.43
BEEAERBER(BE1) W S E 2
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 8,297.35 14,817.07
MR =ERBHR(HE2) MR bR E 2
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) tCO,e 30,283.98 63,732.50
mERBHNAE (FEK2) W S| E 2
Total GHG emissions intensity tCO,e/thousand revenue 0.13? 0.18

BERBIHNEAETE

WE—S(LIREE
Tl A

Notes:

GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
the latest released emission factors of China’s regional power
grid basis, “2020 Sustainability Report” published by CLP Power
Hong Kong Limited, “Sustainability Report 2019” published
by HK Electric Investments, “ESG Report 2019” published by
the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX, “Global Warming
Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014
(AR5).

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total revenue was
approximately HK$236.4 million. The data will also be used for
calculating other intensity data.
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Sewage Discharge

During daily operation, the Group generates domestic
sewage mainly in the course of food preparation
and cleaning. The sewage generated will first be
purified in the subsurface sewage treatment system,
then discharged to the urban sewage pipe network.
The Group has rigorously monitored the usage and
disposal of the sewage, and comply with relevant laws
and regulations to meet local government sewage
discharge standards.

Since the Group’s sewage are discharged through the
municipal sewage pipe network to the regional water
purification plant, our sewage discharged is considered
as the water consumed. Hence, the performance of
sewage discharged will be disclosed in the section
headed “Water Management” in aspect A2.

Wastes Management

The Group adheres to the waste management
principles and strives to properly manage and dispose
all wastes produced in our business activities. Our
waste management practices comply with related
environmental protection laws and regulations.
The Group maintains a high standard in wastes
reduction, educates employees about the importance
of sustainable development, and provides relevant
supports in order to enhance their skills and knowledge
in sustainability.

Hazardous Wastes

Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group did
not generate significant amount of hazardous wastes
during the Reporting Period. Despite the Group did not
generate hazardous wastes, the Group has established
guidelines in governing the management and disposal
of hazardous wastes. In case there are any hazardous
wastes produced, the Group is required to engage
a qualified chemical wastes collector to handle such
wastes, and complied with relevant environmental
rules and regulations.
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Non-hazardous Wastes
Food Wastes

Being a corporation that is engaged in providing and
delivering catering and dining services, food wastes
is considered as a major non-hazardous waste
type generated during the course of our business
operation. The Group has developed stringent
policies and procedures in managing food wastes,
and has appointed qualified professional third
parties in collecting and handling the food waste
generated. The Group has also placed a number
of designated garbage bins in different areas in
kitchens for staff to centralise food wastes. The
qualified wastes collector will collect these garbage
bins on a daily basis to ensure the environmental
hygiene of kitchens and restaurants. In addition, the
Group has appointed a waste oil company to collect
and recycle the waste oil generated during the
cooking process into biodiesel so to ensure proper
disposal of the waste cooking oil generated from
our restaurant operations. Apart from appointing
qualified third parties in handling food wastes, the
Group has also implemented various measures in
minimising food waste, such as making better use
of food ingredients. During the Reporting Period, all
food wastes generated by the Group were collected
and handled by qualified third party wastes
collector.

Other Wastes

Other wastes that are generated by the Group are
mainly office papers and dim sum papers. The
Group has adopted various initiatives and measures
to minimise the generation of such wastes. Such
initiatives and measures include but are not limited
to:

e  Promote double-sided printing to utilise the use
of paper efficiently;

e Use recycled paper for printing and copying;

° Utilise electronic communication where
applicable; and

e Distribute office memos to remind staff to only
print necessary materials to avoid wastage.
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With the above waste reduction initiatives,
employees’ waste reduction awareness has been
raised. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
expanded its data collection system in gathering
the data of non-hazardous wastes, and the Group’s
non-hazardous wastes disposal performances were
as follows:

BRI AR D BEYEE - B
BB BEYEBRTERES - R
HEME AKENBBRER
FHAREREESTEDEE K
SENEEEMESERT

Non-hazardous wastes type Unit Disposal
mEREYER B ZEE
Office paper tonnes 0.44
NS 17
Dim sum paper tonnes 2.01
B A g
Total non-hazardous wastes tonnes 2.45
BEREVES 7]
Total non-hazardous wastes intensity tonnes/million revenue 0.01

BEBEVMEETE

Use of Resources

The Group upholds and promotes the principle
of effective use of resources, and is committed
to optimising the use of resources in all of its
business operations. We promote green working
environment, and continue with initiatives to
introduce resource efficiency and eco-friendly
measures to the Group’s operations.

The Group has established relevant policies and
procedures in governing the use of energy, water
and packaging material with reference to the
objective of achieving higher efficiency and reducing
the unnecessary use of materials.

g, B 8T A
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Energy Management

The Group has developed related energy policy
to outline the framework on the efficient use of
energy. Employees are required to adopt the related
measures and initiatives, and assume responsibility
for the Group’s overall energy efficiency. By
establishing an energy management system, we
develop and regularly review our energy objectives
and targets to continuously enhance the Group’s
energy performance. Unexpected high consumption
of energy will be investigated to find out the root
causes, and corresponding preventive measures
will be taken where deemed necessary.

The energy consumption of the Group was mainly
contributed by electricity consumption for operation,
gasoline and diesel consumption for vehicles, and
towngas for cooking. The Group has introduced
various measures and initiatives to achieve the goal
of electricity saving and efficient consumption. Such
measures and initiatives include but are not limited
to:

e  Turn off all unnecessary electronic appliances
and devices when they are not in use to avoid
wastage of electricity;

e  Utilise natural ventilation where possible to
minimise the use of electricity in lightings;

e Use LED lightings instead of traditional lamps;

e Enhance the maintenance and overhaul of
equipment so as to maintain the best condition
of all electronic equipment for effective use of
electricity;

e Regulate the use of air conditioners to prevent
wastage of electricity; and

e Conduct regular maintenance for cooking
facilities to ensure optimal efficiency.
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The Group’s total energy consumption has
decreased by approximately 54.3% from
261,065.19 MWh in 2019 to 119,188.69 MWh in
2020. The overall decrease in energy consumed
was due to the limited operation of restaurant
in Hong Kong for anti-infection measures. The
increase in unleaded petrol was mainly due to
increase usage of motor vehicles in PRC. The
Group’s energy consumption performances were as

7N 5 E ) 48
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follows:
Energy type Unit Consumption
BE IR 2 B B HIER
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hNF
Total energy consumption MWh 119,188.69 261,065.19
BEitEE JK BB
Total energy consumption intensity MWh/thousand revenue 0.50 0.74
RERAEETE KRR, Tl A
MWh/m? 8.09° 15.41
KEE, Tk
Direct energy consumption
BERERE
Diesel MWh 19.15 28.50
e KE B
Unleaded petrol MWh 253.07 108.13
|:| /_L/EE JEE H%
/no’/recz‘ energy consumption
A BEFE
Purchased electricity MWh 4,484.44 5,642.54
BES KE B
Towngas MWh 114,432.03 255,286.02
R KEE
Note: B 5
(3)  As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total floor area was @ BE-ZZT-_ZTF+=-A=+—8 K&

approximately 14,736.91 m?. The data will also be used for

calculating other intensity data.

EREmEE AL 14,736.91 F 5K o Hh#k
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Water Management

Due to the Group’s business nature, the use of
water is inevitable to maintain business operation. In
order to reduce and minimise water consumption,
we encourage our employees and customers to
develop the habit of conscious water use in order to
reduce water consumption.

The Group has been strengthening its water-
saving promotion in various ways, such as posting
water-saving slogans near to water outlets in
kitchens, washrooms and sink areas, and guiding
employees to use water reasonably. Water pipes
and water taps are also checked regularly to
prevent water leakage. If abnormal conditions are
detected, employees are required to report to the
departmental managers and related department.

The Group’s total water consumption has decreased
by approximately 38% from approximately
230,267.00 m? in 2019 to 142,985.00 m? in 2020.
The decrease in water consumed was due to the
limited operation of restaurants in Hong Kong for
anti-infection measures.
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Indicator Unit Consumption
BEE By HEE
2020 2019

—EC-EHE —E—hHF
Water m? 142,985.00 230,267.00
FA7K ST K
Water consumption intensity m?/thousand revenue 0.60 0.65
RKEZE SRS FIRBA
Water consumption intensity ms/m? 9.70 13.60
RKEE SLFRSETK

Considering the location of our office and
restaurants, we do not have any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose.
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Use of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are
mainly plastic containers and bags for take-away
orders. We have utilised every type of packaging
material by utilising the space of each in order to
avoid excessive packaging. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has consumed approximately
673.41 kg plastic packaging materials, which
approximates to 0.003 kg per thousand revenue.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group pursues the best practices for
environment protection and focuses on the Group’s
business impacts on the environment and natural
resources. In addition to complying with relevant
environmental laws and international standards
for protecting the natural environment, we have
integrated the concepts of environmental protection
and natural resource conservation into our internal
management and daily operations in order to
achieve environmental sustainability.

Indoor Air Quality Management

The Group heavily emphasises on indoor air quality,
and the Group has strict control over air quality
management. We prohibit anyone from smoking
in kitchen and dining areas. Any person who is
found to have violated such rule will be subjected to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination
of employment. Besides, the Group has installed
exhaust emission systems and air pollution control
equipment, including mechanical ventilation systems
and oil fume exhaust filters in all restaurants. This
helps to minimise the oil fume emissions and odour
nuisance arising from our restaurant operations.
Apart from these measures, the Group will also
conduct regular cleaning of the air conditioning
systems to ensure a high level of indoor air quality is
provided for both employees and customers.

A3.

BEEMEHE A
AEEFERANBEMBEEAA
RINBFTENBRARRETF -
BRMEBMNBEEREMENE
MARFERZEEME - AR %5
B - RmEHHE - AEEEMKE
#6731 AT R BEME - B
FFTRAL0.003 QT °

BRERRXRER
AEBERRERRER B+
PEIREEBHRRERRRE
ROFE - FRETHBRRERE
K BIBRIRE AR & B ARESN
BT RRRERBD RAERR
ENESRMASEANRLEENE
FELZT UEBERRRYEAIFE
BE -

EFRNEREEER

AEEREERENEREE
VEREHEREEEEEEH -
BAELEFERRERRE-
ERZAREE  —RKER BI4L
RRD FHBREEEESRFE
SN REBEMAEEZ L RKE
RBE AR M = 5 RIEHI R
B HE M E B R A Ko B B R B
BES B A B &R KRR K R
DAV L E AT E LA R E S
BRERK - RFHEEIN  ARHE
NEEHBERERRSL  AER
HEEREFRHEBENEANZER °

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2020 41



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERTE @)

B. Social

42

B1. Employment

Human resources are the foundation in supporting
the Group’s development, and we regard our
employees as the valuable asset of the Group. We
believe that success in hiring, training and retaining
talents is critical in providing reliable and quality
Services.

We have established relevant employment policies
to fulfil our vision on people-oriented management
strategy and realising the full potential of employees.
Relevant employment policies are formally
documented as the Employee Handbook, covering
aspects including recruitment, promotion and
dismissal, remuneration and benefits, working hours
and rest periods, diversity and equal opportunities,
etc. The Group will review these policies and the
employment practices periodically to ensure the
continuous improvements of our employment
standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with
employment related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, the Hong Kong Minimum Wage
Ordinance, the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China that would have a
significant impact on the Group.
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Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

We adopt a robust, transparent and fair recruitment
processes based on merit selection against the
job criteria, and recruit individuals based on their
suitability for the position and their potential to fulfil
the Group’s current and future needs. The Group
attracts talents through open recruitment, and
candidates are subjected to assessments (both
written and technical depending on position’s
requirement) prior to employment. Employment
decision will be made based on results of the
assessment, work experience and overall ability of
the candidate.

The Group specifies the basis and process for
employees’ transfer and promotion. We offer
transfer and internal promotion opportunities for
employees who have outstanding work performance
so to optimise the allocation of human resources
within the Group. Transfer of job positions can
either be recommended by department supervisors
or through self-application; while promotions are
required to be recommended by department heads.

The Group has formulated standardised procedures
for dismissal. Dismissal process will only be
proceeded with a reasonable basis, and the
Group forbids unreasonable dismissal under any
circumstances. The Group will ensure sufficient
communication has been conducted on the
problems prior to official dismissal. Employees
are required to return all company property to the
Human Resource Department upon leaving the
Company.
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Remuneration and Benefits

The Group’s basis for remuneration is job-related
skills, qualifications, work performances, and
market conditions. Remuneration package includes
holidays and different leave types such as annual
leave, maternity leave, and sick leave. Due to
the Group’s business nature, the Group will run
business as usual on public holidays. Employees
who are working on public holidays are therefore
granted with compensatory leave. Besides, free
meals will also be provided during shift and staff
quarter for employees in the PRC. Discretionary
bonus may also be awarded based on individual
work performance.

In addition, the Group participates in the pension
scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“MPF Ordinance”) for the employees in Hong
Kong. It is funded by contributions from employer
and employees pursuant to the provisions of the
MPF Ordinance. The Group also pays “five social
insurance and one housing fund” for its employees
in the PRC, namely, endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund, to ensure employees are covered
by social insurance. Moreover, employees of the
Group in the PRC are members of respective state-
managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local governments. The
employers and employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under rules of the schemes.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group has formulated policies in determining
the working hours and rest periods for employees
in accordance to local employment laws. Each
employee should only work for a maximum of 10
hours for a full-day shift, and 5 hours for a half-day
shift, excluding meal time and breaks in between.
Work schedules are arranged by department heads,
and employees can request the change in work
schedules by applying to department heads.
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Diversity and Equal Opportunities

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining
an inclusive and collaborative workplace culture. We
are dedicated to providing equal opportunities in all
aspects of employment, and maintaining workplace
that are free from discrimination, physical or verbal
harassment against any individual on the basis of
race, religion, colour, gender, physical or mental
disability, age, place of origin, marital status and
sexual orientation. With the aim of ensuring fair and
equal protection for all employees, we have zero
tolerance on sexual harassment or abuse in the
workplace in any form.

Health and Safety

The Group highly recognises the importance
of health and safety of our employees. We are
committed to providing employees a safe working
environment and strive to eliminate potential health
and safety health hazards at workplace.

The Group has implemented relevant policies
to ensure the health and safety of working
environment. We follow the occupational health
and safety guidelines recommended by the Hong
Kong’s Occupational Safety and Health Council and
the Drug Administration of Shenzhen Municipality.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with health
and safety related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Hong Kong Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance, the Hong Kong
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, Work
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Fire
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
that would have a significant impact on the Group.
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Health and Safety Management

Each of the Group’s restaurants in Hong Kong
satisfies the requirements of the Hong Kong Public
Health and Municipal Services Ordinance in respect
of means of ventilation, sanitary fitments, facilities
for cleansing equipment and utensils, means of exit
and entry, and fire safety.

To maintain a safe working environment and ensure
employees’ health and safety, the Group has
formulated and implemented the Kitchen Safety
Manual. The Kitchen Safety Manual sets out clear
guidance on different occupational safety matters;
instructions on the use of kitchen equipment
are also provided in the manual. In addition, the
Group provides employees with appropriate safety
equipment to protect their bodies from injuries at
work.

Fire Safety

The Group strictly follows the fire safety related
laws and regulations. Fire equipment such as
fire extinguishers and fire blankets are placed in
accordance with the law requirement.

Fire safety trainings are also arranged for employees
across all departments on a regular basis to raise
the awareness of the threat posed by fire to people,
property and our business community. Regular
fire and emergency drills will also be arranged
by the property management office and regional
governmental department for employees to ensure
employees are aware of the emergency procedures
and routes. In addition, the Group will conduct
regular safety inspections to minimise the safety
risks of employees and ensure safety standards are
met.
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B3. Development and Training

The Group regards our employees as the most
important asset and resource, and we recognise the
valuable contribution of our talents to the continued
success of the Group. We have developed training
strategies that focus on creating value and serving
the needs of our customers, employees and
society. In light of this, the Group focuses on the
establishment of internal management training and
development system which provides comprehensive
on-the-job training and clear career paths to
employees.

Development and Training

The Group offers a variety of training programmes to
employees based on their job duties. Such trainings
include induction trainings, vocational training on
food ingredients, food preparation and preservation,
flow of food production, hygiene conditions of the
kitchen and quality control in different aspects of
the restaurant operation. The Group also provides
trainings to all front-line employees on customer
services; posters on appropriate customer service
manners are also posted in kitchen areas to remind
employees the importance of good customer
service.

The Group has always encouraged our directors
to attend relevant training courses in receiving the
latest news and knowledge regarding corporate
governance. During the Reporting Period, all
directors had attended at least one training course
on the updates of the Main Board Listing Rules
of HKEX concerning good corporate governance
practices.
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B4. Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with national and local
employment laws and regulations, and prohibits
the employment of child and forced labour in both
the PRC and Hong Kong operations. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with child and forced
labour related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and the Regulations on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour in the People’s Republic of
China that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

Our recruitment post stipulates that only employees
over the age of 18 will be recruited and we require
all new employees to provide true and accurate
personal information when they join the Group.
Upon employment, recruiters will stringently review
employees’ personal information including medical
certificate, academic certificate, ID card, household
registration and other information. The Group has a
well-established recruitment process to check the
background of candidates and a formal reporting
procedure to deal with any exceptions. We also
conduct regular reviews and inspections to prevent
any child labour or forced labour in its operation.

Furthermore, employees of the Group only work
overtime if necessary and on a voluntary basis.
We also prohibit any punishments, management
methods and behaviours involving verbal abuse,
physical punishment, physical abuse, oppression,
sexual harassment, etc. against our employees for
any reason.
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Sourcing capability plays an important role in the
management of a restaurant operation, and an
effective supplier selection procedure is considered
as an essential element for our business operation.
The Group sets up a supplier management system
to closely evaluate and monitor suppliers regularly,
and puts forward requirements for suppliers on
environmental and social risk control.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a rigorous supplier
selection system based on a set of selection
criteria including but not limited to price, quality
of ingredients, reputation, service quality, past
performance, and delivery efficiency. The Group will
also consider suppliers’ environmental and social
risks during the supplier selection process.

To ensure a steady supply of food ingredients
and minimise the risks of non-delivery, sub-
standard products and suppliers’ delinquencies,
the Group sources major raw materials from a
number of approved suppliers. The Group places
great importance to the quality of raw materials
and closely monitors if the suppliers have met the
aforementioned criteria.

In hopes of maintaining the product quality and
safety, our Purchasing Department conducts
supplier reviews regularly. All suppliers are required
to hold valid licences issued by the government,
while all imported goods shall obtain proper
clearance from respective authorities. Goods
received from suppliers have to be in compliance
with the food labelling requirements and relevant
hygiene and sanitary regulations. To safeguard
the quality and condition of goods, suppliers with
past records of material environmental or social
accidents will be exempted from the list of suppliers.
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B6.

Open and Fair Procurement

The Group has formulated respective measures to
ensure suppliers could engage in fair competition
during the procurement process. Employees or
personnel having any interest relationship with
suppliers will not be allowed to participate in relevant
procurement activities. We have zero tolerance
towards bribery and corruption, and the practice
of partners or suppliers obtaining partnerships
or procurement contracts through any forms of
benefits transfer are strictly prohibited.

Product Responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to food and
service quality as well as corporate reputation,
and actively monitors the food and service quality
through internal controls. We also maintain
communication with our customers to ensure
understanding and meeting customer needs
and expectations, and continuously improve our
products and services by understanding customer
satisfaction level.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to the quality of products
and services, including but not limited to the Hong
Kong Trade Descriptions Ordinance, Food Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Protection of the
Rights and Interests of the Consumers, and the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
that would have a significant impact on the Group.
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Food Quality and Safety

The Group has placed great effort in ensuring and
maintaining the quality of food and ingredients for
restaurants’ daily operations. We have implemented
a Quality Control System that emphasises food
hygiene and safety as well as the sanitation and
cleanliness of restaurant premises. The Quality
Control System covers every aspect from food
preparation and cooking to the dining environment
of restaurants. We have also developed a series of
food safety policies to employees according to the
standards as required by governmental authorities.
Restaurant managers are responsible to monitor the
operations and performances of the restaurants so
to ensure the restaurant operations are in consistent
with the Group’s established guidelines and
policies. All employees, in particular kitchen staff are
required to strictly obey the policies on daily food
preservation and preparation, dress code and food
processing instructions.

To ensure and maintain food quality from source,
raw materials and food ingredients are sourced
primarily from the list of suppliers approved by the
Group’s senior management. Our standards for
selecting food ingredients are mainly based on the
place of origin, freshness, nutritional value, and
consumption safety. Freshness and quality of the
raw materials and food ingredients are examined on
a regular basis. The Group would cease sourcing
from those suppliers who fail to provide quality food
ingredients as specified.
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We also place great emphasis on the food
ingredients preservation process by developing
different standards and guidelines on the storage
of food ingredients. The Group has developed a
Warehouse Management System to specify different
instructions and measures to standardise the daily
logistics of the warehouse. Such measures include
storing food ingredients separately, tagging food
with exclusive labels, and marking opening dates
for each package of food to prevent consumption
after expiry date. It is believed that such measures
can better maintain food safety while ensuring
food quality. In addition, the hygiene of cutlery
and utensils are cleaned and sanitised routinely
to ensure food safety. Instructions in cleaning and
sanitising utensils are posted on kitchen walls to
ensure employees are aware of the procedures in
cleaning cutlery and utensils.

There are about ten staff from different restaurants
involved in implementing various quality control
measures on food production, including, among
others, checking the quality upon purchase of raw
materials, receipt of food ingredients, cooking and
serving of foods.

To improve the Group’s reputation and to increase
customers’ confidence to our restaurants, we had
also participated in the Hong Kong Cooking Oil
Registration Scheme held by Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency of the Hong Kong Government
as a scheme companion.

Customer Service

The Group is dedicated in providing excellent
customer experience through developing
standardised service management and delivering
quality catering service. We always welcome
customers in providing comments and feedback to
the Group and our restaurants.
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In order to provide high-quality and customer centric
service, the Group has set up comprehensive
and concrete instructions to guide employees
in providing quality customer service manners.
Such guidelines include the correct positioning
of dishes and the handling method of food trays,
etc. All instructions are illustrated with pictures and
posted in kitchen areas so to provide employees
a clear image of the appropriate and standardised
method of delivering when serving customers. We
believe these instructions and guidelines can help to
improve employees’ customer service manner while
building the Group’s image of a high-quality catering
service provider.

The Group also values the feedback from
customers. Customers are encouraged to provide
feedback by filling in questionnaires on online
platforms or raising to staff or managers in the
restaurant, customer satisfaction surveys are
also conducted annually for collecting customer
feedbacks. All reviews and comments received from
customers will be submitted to restaurant managers
on a daily basis. We also provide regular trainings
to employees in handing enquiries and complaints
in a decent and professional manner. Restaurant
managers are responsible to settle complaints and
carry out further actions and follow-ups to improve
the quality of catering service provided by the
restaurant.

Advertising and Labelling

The Group prohibits the advertisements to disclose
descriptions, claims or illustrations that are not
true. The Group advertises our restaurants through
a variety of platforms, such platforms include
restaurant apps, billboards, and floor directories,
etc. By complying relevant legislations and code
of practices, the Group organises promotion
campaigns and creates advertising materials
to ensure they are reliable, reasonable, and not
containing any deceitful details or elements when
generating advertisements in order to protect
consumers’ interests, rights and benefits.
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B7. Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a corporate culture
with integrity is the key to the Group’s continued
success. We value the importance of anti-corruption
work and does not tolerate any corruptions, frauds
and all other behaviours violating work ethics.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, including but not limited to
the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China
that would have a significant impact on the Group.

The Group does not allow any forms of corruption,
punishment measures will be taken once corruption
is identified and confirmed. The Group has
established the Code of Business Conducts, and
has put in place internal control mechanism to
prevent the occurrence of fraud, theft, bribery,
corruption and other misconducts involving
employees, customers and other third parties.

The Group has formulated and documented policies
in the Employee Handbook that prohibits employees
from performing acts which will result to any forms
of corruption, such policies include prohibiting
employees from receiving gifts and tips from
customers, and prohibiting employees to obtain
or provide benefits to customers, contractors,
suppliers or those who have business relationships
with the Group.
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Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has established a whistle-blowing system
and implemented the Whistle-blowing Policy. This
allows stakeholders to report negligence, corruption,
bribery and other misconduct to the Group
anonymously. The Group will process the reports
and complaints in a prompt, fair and confidential
manner.

Community Investment
Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group believes in shouldering the responsibility
of contributing society while having economic
development. As a responsible corporate citizen, we
are committed to embolden and support the public
by means of social participation and contribution
as part of its strategic development. We hope to
foster employees’ sense of social responsibility
by encouraging them to participate in charitable
activities during their work and spare time to make
greater contributions to the community.
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The ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of

HKEX
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TEHE - BEH —REER  HE B8 BH
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : BEHRY
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
Exhaust Gas and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
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KPI' A1.1 (“comply or explain”)
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The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.
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GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.
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Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
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Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and intensity.
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KPI A1.5 (“comply or explain”)

FEEMIERALS
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KPI A1.6 (“comply or explain”)
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: ERER
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Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.
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Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HlEREEEERERETENNA
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Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
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Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.
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Water consumption in total and
intensity.
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Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.
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Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.
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KPI A2.5 (“comply or explain”)
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Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
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Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
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Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
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Subject Areas, Aspects, Description Section/Declaration
General Disclosures and KPls
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BRENER
Aspect B1: Employment
EBmEB1: ERE
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
— PRI EE EEmEREE BREEREA I8N ER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: REHEZE
General Disclosure

— MR

RE - TEHE  ZITLER RIE

BRAREMEF RFEHER

(a) B &

b)) BFHBITAEEAZEMNIES
SERER ©

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational

hazards.
ERRMEZ 2 TERE RRERE S8
REFEUEENELR
(a) B &

b) BTFTHBETABEAZENAH
SRERER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERTE @)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHR -BH - —REER
HREMNER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

81

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EEB3 : %R KIE3

General Disclosure

— MR ER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EmEB4 : & T %A
General Disclosure

— R

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
FARARERITILEBRENIHE R
KREEHVIR - B -

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to preventing child and forced

labour.
BHEILETRRHSTHER
@ BR: Rk
b)) BFHEHBTABEAZENIES

TREER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EEBS5: HEHEEE
General Disclosure

—MRIXER

60

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
BEHEENIRENEERARBUR -

NEMEBBRAR —T_TFFERSE

Development and Training

R M IE

Labour Standards

&
H
i

Supply Chain Management

HEEER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERTE @)

Subject Areas, Aspects, Description Section/Declaration
General Disclosures and KPls

TEHE EH —REER #E 3 X
BRENER

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6: EmEME
General Disclosure Information on: Product Responsibility
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

—RWE ERFRBERERENERERY EnEE
2 EE BRELEEEN AR
TERMER
@ HBE: Rk
b) BTHBETABERZEMNIERM
SERIER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES
General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

— MR BAMILEHRE 9% HFREEREE RES
&R :
(@) BER: &
b)) BFHEHBTAEBEAZEMNIES
ERER o

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEB8: +tEBRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement Community Investment
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

— R N EZERBREBITALENR HERERE
EHERERBREEBZDEER
AR A 2 B9 BOR o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEEHE

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chun Kit (BR #& #¢) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 65,
is the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer
of the Company, an executive Director and one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”). He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chan
was appointed as a Director on 1 September 2015 and re-
designated as an executive Director on 23 September 2015.
Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group’s overall management,
strategic development, financial management and major
decision-making of the Group. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. He is the father of Ms. Chan Wai
Sze Josephine, an executive Director.

From December 2012 to May 2014, Mr. Chan completed 13
courses including construction and operation management of
catering corporations of chain-store franchise system* (& X
1 5 G B2 72 R BB LB T8 held by the Graduate School
in Shenzhen, Tsinghua University in order to enhance the

brand management of the Group.

Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in the restaurant
business. He is currently the vice chairman of the Association
of Restaurant Managers. Mr. Chan is also the committee
member of the training committee of Chinese Cuisine Training
Institute.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EEEEFE @

Ms. Chan Josephine Wai Sze (FR¥Z5F) (“Ms. Chan”), aged
35, was appointed as an executive Director on 7 January
2020. She joined the Group in December 2019 and is also the
business development director of the Company. Ms. Chan
is the daughter of Mr. Chan Chun Kit, the Chairman of the
Board, an executive Director and a Controlling Shareholder.

Ms. Chan holds a degree of Bachelor of Commerce from
Ryerson University in Canada and a degree of Master of
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chan worked at Yahoo!
Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd from April 2008 to September 2014 and
was subsequently promoted to senior operations engineer in
2018. Ms. Chan also worked at Kering Asia Pacific Limited
from September 2014 to September 2017 as a IT service
manager, and has then been engaged in the food and
beverage industry till November 2019.

Ms. Zhu Xueqin (%X ZE Z) (“Ms. Zhu”), aged 43, was
appointed as an executive Director on 7 January 2020.
She is the general manager of a restaurant of the Group
located at Kerry Plaza, Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC
(the “Shenzhen Restaurant”) and is responsible for the
management and administration of the Shenzhen Restaurant.
She joined the Group in May 2013.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhu worked at & JI| T £
T B E & kB R A 7 (Shenzhen Prince Kitchen Catering
Company Limited®) from 2003 to 2009 with her last position as
deputy manager. From 2009 to 2012, she worked at )T &k T
FERJE B BR A A (Jiangsu Prince Catering and Management
Limited®) with her last position as general manager.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David (/& & #8) (“Mr. Chow”), aged
35, was appointed as an executive Director on 23 September
2015 and re-designated as a non-executive Director on 7
January 2020.

Mr. Chow obtained a Higher Diploma in Web-based
Technology for Business from Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Sha Tin) in July 2005. He further holds
a degree of Bachelor of Science (Information Technology)
from the Swinburne University of Technology in Melbourne,
Australia by way of distance learning in March 2007.

From July 2005 to March 2012, Mr. Chow worked at
Compass Business Solutions Limited as a programmer, and
was subsequently promoted to a technical consultant since
October 2008. Since July 2012, Mr. Chow has been working
at Tectura Hong Kong Limited as a client services consultant.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EEEEFE @

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (& 8 &) (“Prof. Wong”),
aged 73, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 16 June 2016. He is mainly responsible for
overseeing the management independently and providing
independent judgment on the issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He is
also the chairman of each of the Company’s audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”) and legal compliance committee (the
“Legal Compliance Committee”).

Prof. Wong is a Practising Certified Public Accountant. He
has been the managing practising director of Patrick Wong
C.P.A Limited since November 2010 and has over 40 years
of experience in the accountancy profession. Prof. Wong was
awarded a Badge of Honour in January 1993 by the Queen
of England. He has been appointed as a Justice of the Peace
since July 1998 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star
(B.B.S.) in July 2010 by the Government of Hong Kong.

Prof. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director
of C C Land Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1224), Galaxy
Entertainment Group Limited (Stock Code: 27), Sino Oil and
Gas Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 702), Winox Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 6838) and Water Oasis Group Limited
(Stock Code: 1161).

Prof. Wong was an independent non-executive director of
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Company
Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Company Limited) (Stock Code: 874) from June 2010 to May
2017, and Real Nutriceutical Group Limited (Stock Code:
2010) from March 2008 to October 2017, and National Arts
Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (formerly known
as National Arts Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 8228)
from February 2010 to December 2018, and BAIC Motor
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1958) from December
2014 to March 2021.
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Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (=¥ &) (“Mr. Yuen”), aged
73, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 7 January 2020, and is mainly responsible for overseeing
the management independently and providing independent
judgment on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. He is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Legal Compliance Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in
Interdisciplinary Design and Management from The University
of Hong Kong. He is an Eminent Fellow Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, a Fellow Member of the
Chartered Institute of Housing, a Fellow Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Housing and a Member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He has approximately 50 years of real
estate experience in both public and private sectors. He is
currently a non-executive chairman of InfraredNF Investment
Advisers Limited and an independent non-executive director
of Autotoll Limited. Mr. Yuen was ex-chairman of the Industry
Training Advisory Committee (Property Management) of the
Education Bureau, past chairman of the Real Estate Service
Training Board, ex-committee member of the Employee
Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and Building
Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute
of Housing (Hong Kong Branch), past president of the Hong
Kong Association of Property Management Companies and
past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate
Administrators.

Mr. Yuen is currently an (i) independent non-executive director
of Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited, a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8421); and
(i) independent non-executive director of Real Nutriceutical
Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2010).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
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Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (f& = j) (“Mr. Kan”), aged 55,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
1 September 2020, and is mainly responsible for overseeing
the management independently and providing independent
judgment on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. He is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Legal Compliance
Committee.

Mr. Kan was awarded a diploma by the Architectural
Association School of Architecture in the United Kingdom
in August 1989. He was then received a MA in property
valuation and law from the department of property valuation
and management, Business School, City University, the
United Kingdom in August 1993.

Currently, Mr. Kan is the director of CHK Partnership Limited,
an architecture and interior design company that was found
and directed by Mr. Kan in 1996 until he left the company in
2015. Mr. Kan rejoined the company in 2018 and has been
responsible for overseeing the design projects undertaken by
the company. Previously, Mr. Kan was a project director for
Kerry Properties (China) Limited from January 2017 to August
2017.

Mr. Kan has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Architects since 2016 and has been registered with the
Architects Registration Board of Hong Kong since 2017. Mr.
Kan has also been a certified interior designer of the Hong
Kong Interior Design Association since 2018. Mr. Kan became
a member of Royal Institute of British Architects in 1992, and is
currently registered with the Architects Registration Board of
the United Kingdom.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN N/t
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The Board is pleased to present herein the corporate
governance report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise
the importance of sound corporate governance to the long-
term success and continuing development of the Group.
Therefore, the Board is committed to upholding good
corporate standards and procedures, so as to improve the
accountability system and transparency of the Group, protect
the interests and create value for the Shareholders.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). For the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”), to
the best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions set out in the Code,
except for certain deviations as specified with considered
reasons for such deviations as explained below.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.

68 MEMEEERAF —T-TEEERS

EZEgMARRBE T _TF+_H
=t HLEFENEARAEEE GRS

AREEFRELEEAI  SHOHLE
EARHARENRBRN RS AR ERE
2o EFRREERRENLETE
RARFF - A2 2 0o 8 40 PO 5 IR 75
HUEP - MR EROT A A AR -

BFEEERTH

AKAFIBEBRITES EMRB ([ ETR
Al W+ Mz tXETRTARGESE
AR E (TSR A1) R AR B & <F BRI S
TE¥ERIE-BE_ZT-_TF+ A4
=+—HIEFE(FHEH])  EFLFAN
ANARIE ESFSTRIFTS T A B A ST AR
TS TREERINERREMEENE
=R T X /) -

RIE TR T RIMRSCA2. » 8 RITHAR
BMABREMENY K TEHR— ARE
FAE ©



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

s A

TEERRE @)

During the Reporting Period, the Company has not separated
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company (the “CEQO”). Mr. Chan was the chairman and
also CEO and is responsible for overseeing the operations
of the Group during such period. In view of the fact that Mr.
Chan has been operating and managing the Group since
1998, the Board believes that it is in the best interests of the
Group to have Mr. Chan taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. The Board also
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and CEO in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring the consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Although
Mr. Chan performs both roles of chairman and CEO, the
division of responsibilities between the two roles is clearly
established. While the chairman is responsible for supervising
the functions and performance of the Board, the CEO is
responsible for the management of the Group’s business.
The Board considers that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired given the
appropriate delegation of the power of the Board to the Senior
Management for the day-to-day management of the Group,
and the effective functions of the independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board such
that no one individual has unfettered power of decisions.
This structure will also enable the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will
continue to review and consider splitting the roles of chairman
of the Board and CEO at a time when it is appropriate and
suitable by taking into account the circumstances of the
Group as a whole.

The Board will periodically review on the Company’s
corporate governance functions and will continuously improve
the Company’s corporate governance practices by assessing
their effectiveness with evolving standards to meet changing
circumstances and needs.
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Board of Directors

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of
the Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management
targets and supervision of management performance. The
management is delegated with the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the management and administration of the
Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the board committees of the Company
(the “Board Committees”). Further details of the Board
Committees are set out in this annual report. Under the terms
of reference, the duties of the Board in respect of corporate
governance are as follows:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

5.  to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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Composition of the Board

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, there have been changes in the composition
of the Board. As at the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises seven Directors, including three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board and
the aforesaid changes are set out as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Wai Sze Josephine (appointed on 7 January 2020)
Ms. Zhu Xueqin (appointed on 7 January 2020)

Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter (resigned on 16 May 2020)

Mr. Wong Ka Wai (resigned on 24 June 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David (re-designated from executive
Director on 7 January 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (appointed on 7 January 2020)
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed on 1 September 2020)
Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on 1 September 2020)

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned on 14 February 2020)

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Board was consisted of three independent non-
executive Directors during the Reporting Period. During the
Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual report, the
number of independent non-executive Directors represents
more than one-third of the Board. As such, there is a strong
independent element in the Board to provide independent
judgement. Amongst the independent non-executive
Directors, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Mr. Tam Tak
Kei Raymond (resigned on 14 February 2020) have the
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and
related financial management expertise required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has entered into a service agreement with each
of the independent non-executive Directors for a term of one
year, which may be terminated earlier by no less than three
months written notice served by either party on the other.
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The Company will use its best efforts to achieve the board
diversity policy and ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity which is appropriate to
the needs of the Company’s business. The selection of
candidates will be based on a range of criteria, including
but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge. The appointment of Directors will continue
to be made based on merit and potential contribution by the
candidate to the Board and the Company. Each of Directors’
respective biographical details is set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
The Directors have the necessary skills and experience
appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the
best interest of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr.
Kan Sze King Kenneth will retire from office as Directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”), and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third), not including those Directors who are subject to re-
election pursuant to Article 112 as described above, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. Mr. Chan Chun Kit and Mr.
Chow Yiu Pong David will retire from office as Directors at the
forthcoming AGM.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each
of the independent non-executive Directors to confirm their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
In this connection, the Company has received the positive
annual confirmations from all of the three independent non-
executive Directors. Based on the confirmations received, the
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent under the Listing Rules.
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Board and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, eleven board meetings were
held to approve, among others, the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2019, the interim results in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2020. The AGM which was held
on 24 June 2020 was the general meeting of the Company

EEERRERE

RBEHARN - BEFTSHRT T+ REHEMN
HEEHFEE)BE_ZT-NLF+_H
=t HLEFENEFEE HE_T—

TEF_A=+—RIFENTHEE -
R-F_FF A= ‘I—IEIEI?E%TTE’JI‘&%%@

during the Reporting Period.

The attendance of the respective Directors at the Board

meetings are set out below:

FREDARARBEHRAANBRRAE®

REEHFESEE SR

FYRCEREFIEAT ¢

Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board meetings general meeting
during the during the
Reporting Period Reporting Period
AEEHELE FREHBLRE
R,/ 8ERE KB/ BRERABRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman and IR (FEFETHAAE) 11/11 1/1
Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Wai Sze Josephine BREFLL (R=F=-FF 10/10 (Note 1) 1/1
(appointed on 7 January 2020) —HtHEZ /f) (f5E1)
Ms. Zhu Xueqjin (appointed on REELT (R=F-FF 10/10 (Note 1) 1/1
7 January 2020) — At AEZF) (F5E1)
Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter WEREE (R=ZF-FF 5/5 (Note 1) Not applicate (Note 3)
(resigned on 16 May 2020) A BT HEE) (f3E1) TER (FEE3)
Mr. Wong Ka Wai (resigned on IXEEE (R=FE=FF 6/6 (Note 1) Not applicate (Note 3)
24 June 2020) NAZ 1A FHE) (FzE1) NER (ME3)
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David (re-cesignated BRI LE (R=ZF=FF 11/11 1/1
from executive Director on 7 January 2020) — A+ B #i#7 f;%é ey )
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BYFHTES
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick BREEHR 11/11 11
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (appointed on RIBER &4 (R - FE - FF 10/10 (Note 1) 1/1
7 January 2020) —HtHEZ /f) (F5E1)
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed on -~ L% E (R=ZF-FF 11 (Note 1) Not applicate (Note 3)
1 September 2020) Jzﬁ HEZ 65) (f5E1) @R (MEE3)
Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on BEgiE R-FE-F#F 10/10 (Note 1) 1/1
1 September 2020) Jlﬁ HEF) (f5E1)
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond EEMEE (R_FE-FF 0/1 (Note 2)  Not applicate (Note 3)
(resigned on 14 February 2020) —A 7%7/5’#??/5.‘) (fzE2) TEA (FEE3)
Notes: B EE -

The attendance of the resigned and newly appointed Directors during the
Relevant Period represented the number of meetings held during his/her
tenure of office.

()

One Board meeting was held during the tenure of office of the Director.

No general meeting was held during the tenure of office of the Directors.

E"*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁ*ﬁé’]§$ﬁ’ﬂﬁ%?ﬂ%ﬂﬁiﬁ
REERHBMARTHERRE

EEEHN EFERT-REFE -

BEEEHR TEBTRRAE -
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The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Articles. All minutes of the Board meetings were recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and the
decisions reached.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are
free to have access to the management for enquiries and to
obtain further information when required. The Directors can
also seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company. All Directors have unrestricted access
to the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) who is responsible for ensuring that the Board/
committee procedures are complied with, and for advising
the Board/committee(s) on compliance matters.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of possible legal action against its Directors and
senior officers.

Relationships among Board Members and
Senior Management

Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors” of this annual report, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among members of the Board and the Senior Management.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors in
respect of the Shares (the “Code of Conduct”). The Company
has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors
have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Code of Conduct for the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional
Development Programme

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and
ample continuing professional development for the Directors
for a sound and effective internal control system and
corporate governance. In this regard, the Group has always
encouraged its Directors to attend relevant training courses to
receive the latest news and knowledge regarding corporate
governance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has provided
the Directors and Company Secretary at least one training
course on the updates of the Listing Rules concerning
good corporate governance practices. The Company will,
if necessary, provide timely and regular trainings to the
Directors to ensure that they keep abreast with the current
requirements under the Listing Rules.

According to the training records maintained by the Company,
the continuous professional development programmes
received by each of the Directors during the Reporting Period
is summarised as follows:

EENFEEXRREE

AEEETEZERRARADFBEERE
?é)?é%ﬁ&iﬁﬁ TZERENEBEIE R K
TEEANEZNE - Bt - AEE BB

HEFHEAUEIRE UWERBHED
%E/DE’]E—#T/Q &%u;@i

RBEMA ARBICREMEZTR QA
WETEHFERD - XRFIRE REH
ALEMRAFFIRRHEEEERTROR
MER - ARARHEFEZ/EZTRHER
KMIEMRE - ARERKEER EHRAE
BITHRE °

REARAFEMNEILCE  SEFRH
SHERINFEEEEIIBRAT

Type of Training

R
Executive Directors HITES:
Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman and BRI 6 52 A
Chief Executive Officer) (BEFSL/EFTHAEZR) A&B
Ms. Chan Wai Sze Josephine (appointed on  FREFL+ (R —ZF - F4F
7 January 2020) —A+HEZ /f) A8B
Ms. Zhu Xuegjin (appointed on KEELLT (RZE-_FF
7 January 2020) — H+HEZ(T) A&B
Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter (resigned on MEREE (RZF-FF
16 May 2020) AHA+NHEHE) A&B
Mr. Wong Ka Wal (resigned on 24 June 2020) EREHE (R -F - F4F
NAZ1EHBE) A&B
Non-executive Director FHITESE !
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David (re-designated from BRI HE (R -F - F4F
executive Director on 7 January 2020) — A+t HABHTEFHE) A&B
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES:
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick HERHE A&B
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (appointed on &iﬁ BREE (RZE-FF
7 January 2020) —HEHEZE) A&B
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed on BT E (RZE-FF
1 September 2020) LA —HEZF) A&B
Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on BEwitE (R-ZFE-FF
1 Septermber 2020) JLA— HEEE) A&B
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned on BEEBEE (RZF-FF
14 February 2020) Z A+ A FE) A&B
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A: attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars, briefings,
conferences, forums and workshops.

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general
business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of the Directors which includes:

(@ to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board
on such matters; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the annual report.

Board Committees

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant Listing Rules and to assist the
Board to discharge its duties. Currently, four committees have
been established:

1. The Audit Committee was established on 16 June 2016
with its terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules, and paragraphs C.3.3 and
C.3.7 of the Code;

2. The Remuneration Committee was established on 16

June 2016 with its terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.1.2 of the Code;
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3. The Nomination Committee was established on 16
June 2016 with terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5.2 of the Code; and

4. The Legal Compliance Committee was established on
16 June 2016.

The functions and responsibilities of these committees have
been set out in the relevant terms of reference which are of no
less stringent than that stated in the Code. The relevant terms
of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee can be found on the
Group’s website (http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) and the
website of the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Code.
All committees have been provided with sufficient resources
and support from the Group to discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee comprised
five members, namely Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
(Chairman), Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (appointed on
7 January 2020), Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed
on 1 September 2020), Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on 1
September 2020) and Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned
on 14 February 2020), all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. The members of the Audit Committee
shall comprise non-executive Directors and shall be
appointed or removed by the Board. If any member of the
Audit Committee ceases to be a Director, he/she will cease to
be a member of the Audit Committee automatically.

The Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of three
members, at least one of whom is an independent non-
executive Director with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In addition,
the majority of the Audit Committee shall be independent
non-executive Directors.
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With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are, among others (for
the complete terms of reference please refer to the Group’s
website (http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) or the website of
the Stock Exchange):

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
Company’s external auditors, and approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Company'’s external auditors;

2. to review and monitor the Company’s external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

3. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report, quarterly report and review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

4. to discuss with the Company’s external auditors
questions and doubts arising in the audit of annual
accounts;

5. to review the statement about the Company’s internal
control system (if any) as included in the Company’s
annual report prior to submission for the Board’s
approval;

6. to review the Company’s financial reporting, financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems;

7. to discuss the internal control system with the
Company’s management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system;

8. to consider major investigation findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management’s response to these findings;

9. to review the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group;
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10. to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management
in respect of accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

11. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditor’s management
letter; and

12. to review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2020, and interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2020, and discussed internal controls,
risk management and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee had also reviewed audited annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2020, this annual report, and
confirmed that this annual report complies with the applicable
standard, the Listing Rules, and other applicable legal
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.
There is no disagreement between the Directors and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the
external auditors. The Audit Committee has recommended to
the Board that Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited (“THKC”)
be nominated for re-appointment as the Company’s auditor
at the forthcoming AGM.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has
properly discharged its duties and responsibilities during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year. During
the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had held five
meetings together with the management of the Group and/
or the Company’s auditors. The attendance records of the
members of the Audit Committee are summarised below:

ERZEBEBFELBITHRAEE - RR
AN BERZEQRAEEEEER

ARBZEBM—ERITTHEREH - BX
ZBEKE 2 hFERRESAT

Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

ABEHEHE
RE BBERE
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (Chairman) HERHE (£E) 5/5
Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on BERtE (R-ZFE—ZFF 4/4 (Note 1)
1 September 2020) JLA— HEHF) (MF3E1)
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned on BEE#EE (RZF-ZFF Not applicable (Note 2)
14 February 2020) Z A+ HEE) @A (ffs2)
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (appointed on ~ RIBK it (R -F - F4F
7 January 2020) —HEHEZE) 5/5
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed on BEHEE ( RZFZFF 1/1 (Note 1)
1 September 2020) WA —HEZE) (MF3E1)

Notes:

(1)  The attendance of the resigned and newly appointed Directors during the
Relevant Period represented the number of meetings held during his tenure
of office.

(2)  No Audit Committee meeting was held during the tenure of office of the
Director.

Remuneration Committee

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
comprised five members, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor
Stephen (Chairman) (appointed on 7 January 2020 and re-
designated as the Chairman on 14 February 2020), Mr
Chan Chun Kit, Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed on
1 September 2020), Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned
on 14 February 2020) and Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on
1 September 2020). Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Kan
Sze King Kenneth, Mr. Liu Chi Keung and Mr. Tam Tak Kei
Raymond are independent non-executive Directors.
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With reference to the terms of reference of the B EHFMZT E e W B # & #r B
Remuneration Committee, the primary responsibilites of Z E @M T EHR E B (A 1§ 7 &
the Remuneration Committee include (for the complete B # &3 F2HASENE
terms of reference please refer to the Group’s website  (http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) sk B 22 £
(http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) or the website of the  #8Uf) :

Stock Exchange):

1. to consult the chairman of the Board and/or chief 1. BEMHITEEHNFMEEZHAES
executive about their remuneration proposals for other CERRRITHRAE
executive Directors;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the 2. BAAGTEEE=LRSMEEAE (S

Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ REBAB] BHFMBRRERE &
and senior management (“the Senior Management”) MR IEHAMEBERENREF G H
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and BHBGR - MESSREES
transparent procedure for developing remuneration

policy;

3. to review and approve the management’s remuneration 3. REEGMAICEFSHRBFREME
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals A RBEE IR E R F R
and objectives;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the 4. HMEZECZHZENNTEELSAE
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors BABNHMES
and senior management;

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the 5. HIERTEEMHFHRNESSIREES
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

6. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, 6. ZERERQA T X OEHH - B H D

time commitment and responsibilities and employment HEAMEBE UERAREREREBEA
conditions elsewhere in the Company and its A& H b B A7 B9 & B A
subsidiaries;

7. to review and approve compensation payable to 7. i R ERAHITEELRSREEA

executive Directors and senior management for any loss B AEEAIRIEBBREEMES
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it NHEEE  UBRZEHEESRS OK
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair B ARBEHEENER—5 - BE
and not excessive; MARY  PEBEE

8. to review and approve compensation arrangements 8. sl M#LEREERITAKE MHEEK

relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for BREHESMIRNBELTH AU
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with MRZELHEENER B BX
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and BEEENBER - EHEBEENES
appropriate; and BHEE &k

9. to ensure that no Directors or any of his close associates 9. HBRMEZEHXE TN BHHE A2
is involved in deciding his own remuneration. HETEBIONHH -
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.
During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
had held five meetings. The attendance records of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are summarised
below:

FMEEeeRELEFRIT R Rk

HHR - FIMEE R Tﬁ/ﬁ\a- o 37 B

ZEEXBE 2 HEREBMmT
Attendance/Number

of meetings during
the Reporting Period
AEEHMEHE
B BBRE

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (Chairman)
(appointed as a member on 7 January 2020

REREE (XE)(R=_F-FF
—AtHBZERKE IR

and as the Chairman on 14 February 2020)  — & —ZF4 — A1+ HEZ(T 4/4 (Note 1)
ABEE) (M)

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned on EEMEE (RZF-ZFF 0/1 (Note 2)
14 February 2020) — A +P9H ) (H3E2)
Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on BEREE (RZF-ZFF 5/5 (Note 1)
1 September 2020) JLA— HEHF) (MF3E1)
Mr. Chan Chun Kit BoR #4585 A 5/5
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed on BT E (RZE-FF Not applicable (Note 3)
1 September 2020) A —HEZ) TEA (H:E3)

Notes:

(1) The attendance of the resigned and newly appointed Directors during the
Relevant Period represented the number of meetings held during his tenure
of office.

(2)  One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the tenure of office
of the Director.

Q) No Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the tenure of office of
the Director.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and made recommendations on the remuneration
package of the Senior Management. The Board is of the view
that the Remuneration Committee had properly discharged its
duties and responsibilities during the Reporting Period and up
to the date of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
comprised five members, namely Mr. Chan Chun Kit
(Chairman), Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (appointed on
7 January 2020), Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed
on 1 September 2020), Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on 1
September 2020) and Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned
on 14 February 2020). Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Kan
Sze King Kenneth, Mr. Liu Chi Keung and Mr. Tam Tak Kei
Raymond are independent non-executive Directors.

82 FEmEEARAT —T-TEEEHE
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According to the terms of reference the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee shall convene
meeting at least once a year and the primary responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee include (for the complete
terms of reference, please refer to the Group’s website
(http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) or the website of the
Stock Exchange):

1. to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on proposed
changes, if any, to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

2. to review the Company’s board diversity policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing
the said policy;

3. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

4. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the nomination policy which sets out
the nomination criteria and procedures for the Company to
appoint or re-elect Directors. The nomination policy aims to:

e set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors;

e ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company; and

e ensure the Board continuity and appropriate leadership
at Board level.

BREREZESENBESHE EXZ8g
BELBFRT-—ReZ HFIERER
R(EBETENBESGE F2HA5EH
48 i (http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) 2k B
RPTHEuL) -

1. BEEFSNRE  ABCARKEZT
b (BHEMEE MBELERITHE) X
ARESARRNARREMERYE
ESFHNEE (WNF)IREER

2. MEUAXARFAMNEFTENEZ TIEHK
KL Z BRI B IR AITER

3. VEARAEERAETESHIAL
WHhERZEMALTHEEST S
MEZSRHER

4. FHZBUIFMITESHBIUME K

5. WEFEEAENEERES (LR
RERRTBER) REHAAETE
Rt -

BB R

EZ2CRMERBR  BIARAERE
NEREFWRBAENRERF - RBBE
ERE

BIRARZEEFTHNELNER

s HMREFCABYVAARAEBMT
METT - BRNMZITTEH &

s MREFSHREUENEFEEEAE -
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The nomination policy applies to the Directors and where
applicable, Senior Management prepared for Board positions
under the succession planning of the Company.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered:

e  Character and integrity

e Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects
under the board diversity policy that are relevant to the
Company'’s business and corporate strategy

e Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board

e Wilingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board Committee(s)

e Requirement for the Board to have independent
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules

e Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity

e Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to
time for nomination of directors and succession planning

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board
for the selection, appointment and re-appointment of a
Director including an independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the procedures and process as set out
in the nomination policy. Nomination Committee will shortlist
candidates for consideration by the Board based on the
selection criteria and such other factors that it considers
appropriate.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the nomination policy and recommend any changes
thereto to the Board for its adoption as and when necessary.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee

REZEE Ef%’i%ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬂl% i
EUNERRESSERTMAENR  AHERA -

RBEHPRN - REREEE

RIT3REH -

held three meeting. The attendance of the members of the REBZZEE@RKERZES R 2 HERH
Nomination Committee at the committee meetings is as  #1T :
follows:
Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period
A EREHE
B EERE
Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman) PRIRGE S £ _:Ef ) 3/3
Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on BEREE (RZFE-FF 3/3 (Note 1)
1 September 2020) LA — HEHE) (MFE1)
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned on BEEBEE (RZF-ZFF 0/1 (Note 2)
14 February 2020) ZH A FFF) (HF3E2)
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (appointed on ~ RIBRFEHE (R —F —F4F 2/2 (Note 1)
7 January 2020) — At HEZ(F) (HF3E1)
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed on BT E (RZE-FF Not applicable (Note 3)
1 September 2020) NA—HEZ) TEA (H5E3)

Notes:

(1) The attendance of the resigned and newly appointed Directors during the
Relevant Period represented the number of meetings held during his tenure
of office.

(2)  One Nomination Committee meeting was held during the tenure of office of
the Director.

(8)  No Nomination Committee meetings were held during the tenure of office of
the Director.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
reviewed and assessed (i) the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, (i) the performance of each of the Directors, (i) the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and
proposed the appointment or re-appointment or succession (if
applicable) of Directors.

FaE

(1) REBHEHARERFZENESTHLERERBAR
REERMEARTHEZ B

@ BREHRN REZESETREH-

@ EBFEHAN REZRSUESRTEHR -

R|EHRAR - BEZEGERN LFARONE
EEMRE - ABKAK (BFERE - AR
NEBRITE) () BSEFNRR - (i) BILI
HITESNBIMEREZESNRME &
MEEREE (E) -
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Legal Compliance Committee

During the Reporting Period, the Legal Compliance
Committee comprised seven members, namely Prof. Wong
Lung Tak Patrick (Chairman), Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
(appointed on 7 January 2020), Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth
(appointed on 1 September 2020), Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond
(resigned on 14 February 2020), Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned
on 1 September 2020), Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter (resigned
on 16 May 2020) and Mr. Poon Yick Pang Philip (resigned on
1 October 2020). Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick (Chairman),
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth,
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond and Mr. Liu Chi Keung are
independent non-executive Directors.

According to the terms of reference of the Legal Compliance
Committee, the primary duties of the Legal Compliance
Committee are to assist in overseeing the Group’s compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to its business operations
and to review the effectiveness of its regulatory compliance
procedures and system, and the Legal Compliance
Committee shall convene meeting at least once a year.

During the Reporting Period, the Legal Compliance
Committee held two meetings. The attendance of the
members of the Legal Compliance Committee at the
committee meetings is as follows:

EEAREES

RMERA - ZRERREGERELEKE
BEERHR (ER)  REREE(R=F
“EE-ALAREE) BLHELE R
“ECTFENA-BEERE)  EEMEELE
(R-T-T&E-A+MBERE) Btk
FER-_Z_TFNA—HEHE)  HE
REEMR-_Z-_FTFAA+RBHEI) L
/% Hﬂ%f‘ai(ﬁAf%ﬁff—éinLﬂ—EI%ﬁE) °

EREHR (IR REBEMNELE BLH
?EE BT ERBEREETIE I
MITES -
REZZAAZETHRERE L2
REEENIEBRERHDEEREARH
%R B A RNLR RARMETER -
TEHEEEAREFLGIELST AN

T

7

MmEEE EVOEFRITNEE

RREEA

I

£
L
Z

HHIA
oiéAﬁi
JEIRERLNT
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18 ZH
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Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

AR E B E

RE BBERE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick mEEHE 2/2
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (appointed on ERERELE (RoF-FE 2/2 (Note 1)
7 January 2020) —AtHAEZEL) (BtzE1)
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed on BT E (RZE-FF Not applicable (Note 2)
1 September 2020) NA—HEZT) TEA (HsE2)
Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on BEREE (R=ZF=-FF 2/2 (Note 1)
1 September 2020) JLA— HEHE) (MF3E1)
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned on BEEBEE (RZF-ZFF Not applicable (Note 2)
14 February 2020) Z A+ E) @A (MEE2)
Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter (resigned on MBEREE (R=ZF=-FF 2/2 (Note 1)
16 May 2020) AHFNHEFE) (MFE1)
Mr. Poon Yick Pang Philip (resigned on BEMESEE (RoFE—FF 2/2 (Note 1)
1 October 2020) +A—HEHE) (MF3E1)

Notes: B &

(1) The attendance of the resigned and newly appointed Directors during the
Relevant Period represented the number of meetings held during his tenure
of office.

(2)  No Legal Committee meeting was held during the tenure of office of the
Director.
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During the Reporting Period, the Legal Compliance
Committee reviewed (i) the compliance policies of the
Company against the applicable laws and regulations, and (i)
the training and continuing professional development of the
Directors and Senior Management.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged THKC as the
Group’s external auditor and to hold office until the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. The Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been audited by THKC. The remuneration paid or
payable to THKC is set out as follows:

RBEHA  ZRARZBEIERF()AA
AHERZERIERNARBRELNES
ARERERBNBIIRFEERER -

A 24 B 35 A

REEHN AEEZRTAHERALE
0 1 51 B A% BB - HL A A L U R R
BEAGHERILE - RARBE-T-TF
ToAS - ALFENREMBERRED
BT RS - B AT MR
HHHZMT :

Services rendered Friz AR 75 Fees paid/payable
B EAEA
for the year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—E-BF  —FAF
(HK$°000) (HK$'000)
(F#&x) (F&mT)
Statutory audit services VA TE B Z RS 814 815
Non-audit services BT 209 206

Company Secretary

On 1 October 2020, Mr. Poon Yick Pang, Philip has resigned
from the position as the Company Secretary. The Board has
appointed Ms. Leung Ho Yee (“Ms. Leung”) as the Company
Secretary with effect from 1 October 2020. Ms. Leung has
been nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”), an external service provider, under
an engagement letter made between the Company and
Boardroom.

Ms. Leung is a senior corporate secretarial manager of
Boardroom. She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Leung has over
10 years’ experience in the fields of corporate secretarial,
financial management and corporate finance.

ATWE

R-ZE_TF+A—B BEBELBRE

NREAME-—B - EFECZERABKL
(RZL) RRARAME AT _FTF+
A-BREM - RELTTTHEREZESE
AR A A (f???ﬂ%b(?l\ﬁﬁﬂ&i‘“{ fEm)
RIZA R E] RIS RIS KRS

\\\\\\\

RZTRERENCEWESREE - K
REBEFMAENE %&E%’ﬁ%’%ﬂi
NRENEREL - RRTHELEWE - UK
ERERPEMBRAFERBI0OFNHLR -
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During the Reporting Period, Ms. Leung undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The primary person at
the Company with whom Ms. Leung has been contacting in
respect of company secretarial matters is Ms. Chan Wai Sze
Josephing, the executive Director of the Group.

Compliance Officer

Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter who was an executive Director
resigned on 16 May 2020. He also resigned from the position
of the compliance officer of the Group on the same date.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The scope of the review is determined and recommended by
the Audit Committee and approved by the Board annually.
The review covers:

1. all material controls, including but not limited to financial,
operational and compliance controls;

2. risks management functions; and

3. the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff in connection with the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group and their training
programmes and relevant budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee assessed
the risk management and internal control environment of the
Group and reviewed the internal control procedural manual of
the Group and is satisfied with the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The systems are designed in
consideration of the nature of business and the organisation
structure. Further, the systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in operational system
and to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The system is designed
further to safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain appropriate
accounting records and financial reporting, achieve efficiency
of operations and ensure compliance with the Listing Rules
and all other applicable laws and regulations.
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The Group has engaged external independent professionals
to review its risk management and internal control systems
and further enhance its risk management and internal control
systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and is of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals
to perform internal audit functions for the Group as the need
arises. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review the
need for an internal audit function annually.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibility for
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements and to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are prepared in a manner which reflects the true and fair view
of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group and
are in compliance with the relevant accounting standards and
principles, applicable laws and disclosure provisions required
of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for each
financial year have been prepared on this basis.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, therefore the Directors continue to adopt
the going concern approach in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

Statement of the Company’s external auditor’s responsibilities
in respect of the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.

AEBCDEFIBBILIERABRTHE
B i 3B I P P B 12 6 /2 3 A — 2 pn SR EL
TR & A ERE PRI (B ) o

ARERETRNBELBI - EFCR
HABEHHPINEE - AREORE
EUERERETE  RERA  REE
BB BB TEARAKREETRA
BB BARARS - A EFE
SELBHERINBBRBANEE -

BEERREMAGEUBERRE
AENEE
EERAR T RES AR EREGANE
HE BERAEERRNGEASERRE
A T b I Bk AN A2 (B AR - A R B
e BFAEEeENRERR - EA
FRUR FTRAIBTNRERY B S
R AEESHBEENGANBEE
BB R BEERS -

REEMRM - WESHARERY A S
RABFHBERERNBRERRBANEM
BN - Bt - EFRHmBE S W IHHREE
EERMISECENEE -

BERAARRBINERZBEN ARG M SRR A
AENETNBRAFNAFERERE T HBF
MAZEENERE

89

Li Bao Ge Group Limited Annual Report 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
TEERRE @)

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that inside information should be announced promptly
when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information are as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong;

e the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy
on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive
distribution of information to the public through channels
such as financial reporting, public announcements and
the Company'’s website; and

e the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information

General Meetings with Shareholders

The AGM is a forum in which the Board and the Shareholders
communicate directly and exchange views concerning the
affairs and overall performance of the Group, and its future
developments, etc. At the AGM, the Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are available to attend
to questions raised by the Shareholders. The external auditors
of the Company is also invited to be present at the AGM to
address to queries of the shareholders concerning the audit
procedures and the auditors’ report.

The forthcoming AGM will be held on Thursday, 24 June
2021, the notice of which shall be sent to the Shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting on
Requisition by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”). EGMs shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. If, within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisition(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisition(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
and Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of
Directors

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, Shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with
detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room B, 5/F, On Fat Industrial Building,12-18 Kwai Wing
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified by the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary
will ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration
office of the Company. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under the Article will commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length
of the period during which such notices to the Company may
be given will be at least 7 days.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may direct their enquiries concerning
their shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars.
Shareholders may also make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information has been
made publicly available by the Company. All written
enquiries or requests may be forwarded to the Company’s
head office or by fax to (852) 2525 2081, or by email to
ir@starofcanton.com.hk.

The addresses of the Company’s head office and the
Company’s share registrars can be found in the section
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Dividend Policy

It is the policy of the Company to pay annual dividends
to the Shareholders if the Group is profitable, operations
environment is stable and there is no significant investment or
commitment made by the Group.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia: (a) the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance; (b) the Group’s expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans; (c) the
Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level; (d) any
restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders; (e) general economic conditions,
business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal and
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Company; (f)
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates; (g) the Shareholders’ and investors’ expectation
and industry’s norm; and (h) any other conditions or factors
that the Board deems relevant.

The Board may update, amend, modify and/or cancel the
dividend policy upon review from time to time.
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Investor Relations

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to
investors, the Group delivers information of the Group to the
public through various channels, including general meeting,
public announcement and financial reports. The investors are
also able to access the latest news and information of the
Group via our website (http://www.starofcanton.com.hk).

In order to maintain good and effective communication, the
Company together with the Board extend their invitation to all
Shareholders and encourage them to attend the AGM and all
future general meetings.

The Shareholders may also forward their enquiries and
suggestions in writing to the Company to the followings:
Address: Room B, 5/F

On Fat Industrial Building
12-18 Kwai Wing Road
Kwai Chung, New Territories
Hong Kong

Email: ir@starofcanton.com.hk

Significant Changes in Constitutional
Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there had been
no significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements (the
“Financial Statements”) of the Company for the Reporting
Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in Note 41 to the Financial Statements of this annual report.
During the Reporting Period, the Group is principally engaged
in the operation of a chain of Chinese restaurants in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

An analysis of the Group’s results for the Reporting Period by
segments is set out in Note 7 to the Financial Statements of
this annual report.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the Reporting Period,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the business of the Group, is set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 25 of this annual report. These discussions form
part of this Directors’ report.

Results and Appropriations

The Group'’s results for the Reporting Period are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 123 to 124 of this annual
report.

Dividend

The Directors has resolved not to recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the Reporting Period (2019: Nil).

Summary of Financial Information

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 243 to 244
of this annual report.

94  FEmERERAT —T-TEEEHRE

EFeMARERRAREPNFRLL
BREAMHHRER (MBEHRK])

ARBNEBXRBERAREER -HEEH
BRARMNEBZXBEARNAFE RSV H R
RWMEMN - RBEH AEEETEEFRE
KB = BB SR X

HEFSI DR A RERE RO REDN
HRANFEREMBERRMET?

EHEE

AEERERNEFE DA (BRERAEER
HMEERR M THABERZEANASEE
5 A BE B YR R B R B /R BT i ) B AR 4R
EHREFSEBLAIEERE MmN —
fle ZENMBRESTEREN D -

RER DK
RS B9 SO S R T R 5 123
Z124ANGEA B RAMRAKEE -

iz 2
EZCHRARATEZE KRS HEA R
B(ZE-NF &) -

MBERBE

AEBRBELEAMRFENEE BE
REEMEHNANFREREF 243E244F o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
BEEERE @)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the Financial
Statements of this annual report.

Share Capital

The Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2020
was 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 27 to the
Financial Statements of this annual report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in Note 37 to the Financial Statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of this annual
report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution as calculated in accordance with the Articles
and the Companies Law Cap. 22 of Cayman Islands, was
approximately HK$28.4 million inclusive of share premium
and accumulated losses.
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Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31 December 2020:

(i)  due to the nature of the Group’s business, its customers
mainly represented walk-in customers from the general
public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not
practicable to identify the five largest customers of
the Group, and the Group did not rely on any single
customer; and

(i) the aggregate amount of purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 45.5% (2019: approximately 34.5%)
of the Group’s total purchases, and the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 16.2% (2019:
approximately 10.8%) of the Group’s total purchases.
To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital had an interest in
these major suppliers.

Directors

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Wai Sze Josephine (appointed on 7 January 2020)
Ms. Zhu Xueqin (appointed on 7 January 2020)

Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter (resigned on 16 May 2020)

Mr. Wong Ka Wai (resigned on 24 June 2020)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David (re-designated from executive
Director on 7 January 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (appointed on 7 January 2020)
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (appointed on 1 September 2020)
Mr. Liu Chi Keung (resigned on 1 Septernber 2020)

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (resigned on 14 February 2020)
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In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting after his/her appointment
and any Director appointed by the Board as an additional
Director shall hold office only until the next following AGM.
Accordingly, Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth will retire from office
as Director at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible,
offer himself for re-election. Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the
Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (not including those Directors who are subject to re-
election pursuant to Article 112 as described above) shall
retire from office by rotation, whereby Mr. Chan Chun Kit and
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David will retire from office as Directors at
the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Biographical Details of Directors

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
62 to 67 in this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 40 to
the Financial statements of this annual report, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
holding company or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interests directly or indirectly
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time
during the Reporting Period.

Management Contracts

No management contracts concerning the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the Reporting Period.
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Contract of Significance

There was no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, and a Controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Remuneration of the Directors, Senior
Management and the Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 9 to
the Financial Statements of this annual report.

The emoluments paid or payable to the Senior Management
of the Group who are not Directors were within the following
bands:
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Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=t—HLEE

2020 2019

—E2-%F —FNF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AEK

Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,000 7 7T 3 4
Permitted Indemnity Provision BEGTRERME

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors, managing Directors,
alternate Directors, auditors, secretary and other officers of
the Company for the time being shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or
about the execution of their duty in their offices or in relation
thereto.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the directors
of the Company and directors of the subsidiaries of the
Group.
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Emolument Policy

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and the Senior Management, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market practices. The remuneration of
the Directors is determined with reference to the economic
situation, the market conditions, the responsibilities and
duties assumed by each Director as well as their individual
performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of which
are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Pension Schemes

Details of the Group’s pension schemes for the Reporting
Period are set out in Note 3.22 to the Financial Statements of
this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Businesses

Set out below are details of certain catering businesses of
the Directors which were not included into the Group as at
the date of this report. As disclosed in the Prospectus, Mr.
Chan was engaged in such businesses as at the date of
Listing. For further details, please refer to the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Excluded
Catering Businesses” in the Prospectus.

Excluded Catering Businesses

Li Jia Cha Chaan Teng (EEZ % &)

As at the date of this report, Mr. Chan, one of the Controlling
Shareholders, an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and the CEO, held 100% of the interest in a cha chaan
teng named Li Jia Cha Chaan Teng (B 3= 252 B2) located at
the same building where the Shenzhen Restaurant is located
(the “Li Jia Cha Chaan Teng”). The Li Jia Cha Chaan Teng
is a Hong Kong-style cafe that serves Asian and Western
foods in a casual environment which commenced business in
November 2014.
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As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Directors were of the
view that there is a clear delineation between the business of
the Li Jia Cha Chaan Teng and the Group’s business and any
competition between the two businesses is remote due to
difference in terms of (i) operation model, (i) target customers,
(i) management, (iv) staff and (v) location and variety of
selections for customers.

Taking into account the above and the fact that: (i) the
Group’s restaurants aim at providing exquisite cuisine to
customers with medium to high average spending and has
no intention to step in the business of cha chaan teng in
near future; and (i) the Group intends to utilise its funding
to expand its current business, the Directors confirm that
the Group has no present intention to acquire the Li Jia Cha
Chaan Teng. Mr. Chan has undertaken to the Group that (i) in
case of disposal of any interest in the Li Jia Cha Chaan Teng,
he shall promptly notify the Group in writing and the Group
shall have the first right of refusal to acquire the interest in
the Li Jia Cha Chaan Teng to be disposed of by Mr. Chan
within 30 days (or such longer period the Group is required to
complete the approval procedures required under the Listing
Rules from time to time) after receipt of the notice from Mr.
Chan; and (i) that so long as he holds any beneficially interest
in the Li Jia Cha Chaan Teng, he will procure that the Li Jia
Cha Chaan Teng will not engage in any business that will or
will likely compete with the Group’s business.

The Group shall only exercise the right of first refusal upon
approval of all the independent non-executive Directors
(who do not have any interest in such transaction). Mr.
Chan and the other conflicting Director (if any) shall abstain
from participating in and voting at and shall not be counted
as quorum at the meeting of the Directors for considering
whether the Group will exercise the first right of refusal.
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Non-Competition Undertaking

On 16 June 2016, Zhao Tian, Mr. Chan, Mrs. Chan, Bright
Creator, Hong Cui, Mr. Wong, Sun Foo Sing, Sky Gain, Mr.
Ho, Mr. Tsui K. F., Mr. David Chow, Mr. Anthony Chow,
Mr. Lam, Ms. Tsui Y. Y., Mr. Tsui C. K. and Mr. Tam (each
a “Covenantor” and collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
competition”) in favour of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the
Covenantors has irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken
to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries)
that, save and except as disclosed in the Prospectus,
during the period that the Deed of Non-competition remains
effective, she/he/it shall not, and shall procure that her/his/its
close associates (other than any member of the Group) not
to develop, acquire, invest in, participate in, carry on or be
engaged, concerned or interested, or otherwise be involved,
directly or indirectly, in any business in competition with or
likely to be in competition with the existing business activity
of any member of the Group within Hong Kong and such
other parts of the world where any member of the Group may
operate from time to time, save for the holding of not more
than 5% shareholding interests (individually or with her/his/
its close associates) in any company listed on a recognised
stock exchange and at any time the relevant listed company
shall have at least one shareholder (individually or with her/
his/its close associates, if applicable) whose shareholding
interests in the relevant listed company is higher than that of
the relevant Covenantor (individually or with her/his/its close
associates).

Each of the Covenantors further undertakes that if she/he/
it or her/his/its close associates other than any member of
the Group is offered or becomes aware of any business
opportunity which may compete with any business
opportunity of the Group, she/he/it shall procure that her/
his/its close associates to promptly notify the Group in
writing with such required information to enable the Group to
evaluate the merits of the relevant business opportunity and
the Group shall have a right of first refusal to take up such
opportunity and jointly pursue the same with the relevant
Covenantor. The parties shall then negotiate in good faith with
respect to a collaboration for such new business.
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The Group shall, within 30 days after receipt of the written
notice (or such longer period if the Group is required to
complete any approval procedures as set out under the
Listing Rules from time to time), notify the Covenantor(s)
whether the Group will exercise the right of first refusal. The
Group shall only exercise the right of first refusal upon the
approval of all independent non-executive Directors who
do not have any interest in such opportunity. The relevant
Covenantor(s) and the other conflicting Directors (if any) shall
abstain from participating in and voting at and shall not be
counted as quorum at all meetings of the Board where there
is a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest including
but not limited to the relevant meeting of the independent
non-executive Directors for considering whether or not to
exercise the right of first refusal.

Details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been set
out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Pursuant to the announcements “AMENDMENT OF
CONCERT PARTY DEED AND CHANGE IN CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS” dated 8 October 2019 and 9 April 2021,
the QOutgoing Parties are no longer bound to comply with the
Concert Party Deed to cast unanimous vote collectively for
or against all resolutions in the shareholders’ meetings of the
Company and discussions of the Group together with the
Remaining Concert Parties. As a result, the Outgoing Parties
are no longer part of a group of shareholders of the Company
acting in concert with the Remaining Concert Parties; and the
Outgoing Parties and the Remaining Concert Parties are no
longer deemed to be interested in the Shares held by each
other.

As a result of the aforesaid, (i) the Outgoing Parties ceased
to be the Controlling Shareholders of the Company; and (i)
Mr. Chan, Mrs. Chan and Bright Creator became the only
Controlling Shareholders of the Company.
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Since the Outgoing Parties ceased to be the Controlling
Shareholders of the Company, each of them will no longer
be bounded by the Deed of Non-competition. The Remaining
Concert Parties, on the other hand, will continue to be
bounded by the Deed of Non-competition. The terms used
herein shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
announcements dated 8 October 2019 and 9 April 2021.

The Directors confirmed that the undertakings contained in
the Deed of Non-competition have been fully complied with
by the Group and the Remaining Concert Parties during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above and as of the date of this report,
none of the Directors or Controlling Shareholders or their
respective close associates had any interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, nor any other
conflict of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group.

All the independent non-executive Directors are delegated
with the authority to review the Deed of Non-Competition.
The independent non-executive Directors were not aware of
any non-compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition given
by the Controlling Shareholders from the date of the Deed of
Non-Competition and up to the date of this annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the Reporting Period.

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities
during the Reporting Period.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Apart from the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, “Substantial Shareholders” and
Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” and “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the Reporting Period
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective associates nor was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective associates to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

Equity-Linked Agreement

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into during Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is devoted to promoting and maintaining the
environmental and social sustainable development of the
regions where it operates. As a responsible enterprise,
the Group strives to comply with all the relevant laws and
regulations in terms of the environmentally friendliness, health
and safety, adopts effective measures, conserves energy and
reduces waste.

A report on environmental, social and governance matters

is set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 26 to 61 of this annual report.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and the risk of non-
compliance with such requirements. The Group conducts on-
going reviews of newly enacted/revised laws and regulations
affecting its operations. The Company is not aware of any
non-compliance in any material respect with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group during the Reporting Period.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers,
Customers and other Stakeholders

The Group understands that the success of the Group’s
business depends on the support from its key stakeholders,
including employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators
and shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of
its key stakeholders.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee together with the management have
reviewed the accounting standards and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and
financial reporting matters in connection with the preparation
of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirmed that, the Company has maintained the
amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report.

Auditor

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited (“THKC”) has been
appointed by the Directors as the first auditor of the Company
since the Listing date. THKC will retire, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.
A resolution for its re-appointment as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. The Financial
Statements have been audited by THKC.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme on 16 June 2016. The terms of the share option
scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the share option scheme
which was adopted on 16 June 2016 are set out in Note 42
to the Financial Statements of this annual report. No share
options were granted since the adoption of the share option
scheme and there were no share option outstanding as at 31
December 2020.

Disclosure of Interests

Al

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meanings of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such director or
chief executive is taken or deemed to have under such
provision of the SFO) or which were required pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
of members of the Company, or which were required,
pursuant to standard of dealings by Directors as referred
to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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() Long Position in the Shares ) RERMHETFE

—

Number of  Approximate
Shares held/ percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature interested in  shareholding
BE/HEER
Esps 53/t E HNRHHE REMOBIL
Mr. Chan Chun Kit Interest in a controlled 376,531,400 37.65%
(“Mr. Chan”) corporation (Note 1)
PBRIR G2 & (TR D) Rzt EE R (1)
Interests held jointly with 37,083,100 3.71%

other persons (Note 2)

BE A T AR S

(Fft5F2)
Beneficial owner 18,630,000 1.86%
ExBEBA
Ms. Chan Josephine Wai Beneficial owner 3,275,000 0.33%
Sze (“Ms. Chan”)
BREFLL ((FREL]) E=EAA
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David Interest in a controlled 74,156,200 7.42%
(“Mr. David Chow”) corporation (Note 3)
ER R 5 4 (TR F A& D) ZEHEERER (FE3)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick Beneficial owner (including 5,412,500 0.54%
interest of his spouse)
HEEEHE ExBEA(BRELEBER)

Notes: MEeE -

(1) Mr. Chan owns 50% of Bright Creator Limited (“Bright Creator”), 1) BRELEEBEEZBERAR ([ER])50%H#
which in turn owns approximately 37.65% of the entire issued wmo MEBAERMNEARRA2HME BITREL
share capital of the Company. As such, Mr. Chan is deemed, or 37.65% ° FHt - MBFLBEKRAIME - RE
taken to be, interested in all the Shares held by Bright Creator EWRAUEERBREFENZDRMHTES
for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Chan is a director of Bright R - REEAEENES -

Creator.

(2)  Mr. Chan (together with Ms. Liu Siu Kuen, Bright Creator, Sun @ WREBHA-Z—AFAA-TEBN—BIT
Foo Sing Development Limited (“Sun Foo Sing”), Mr. Ho Wood BALRY BEHA-T—NFNANAHH
Yam, Mr. Tsui King Foo, Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter, Ms. Tsui ZEROAMBHE=-ZT—NF+ANBHNE=H
Yuk Yi and Mr. Tsui Chi Kit) are parties acting in concert (having AR REECGERBEDBRL  EE -
the meaning ascribed to it under the Code on Takeovers and HEEREARAR(FHEL]) fDEREE -
Mergers) pursuant to the concert party deed, the supplemental BBRELE  MERLE  BREBLXLIREE
deed and the second supplemental deed dated 25 September BERE) B—BUTEA T (BCR RN K& O
2015, 6 June 2016 and 8 October 2019, respectively. As such, SFAD T FRRE) - Bt - BREE GERE
Mr. Chan (together with Ms. Liu Siu Kuen, Bright Creator, Sun DR T BE - -HEE - MERLE RE
Foo Sing, Mr. Ho Wood Yam, Mr. Tsui King Foo, Mr. Lam Kwok BERE  BREBIX T REEGTE) HREH
Leung Peter, Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi and Mr. Tsui Chi Kit) together NNE R B BEITIRANEI43.22% ©

control approximately 43.22% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company.

(38)  Mr. David Chow owns 37.5% issued shares of Sky Gain B RABRAREEHFEERBEEARAF (KAL)
Investments Limited “Sky Gain”, which in turn owns 37.5% B BTG - MABREERAEZH
approximately 7.42% of the entire issued share capital of the BETIRAL7.42% ©
Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020,
none of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were: (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO to (including interests and
short positions in which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, entered in the register as
referred to therein; or (c) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interest and short
positions of the persons/entities (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares

BREXFBEEN RZZE_TF+=
A=+—H BEARAEEREE
TERABRAR RS A EMIEHER
(EERFBHFLHBEEROIEXVE) B9 E
faIikfn - HEARGH K EEZ R - A ()
BRIEZF MR EGROIEXVEE 7 R8H
BHAERAG LB AH R AR
(BERBEZFRBABRINENZFIRX
REFEAIRIERANOER AR
()R 15 3 75 K HAE 1R 0 52 352 fR &2 A
ZIGAIER Z R Mav R KX A 3 (0)
BEFETAUGNS AR A KB
HIMEZR OR B o

FERRREMALTRERAD -8
RO REEENEZER AR

RZTEZTF+A=+—H H#A
AL/ BER(EEREARIRSTHA
BERIN) AR B S AB B AR 1D P
ERBRELFRBPEHRAIIEXVEE2R
F 3D EME X BAA R R R TR
RARIBEF KRGO EIB6 B

RIAGEMERMP ALEMERK
KB :

AR K 4 B

Number of
shares held/

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature interested in shareholding
BE/BERER
i 5%/1%8 ZBROBE RESOBEIL
Bright Creator Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 55,713,100 5.57%
B BEEME T AL HARENER (1)
Beneficial owner 376,531,400 37.65%
EREEA
Ms. Liu Siu Kuen Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 37,083,100 3.71%
BARLt EHEME T AT HARENER
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 376,531,400 37.65%
REtlEEER (ME2)
Interest of spouse (Note 2) 18,630,000 1.86%

BBt (P eE2)
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Number of
shares held/

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature interested in shareholding
BE/ BEER
s S/ HE ZBROBE RESIBIL
Sun Foo Sing (Note 3) Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 432,244,500 43.22%
7= 2 (M=3) EEME T AL HARFENER (1)
Mr. Ho Wood Yam Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 395,166,400 39.52%
&R EE EEME T AT HRARFENER (1)
Beneficial owner 37,078,100 3.71%
ERBEAA
Mr. Tsui King Foo Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 432,244,500 43.22%
BRBELE EEME T AL HARFENER (HFE1)
Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter  Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 432,239,500 43.22%
MER &% EEME T AT HRARFENER (1)
Beneficial owner 5,000 0.00%
ERBEAA
Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 432,244,500 43.22%
hEBRL EEME T AL HARFENER (1)
Mr. Tsui Chi Kit Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 432,244,500 43.22%
REBREE EEME T AT HRARFENER (1)
Ms. Lui Wai Har Interest of spouse (Note 4) 432,244,500 43.22%
FEERT BB (MaE4)
Ms. Chan Bik Yuk Mariana  Interest of spouse (Note 5) 432,244,500 43.22%
REELZL ABiEa (MaEs)
Mr. Fong Man Wai Interest of spouse (Note 6) 432,244,500 43.22%
AXEEE Ao B (PHEE6)
Sincere Expand Limited Beneficial owner (Note 7) 66,912,500 6.69%
HABR AT BB AT
Richmax Investment Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 7) 66,912,500 6.69%
(H.K.) Limited
ERRE(FR)ERAR Xt EBRER (HE7)
Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 7) 66,912,500 6.69%
RIS & R ERER (FFE7)
Mr. David Chu Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 7) 66,912,500 6.69%
RERLE RzthxEER (HE7)
Ms. Tsang Siu Lan Interest of spouse (Note 8) 66,912,500 6.69%
ZES Ltn AofB#Es (PHEEs)
Ms. Phyllis Woon Kink Cheng  Interest of spouse (Note 9) 66,912,500 6.69%
:1f) Regum Ao B (PHEE9)
Sky Gain Beneficial owner (Note 10) 74,156,200 7.42%
RB EnEAA (EE10)
Mr. Chow Chor Ting Anthony Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 10) 74,156,200 7.42%
B & REHER R (HFE10)
Ms. Lau Lai Ngor Interest of spouse (Note 11) 74,156,200 7.42%
BE L AofBEss (Pt 11)
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Number of
shares held/

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature interested in shareholding
e/ BEER
& /8 ZBROBE RESABIL
Ms. Cho Sin Sum Fion Interest of spouse (Note 12) 74,156,200 7.42%
EELLL A (P 12)
Ms. Yuen Wan Yee Betty Interest of spouse (Note 13) 5,412,500 0.54%
Yuen Wan Yee Betty 2z - FefB# s (H3E13)
Notes: B
Ms. Liu Siu Kuen, Bright Creator, Sun Foo Sing, Mr. Ho Wood Yam, BREBHINA-_ZTE—FRFHALA-+HH =

Mr. Tsui King Foo, Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter, Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi and
Mr. Tsui Chi Kit (together with Mr. Chan) are parties acting in concert
(having the meaning ascribed to it under the Code on Takeovers and
Mergers) pursuant to the concert party deed, the supplemental deed
and the second supplemental deed dated 25 September 2015, 6
June 2016 and 8 October 2019, respectively. As such, Ms. Liu Siu
Kuen, Bright Creator, Sun Foo Sing, Mr. Ho Wood Yam, Mr. Tsui King
Foo, Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter, Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi and Mr. Tsui Chi Kit
(together with Mr. Chan) together control approximately 43.22% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company.

Ms. Liu Siu Kuen owns 50% issued shares of Bright Creator. As such,
Ms. Liu Siu Kuen is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares
held by Bright Creator for the purposes of the SFO. Ms. Liu Siu Kuen
is the spouse of Mr. Chan and is deemed or taken to be interested in
all the Shares in which Mr. Chan has, or is deemed to have, an interest
for the purpose of the SFO.

Each of Mr. Ho Wood Yam, Mr. Tsui King Foo, Mr. Lam Kwok Leung
Peter, Mr. Tsui Chi Kit and Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi owns 50%, 25%, 10%,
7.5% and 7.5% issued shares of Sun Foo Sing respectively.

Ms. Lui Wai Har is the spouse of Mr. Tsui King Foo and is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Tsui King Foo has,
or is deemed to have, an interest for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Chan Bik Yuk Mariana is the spouse of Mr. Lam Kwok Leung
Peter and is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares in
which Mr. Lam has, or is deemed to have, an interest for the purpose
of the SFO.

Mr. Fong Man Wai is the spouse of Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi and is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi has, or
is deemed to have, an interest for the purpose of the SFO.

Sincere Expand Limited is an investment-holding company
incorporated in the BVI and wholly-owned by Richmax Investment
(H.K.) Limited. Each of Mr. David Chu and Mr. Cheung Yuen Chan
owns approximately 46.67% and 40% issued shares of Richmax
Investment (H.K.) Limited respectively. As such, each of Richmax
Investment (H.K.) Limited, Mr. David Chu and Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau
is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares held by Sincere
Expand Limited for the purposes of the SFO.
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8. Ms. Tsang Siu Lan is the spouse of Mr. David Chu and is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. David Chu has, or is
deemed to have, an interest for the purpose of the SFO.

9. Ms. Phyllis Woon Kink Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau
and is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares in which
Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau has, or is deemed to have, an interest for the
purpose of the SFO.

10.  Each of Mr. David Chow, Mr. Chow Chor Ting Anthony and Mr. Tam
Chie Sang owns 37.5%, 37.5% and 25% issued shares of Sky Gain
respectively.

11. Ms. Lau Lai Ngor is the spouse of Mr. Chow Chor Ting Anthony and
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr.
Chow Chor Ting Anthony has, or is deemed to have, an interest for the
purpose of the SFO.

12.  Ms. Cho Sin Sum Fion is the spouse of Mr. David Chow and is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. David
Chow has, or is deemed to have, an interest for the purpose of the
SFO.

13.  Ms. Yuen Wan Yee Betty is the spouse of Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick
and is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Prof.
Wong Lung Tak Patrick has, or is deemed to have, an interest for the
purpose of the SFO.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, Sun Foo Sing, Mr.
Ho Wood Yam, Mr. Tsui King Foo and Mr. Lam Kwok Leung
Peter, Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi, Ms. Tsui Chi Kit, Ms. Lui Wai Har, Ms.
Chan Bik Yuk Mariana, Mr. Fong Man Wai, Sky Gain, Mr.
Chow Chor Ting Anthony, Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David, Ms. Lau
Lai Ngor and Ms. Cho Sin Sum Fion ceased to be substantial
shareholders of the Company after 31 December 2020 . For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
9 April 2021 and up-to-date disclosure of interests searches
at https://www.hkexnews.hk/Shareholding-Disclosures/
Disclosure-of-Interests?sc_lang=en.

Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

The Company had not entered into any connected transaction
during the Reporting Period which is required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules. Related party transactions entered
into by the Group during the Reporting Period are disclosed
in Note 40 to the Financial Statements.
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13.  Yuen Wan Yee Betty 2+ A& BEEHR NS
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Other than the related party transaction disclosed in Note 40
to the Financial Statements, no transactions, arrangements,
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director or his connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered into or
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time
during the Reporting Period.

2021 Annual General Meeting and Closure
of Register of Members

The forthcoming AGM will be held at the Causeway Bay Star
of Canton Restaurant, which is located at 21/F, Lee Theatre
Plaza, 99 Percival Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong on
Thursday, 24 June 2021 at 10:00 a.m.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 21 June 2021 to Thursday,
24 June 2021 (both days inclusive) during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Boardroom Share Registrars
(HK) Limited at 2103B, 21st Floor, 148 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 June
2021.

Events after the Reporting Date of 31
December 2020

Details of the events after the reporting date of 31 December
2020 has been disclosed in Management Discussion and
Analysis section of this annual report. Save as disclosed
therein and elsewhere in this annual report, the Board is not
aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that has
taken place subsequent to 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Chan Chun Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B X HENRE

K@

TING HO KWAN & CHAN

To the Members of Li Bao Ge Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Li
Bao Ge Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
1283 to 242, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

TABEREEMEHABRAF
TING HO KWAN & CHAN CPA LIMITED

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building, 249-253 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZEEIRE (@)

Carrying value of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of

restaurants

Key audit matter

HRESSHE

YR BERRBEREAESE
ERREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHHESNAEREZSEE

Refer to notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

ERMG A EREN T 15K 16

The carrying value of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$63,216,000
and HK$131,654,000 respectively. The total
depreciation charge and impairment loss for the
year ended 31 December 2020 were approximately
HK$61,544,000 and HK$18,549,000 respectively.
R—_ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—HH' EEEHY
X BELARBMEREEEZEEESNOR
63,216,000/ 7T % 131,654,000/8 7T : BlE — & —
ZEFT_A=T—HLEFE @AFERZIEA
BEE5 18 5 B4 561,544,000 7T & 18,549,000 7
7'E o

Depreciation rates, useful lives and the carrying value
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are reviewed annually by the management.
The Group carries these assets at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment. Such review takes into account any
unexpected adverse changes in circumstances or
events, current and forecast market values, including
declines in projected operating results, negative
industry or economic trends. The Group extends or
shortens the useful lives and/or makes impairment
provisions according to the results of the review.
ERESFHYE BMELARBREREEED
TEX AEAFHALREELETEES - E85E
1 bl & B R AR AR, R 5T AT B RAE R RERE A
R-ZEEEQEREMBATERNTHIREE
bk E=H BRIRBEANE BEEAINLERSE
TR BEXAXLEEE - SEEEFKBRES
RRIERSKMERAGERAFERR SIERERE -

We identified the above assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as a
key audit matter due to its significance in amount
and a high degree of management judgement
involved in the assessment.

HREAME BMELAREMEAEEENGE
BEEREE HEBREAEGETHESEHL -
Bt H PR FEE AR ETEE -
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We have reviewed the management’s estimates
and assertions regarding, estimated useful lives
and residual values of the property, plant and
equipment as well as the management’s plan for the
future maintenance or decoration on the restaurant
premises.

B EHEREHYE  BEIKBOMEEAIE
REMEFRBENG NEBR  AREREEHE
BSHE R K EEHEENE -

We have reviewed the management’s estimates and
assertions regarding, the appropriate lease term and
incremental borrowing rate that used for recognising
the right-of-use assets.

R ENHERERNERAEREEEMRBNGE
B EF B NOR B TN KPR eV (5T R A -

We have discussed the current status of leasehold
improvements and right-of-use assets of each
restaurant with the management team regarding any
indicator of possible impairment identified.

B E M ER A e HIRBENIRREEIREEN®
BRBENEEREREREEENRN

We have assessed the reasonableness of
management’s assumptions and critical judgements
by using the past restaurant operation experiences
within the Group.
BMERBRAEENBEEENEELR THE
BENRZNEARAGREESIE -

We concluded that management’s conclusion and
estimates on assessing the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to be
consistent with the available evidence.

BRIEwRE  ERERTEYE BB RERER
ERAEEENRBMEMELNAERRMEFTEERESR
BIE—H -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZEEIRE (@)

Business combination

Key audit matter

HREESER

EBa ot

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHENAEEZEE

Refer to Note 36()) to the consolidated financial staterments

2R & B BB 72 36()

In July 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of
70% equity interest in Yaoliang (Shanghai) Food Co.,
Ltd (B R (E)8) RMmAR A A In this connection,
the Group is reqwred to determine the fair value
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date. Management
determined the fair value with assistance from
an independent professional valuer (the “external
valuer”). The purchase price was allocated to the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
under HKFRS 3. As a result, intangible assets
including trademarks amounting to approximately
HK$10,904,000, cooperation contracts amounting
to approximately HK$3,152,000 and the
remaining goodwill amounting to approximately
HK$15,329,000 were recognised at the acquisition
date.

RZE-_ZF+H EEEENKERER (LEF)
REmARANAT70%IE - it - EEBEEETEF
WEEERFAZABERKERRENATE - B

BELE LB EEGEN ([FMEER]) 8%
MTEEATE - BEERIEBERY RS LER
FIRDMEFTNIBR A BRI B ERFTFRENEE -
Hit - EmEEE (BEREE) £10,904,000% 7T
A 1EA BI#A13,152,00078 7T & 8 T 78 2 15,329,000
BT E R UCE B EIRER o

We have assessed the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external valuer engaged by the
Group.
B2
Bl RBIM -

BE&HE

BHEINBEERMNE N T

We have obtained the valuation report in relation
to the purchase price allocation for the acquisition
and assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies adopted by management and
the reasonableness of discount rates used by
management.

BMERSEERENBEEE ENMERS - I
AETEREBERANMGEAZNEEHARER
BRANTRENGEN

We have evaluated the information provided
by management to the valuer by inspecting the
underlying contracts and documents.
BMEEBREERGLH XY -
WEEER -

AP E IR R

We have challenged and assessed the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the
cash flow forecast for the valuation of the identified
trademarks and cooperation contracts.
BHE&RELTHTReRERATARERD
EERERaEFaRETHENEZERRNEGIENT

We have evaluated the reasonableness of the
sensitivity analysis performed by management on
the key assumptions to understand the impact of
reasonable changes in assumptions on the identified
trademarks, cooperation contracts and goodwiill.
%HEZ‘« AETEREEHERBRRETHRRGE

IITHEEMN LAHf?%HE]‘“E’J/\EE‘*Z{K;TEE%%%IJ%
- AEaRNEENTE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZEEIRE (@)

Business combination (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRESER

3 S YT )

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHENAEEZEE

We focused on this area because accounting for
acquisition requires the identification and valuation of
intangible assets and the allocation of purchase price
to the assets and liabilities acquired, which involves
a number of judgements and assumptions.

BMAIE T ENRERZWE L @tRERTE
HETEEETANRGEEARBBEEEIRE
FIBEERBE WP RASH G RRE -
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We have checked the mathematical accuracy of
the calculations of the fair value of the identified
trademarks, cooperation contracts and goodwiill.
BMEYERENEE  aEaRNEEN A TES
BB EmEET TRE -

We found that the significant judgements and
estimates involved in the fair value assessment of
the identified trademarks, cooperation contracts and
the recognition of goodwill arising from the business
combination were properly supported by available
evidences.

BIEE - BHEBRET  SEARMEEBSH
EERNEEN R TFEG S & E K HE G
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZEEIRE (@)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Key audit matter

HREESER

7R WL T 1

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHENAEEZEE

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI E R BERE T 17

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s goodwill
included in intangible assets was approximately
HK$16,326,000. As described in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group is
required to, at least annually, perform impairment
assessments of goodwill. For the purpose of
performing impairment assessments, goodwill
was allocated to an individual CGU. Management
performed the impairment testing by comparing the
recoverable amount of the CGU and the carrying
amount of the CGU.
R_E_ZEF+_A=+—H A BEEEE
& ER S E 4 516,326,000 7T © fn4R & B 15
BRMF7TE - EEEAELBFHHELT
WMER G - RTETREN G BEEHIRESE
—ERReELEL -BEEERALRESESE
BUMAIWEeBENREELSMNRAEET
AR -

We have evaluated the obijectivity, capabilities and
competence of the external valuer engaged by the

Group.
BMEFNE ESEEEANIINBEERMZTEHLE -
AP S

We have assessed the key assumptions used in
management’s cash flow projections, including,
among others, budgeted/forecasted revenue and
results of operations, long term growth rate and
discount rate applicable to the CGU.
ZHEdAEEEER@nBAPMERAMNERXR
RR 51E (KR eiE) BE ARG EEE -
REERENMEARREEFEUNTRERSE -

We independently tested, on a sample basis, the
accuracy of mathematical calculation applied in the
valuation models.
BMEEMEFRBLAAGERR P HEFHE
B AEREE o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZEEIRE (@)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

(Continued)

Key audit matter

BEETER

B2 R E L @

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHENAEREZEE

For the year under review, the recoverable amount
of the CGU has been determined by management
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections specific to the CGU and applying a
discount rate which reflects specific risks relating to
the CGU, with the assistance from an independent
professional valuer (the “external valuer”).
REBEFEE ReELBEM KB EEIHE
BN - EEGERD ([FMEDEER]) MBI 2 T -
REABEZEZ BREELAUNEERERER
AARREIREEEBMFERRAOBIREEE -

The impairment testing of the goodwill required
management to make certain assumptions and
estimates that would affect the reported amount
of the goodwill and related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
BENRENAFTERERBES D RRME - A
BREAMETREZEFS M B HRRTALEEDN
ZmeBIEERE -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
balance involved and the significant judgements and
estimates required in determining the recoverable
amount of the CGU.

BPEILEE RESHDHNEREAN BE
EHReEABEGRA KBS REEFELERHE
FfEEE o
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We have obtained an understanding of the current
and expected future developments of the CGU
and factors that might affect key assumptions and
estimates of the cash flow projections and discount
rate applicable to the CGU.
ﬁﬁﬁ%‘ﬁﬁﬁ%?i SR A RTEHARRNER
/R L/{&Tﬁlé%;%}ﬁ\%mﬁﬁ E'J%UL)EHTJ_AIE%FE
BUMNFTREZEABRRRMEAEE -

We have assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
related to the impairment of goodwill in the context of
the applicable financial reporting framework.

BHMERBBERNYT B REERTEHEERENR

Egﬁz&%ﬂim 5 e

We have evaluated management’s assessment

about reasonable possible changes in relevant key

assumptions and estimates.

ﬁWEJEuH?EIEIExHB AR RRNGE S E
BEEE AT o

We concluded that the management’s conclusion and
estimates on the impairment assessment of goodwiill
to be consistent with the available evidences.

AR 7,% B 12 [E AT 14 7 B R B 89 4 o A0 5T B
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B 2B ENERE (@)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the Other
Information. The Other Information comprises all information
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon (“the
Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of the Other Information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B 2B ENERE (@)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B 2B ENERE (@)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BYZBERE (@)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Kam Chuen.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kam Chuen

Practising Certificate Number: PO6175

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{2 —F — T4+ - H=+—HIFF/Z

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt 5T FTET FHET
Revenue Y &5 8 236,397 352,861
Other income H AUz A 8 21,728 1,813
Cost of materials consumed FiT FEM B 2R (99,108) (126,648)
Employee benefits expense EERAFAX 9 (66,158) (94,956)
Depreciation e 10 (61,544) (60,655)
Other expenses HAx 10 (61,474) (89,381)
Operating loss REREIE (30,159) (16,966)
Gain on early termination of REBRIFTHE W TR
leases, net 21,059 -
Impairment loss on property, Y BB RERERE
plant and equipment B 15 (5,015) (3,579)
Impairment loss on right-of-use £ A& E R EEE
assets 16 (13,534) (18,155)
Finance costs B FE R AR 11 (13,201) (11,3993)
Loss before income tax BRAT BB AIE B (40,850) (50,093)
Income tax FriS 8t 12 74 (9,248)
Loss for the year FAEE (40,776) (59,341)
Other comprehensive expense H2EMAX
ltem that may be reclassified AR EBREMIAEBR
subsequently to profit or loss: FIE R :
Exchange difference arising BMEBINEBIT B IRE
from translation of financial B FE H = 5E
statements of foreign
operations 3,214 (800)
Total comprehensive expense F A2 HEBI X B
for the year (37,562) (59,641)
Loss attributable to: AT ATE(EEE
Owners of the Company PININCIET RN (39,817) (59,341)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR I 2 (959) =
(40,776) (59,341)
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o CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
GeBBkEMEERER @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

2020 2019

—ECBRE  —TNF

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Bt 5T FTET FAET

Total comprehensive expense LTATEEZERY
attributable to: HAFE

Owners of the Company ViN/NIEZ PN (36,850) (59,641)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M 2 (712) -
(37,562) (59,641)
Basic loss per share BREAXNEE 14 HK cent (3.98) HK cent (7.29)
AL AL

The notes on pages 130 to 242 form an integral part of these F 130 B EF 242 B I B Ik H 454 7%
consolidated financial statements. WEBARK IS o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ra MR R

As at 31 December 2020 Bl 2 —F —FF+ -~ A=+—HIFFZF

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B E FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #12% « B E MR E 15 63,216 70,282
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 131,654 167,961
Intangible assets | EE 17 30,516 =
Rental deposits Heke 22 14,871 14,948
Deposits placed for life insurance R EZ R IRE(RE
policies 18 2,176 2,115
Deposit paid for property, plant ¥ % - = R ZED
and equipment biegoia 1,873 =
Deferred tax assets BRI E E 34 852 1,144
245,158 056,450
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 12,375 13,968
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 21 5,462 3,844
Deposits, prepayments and B BFIEREM
other receivables JE U SR IE 22 18,006 16,943
Loan receivable U E 23 10,000 =
Current tax recoverable AT Y =] BN AR AR IR 855 1,287
Amount due from F’EH& HZIEIE AR AR R
a non-controlling shareholder I8 24 9,825 -
Amounts due from related J?EJ%Z B2k NI /O]
companies 40 70 -
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 25 - 11,029
Cash and cash equivalents BekREEEY 26 28,949 71,151
85,542 118,222
Total assets EEH#T 330,700 374,672
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners A 2A F#EH AELER
of the Company
Share capital IR 27 10,000 10,000
Reserves i 45,949 82,799
55,949 92,799
Non-controlling interests FEERER 4,105 -
Total equity SR 60,054 92,799
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

N

mEMBRRR @

As at 31 December 2020 {2 —F —FF+ —A=+—HIFFZF

2020 2019
—E-ZE — N
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET TET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities krBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 128,209 141,598
Provision for reinstatement costs  {&18 B S # & 33 4,573 4,743
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEEE 34 2,902 =
135,684 146,341
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables B 5 IR 28 19,418 16,350
Accruals, provisions and FEEHER  BER
other payables B W EL A & 1~ SRR 29 29,329 26,026
Amount due to a non-controlling  F& st — 4 E 2 B A 3R
shareholder FXIE 24 241 =
Contract liabilities A ,\’7 =KL 30 21,823 16,590
Bank borrowings RITE 31 22,408 7,444
Lease liabilities HESE 32 40,431 67,267
Current tax payable FET BN EATH IR - 543
Provision for reinstatement costs  {&18 B AN # & 33 1,312 1,312
134,962 135,532
Total liabilities BEHE 270,646 281,873
Total equity and liabilities ERzREEAE 330,700 374,672
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (49,420) (17,310)

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March
2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHAN Chun Kit
PR 4 £
Director

EF

The notes on pages 130 to 242 form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

==\ 7 ﬁ_
n‘l-_]_\ * PN \n

BEIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =

— = — =
= —ZE

—E_FFEf A=+ —HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LINGE TN 0
Retained
Exchange profits/ Non-
Share Share Other translation (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves reserve losses) Total interests equity
REH/
Bx  ROEE HHEE EXRE (ZRER) B FEREE  ERAE
HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000
Thr TRt TR  TEr TR TR TR T
(note 37)
GiE#1)
Balance as at 1 January 2019 W-E-1E-B-AREH 8,000 56,134 4,39 (419 9351 110,690 - 106%
Loss for the year EnER - - - - ) pI) - )
Cumency translaton cferences ERpEEE - - - (300) - (300) - (30
Total comprehensive expense EnEARSAE

for the year - - - [0 E934) (9641 - sk
Issue ofnew shares under ights RitRAZTIHROSE (Hi2r)

Issue, net (Note 27) 2000 13750 - - - 45,750 - 45750
Dividend pald BfRE - - - - (4,000) (4,000) - (4,000
Balance asat 31 December 2019 W-S-AEtZR=1-ANER 10,000 9,884 4.3% (@491 (B3990) 92,79 - 92,7199
Balnceasat tdaniay 2020 M-R-%F-A-AHEH 10000 9884 %6 @e)  B%0) % - R
Acquiton of subsideres ote 36 WEEME A (K3 ) - - - - - - 4,084 4054
Capital contributon rom REARERNTE

non-controllng interests - - - - - - 763 763
Transactions with owners EREANRS - - - - - - 4817 4817
Loss for the year EnER - - - - 08t (30817) (959)  (40,776)
Curency ranslton diferences gHugzgE - - - 2067 - 2967 ur 3214
Total comprehensive expense EnERSAE

for the year - - - 2967 (39817 (36,850) (12 (37,562)
Balanceas at 31 December 2020 W=3=FETZAZT-RAER 10000 %8884 436 (154 (98] 559 405 60054

The notes on pages 130 to 242 form an integral part of these £ 130 & & 2 242 Ej BB B I 454 B 78

consolidated financial statements.

R D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ IE%/)ILE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % — & —F4#+ — A =+—HIFF/ZF

2020 2019
—E-ZF —T-hNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5T FTET FHET
Operating activities RETER
Cash generated from operations & & FT1SIE & 26(b) 28,352 60,884
Income tax paid, net ENPIESY =S (101) (2,210)
Net cash generated from RETERAEZRE
operating activities HEE 28,251 58,674
Investing activities RETE
Interest received 2 60 588
Purchases of property, BEWMXE  BEREE
plant and equipment (11,108) (40,055)
Consideration paid for WEEH B AR EMARE
acquisition of subsidiaries (22,338) -
Net cash used in investing RBETHFAZES
activities FEE (33,386) (39,467)
Financing activities RMEEE
Proceeds from shares issued BIBHRZFITRG 2
under rights issue, net of Ffr?% FIE - R
issuing cost TR 27 - 45,750
Borrowing costs paid EH Ft R AR 26(c) (304) (513)
Dividends paid BT E - (4,000)
Repayment of bank borrowings — {B#E R1T{& 26(c) (7,444) (3,123)
Repayment of other borrowing {838 E fb f& X 26(c) (1,363) =
Proceeds from new bank FrERITIE KT 1E5IA
borrowings 26(c) 20,000 -
Capital contribution from non- 2R B IEIE R E AT E
controlling interests 763 -
Capital element of lease ENESERE D
rentals paid 26(c) (38,074) (35,655)
Interest element of lease ENE2FEE D
rentals paid 26(c) (12,302) (10,880)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
MERERER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5T FTET FHET
Net cash used in financing METBHMAZRE TR
activities (38,724) (8,421)
Net (decrease)/increase in ReRBLEEY (BL),/
cash and cash equivalents I EE (43,859) 10,786
Cash and cash equivalents FURERESEEY
at beginning of the year 26(a) 71,151 60,447
Effect of foreign exchange [EXE BT
rate changes 1,657 (82)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY
at end of the year 26(a) 28,949 71,151

The notes on pages 130 to 242 form an integral part of these 25 130 B = & 242 E BB 23 BB UL F 4R A BT 7S

consolidated financial statements. ] B AEBK 2B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —ZF —ZF 4+ — A =+—H I}

1

==

General Information

Li Bao Ge Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 September
2015 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office
and principle place of business are Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands and Room B, 5/F, On Fat Industrial
Building, 12-18 Kwai Wing Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong, respectively. The Company’s
shares (the “Shares”) were initially listed on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing”
and the “Stock Exchange” respectively) since 30 June
2016 (the “Listing Date”). The listing of the Shares was
transferred to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
since 5 September 2018 (the “Transfer of Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the operation of a chain of Chinese
restaurants in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the controlling shareholders (having the
meaning ascribed to it in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”))
of the Company, include Bright Creator Limited, Mr.
Chan Chun Kit and his spouse Ms. Liu Siu Kuen, Sun
Foo Sing Development Limited, Mr. Ho Wood Yam, Mr.
Tsui King Foo, Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter, Mr. Tsui Chi
Kit and Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

2

Statement of Compliance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. A summary
of significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out in note 3 in the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements (the “Notes”) section of the annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2020 to be sent
to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The HKICPA has issued certain new, revised HKFRSs
and interpretation that are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 4 of the Notes provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AN
:%vj?:l

ISR (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESFHBEHE
Policies

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$”) which is the same
as the functional currency of the Company and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
where otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in note 6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 3.1 REEXE (@)

When preparing the consolidated financial KRR e MERER AKED
statements, the Group’s ability to continue as AHERFELEMEES - BEAN
a going concern has been assessed. These SER-_ZF_FF+_A=1+—
consolidated financial statements have been B 87t 8) B &5 %8 /R 47 49,420,000
prepared by the Directors on a going concern BT ERDERBECEEER
basis notwithstanding that the Group had net RZSREMHRE - EFRR -
current liabilities of approximately HK$49,420,000 ERINTHER  AKBEHEER
at 31 December 2020. The Directors are of the ME SR RAREITHIIHN
opinion that the Group will have sufficient funds MBRLE -

to meet its financial obligations when they fall due
in the foreseeable future taking into account the

followings:

() the Group had interest-bearing bank M E/Q\* T_TET_A=1+—
borrowings of HK$22,408,000 as at 31 CAKREMFRRITES
December 2020, of which approximately 7/?‘!’22’408’000%7_5 i
HK$3,099,000 is repayable within one 3,099,00078 JL AR — F W&
year. The remaining interest-bearing bank i® o HERKY 19,309,000 TTH)
borrowings, amounting to approximately sHBSRTT A B I B Rt ok
HK$19,309,000 were classified as current R 1R B SR AE R R 4 BB
liabilities due to the existence of a repayment BARDARG AKERKIS
on demand clause in the loan agreements. The 1 5 R 1T 1 7 - A AN AR [ AR
Group will actively negotiate with the bank for TEREPRETER AU
the renewal of the Group’s bank borrowings BREGVENES  WE
when they fall due in order to secure necessary AL BT /Eu 5'3 x Eij A
funds to meet the Group’s working capital and S RUBRK - EFRE - A
financial requirements in the foreseeable future. & B A R SRAT fE AR B By
In the opinion of the Directors, the Group EHARE

will be able to roll over or refinance the bank
borrowings upon their maturity;

(i) at 31 December 2020, the Group obtained (i) E/Q\— T_FFET_A=+—
banking facilities of HK$39,058,000 with an CASBEESRITRE
unutilised amount of HK$16,650,000; 39,058,000 AT RERATHE

#%16,650,000 & 7T :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 3.1 (REEXE (@)

(i) the Group is actively negotiating with banks to (i) AEBERZERITER
obtain additional funds to finance the Group’s URBHADS  RAKERN
working capital and improve the liquidity %Eﬁ@%ﬁ&ﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁ
positions; EARM ©

(v) AEEBEEREESGER
AASERBEEHRAY 8
BELEANERRAEER

(iv) the Group will continue to take active measures
to control expenses through various channels
including human resources optimisation and

management remuneration adjustments; and EFM &
(v negotiating with the landlords for rent (v I COVID-1945% & i 85X F &
FHHEER -

concessions due to the impact of the
Coronavirus disease 2019.

After taking into consideration of the above factors
and funds expected to be generated internally from
operations based on the Directors’ estimation on
the future cash flows of the Group, the Directors are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due in the foreseeable future and consider
that it is appropriate for the consolidated financial
statements to be prepared on a going concern
basis because there is no material uncertainty that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 3.1 REEXE (@)

Should the Group be unable to continue its
business as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amount, to provide for future
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities to current assets and
liabilities respectively. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

3.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBEHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests 3.2 B AR RIFERERS (&)

136 rmpeRsRAR —E-T£4%

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 3.18.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)

Policies (Continued)

3.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests 3.2 B AR RIFERERS (&)

(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3.10), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

3.3 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.3 Business combinations (Continued)

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date except for leases for which
(@) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying
asset is of low-value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in
the fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

3.4 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires the Directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

Policies (Continued)
3.4 Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit
or any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash generating unit within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

3.5 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FE®
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Policies (Continued)

3.5 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are recognised at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

—  Trademarks 8 years
—  Cooperation contracts 8 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Group who makes
strategic decisions.

3.7 Foreign currency transactions

(@)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
which is also the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income within ‘other
gains and losses’.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FE®

Policies (Continued)

3.7 Foreign currency transactions (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of this consolidated statement of financial
position;

(i) income and expenses for each profit and
loss account are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)

Policies (Continued)

3.7 Foreign currency transactions (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the equity holders of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (that is,
reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or jointly controlled entities that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences

is reclassified to profit or loss.

3.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than crockery,
utensils and linen are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income during the

financial period in which they are incurred.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 3.8 1% - MERRE (&)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values, if any, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold Shorter of 5 to 8 years and
improvements the unexpired lease term

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Initial expenditure incurred for crockery, utensils and
linens is capitalised and no depreciation is provided
thereon. The cost of subsequent replacement for
these items is recognised in profit or loss when
incurred.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made
on assets under construction in progress until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and
available for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets is reclassified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (see note 15).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)

Policies (Continued)

3.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains and losses’
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

3.9 Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (note 3.10).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of right-of-use assets are
determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
right-of-use assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method as
follows:

— The Group’s interests in buildings situated
on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and the
buildings’ estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of completion.

— Items of plant and equipment arising from
leases of underlying plant and equipment are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of the leases and their estimated useful
lives.

Where parts of an item of right-of-use assets have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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Policies (Continued)

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

3.11 Financial assets

(@) Classification and measurement of
financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.

Debt instruments that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Policies (Continued)

3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(@) Classification and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI):

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s rental deposits, deposits placed
for life insurance policies, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan receivable,
amount due from a non-controlling shareholder,
amounts due from related companies, pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Contingent consideration receivable is
subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)
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3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Amortised cost and interest income

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) excluding expected
credit loss (“ECL”), through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount
of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
The amortised cost of a financial asset is
the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method
of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

On the other hand, the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for debt instruments
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including rental deposits, deposits placed
for life insurance policies, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan
receivable, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, amounts due from related
companies, cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (j)
the contractual cash flows that would be due to the
Group if the holder of the loan commitment draws
down on the loan and (ii) the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Measurement of ECLS (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

- loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

MEBERAIERNEEFR

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Measurement of ECLS (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

For loan commitments, the date of initial recognition
for the purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to
be the date that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of a loan commitment, the Group
considers changes in the risk of default occurring
on the loan to which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt securities that are measured
at FVTOCI (recycling), for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

MEBERAIERNEEFR

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
lease receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

3.14 Contract assets and Contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 3.26) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) in accordance with the policy set out
in note 3.13 and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 3.15).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 3.26). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 3.26).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.15

3.16

3.17

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses. See note 3.11 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade and other
receivables and note 3.13 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECLS”) in
accordance with the policy set out in note 3.13.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.18

3.19

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facilities will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facilities to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FE®

Policies (Continued)

3.20 Borrowing costs

3.21

All borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
are incurred since no borrowing costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualified assets.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current tax

The current tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.21 Current and deferred tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position. However, the
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.22 Employee benefits

(@)

Pension obligation

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The full-time employees of the Group in the
PRC are covered by various government-
sponsored basic pension insurance under
which the employees are entitled to a monthly
pension based on certain formulas. The relevant
government agencies are responsible for the
pension liability to these retired employees. The
Group contributes on a monthly basis to these
pension plans. Under these plans, the Group
has no obligation for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. Contributions
to these plans are expenses as incurred and
contributions paid to the defined-contribution
pension plans for a staff are not available to
reduce the Group’s future obligations to such
defined-contribution pension plans even if the
staff leaves the Group.

The Group’s contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period they
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurances

The PRC employees of the Group are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurance and other
employee social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds
based on certain percentages of the salaries
of the employees, subject to certain ceiling.
The Group’s liability in respect of these funds
is limited to the contributions payable in each
period, and recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination
when the Group has a detailed formal plan
to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after the reporting date are discounted to their
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

€)

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees in Hong
Kong upon cessation of their employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefits that the employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior
periods.

A provision is recognised in respect of the
probable future long service payments
expected to be made. The provision is based
on the best estimate of the probable future
payments which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group to
the end of the reporting period.

3.23 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-
in-first out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

3.24

3.25

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Other provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Provision for reinstatement costs
Provision for reinstatement costs represents
the present value of the estimated cost for the
restoration work of the Group’s leased retail shops
agreed to be carried out upon the expiry of the
relevant leases using a risk-free pre-tax interest
rate. The provision has been determined by the
Directors based on their best estimates. The
related reinstatement costs have been included
as leasehold improvements in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)

Policies (Continued)

3.26 Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the good
or service may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. The Group can recognise revenue over time
if the Group meets one of the following conditions:

3.26

provides the benefits which are received and

consumed simultaneously by the customer as
the Group performs;

creates or enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use

to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to

date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods

and services.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest

method.

164 nmmesspin —T-Teag

&
2

R

=)
=

A

Wy 25 W R
BEEAHBA

W s ek RIS e 12 Hl
EXPHER - EmaRFHE
HEREE - BREREARE —&MHE
RER - BURRK A 4 IRERE
ARBHNENEERTE - WAKHE
FaToGrz— MIAKERE
S — B By A O AR e

RAEEBARREEHRTF
[R] B W B M FE R RO 25

AEBEAORKAZREH
BEPEGINEE &

TERELAHASEEEAR
wMEE  BASE ARG
HMITEENNABEREFES
E A EX B D HFKIA

HEEMZEH#EE —BERAE
B Bllam iR EBESOHEL
DETRBTENEENEEHE
BB WEENEFERSEMR

ok AR 75542 1) B ) By ) R TR R

MEHNBERELD  AEFIR
HEARMEFNRBBI2M@EA - A
WEZNEEFETHER R E
R 5 F I B B 3R 2R B IR A9 FE IR 5K
BREFE MABWARZRE
BAREBIRT - WAENES
MEIMH  BAEBERHEEKRR
EHz BIRIBEZ A OERM U
HBEREERAMEREFEGHE
FEAENFEMS
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition
policies are as follows:

(@) Revenue from restaurant operations

Revenue is recognised at a particular point
in time when customers have control over
the goods, which is generally the time when
the related catering services are rendered to
customers.

(b) Revenue from sale of food ingredients

Revenue from sale of food ingredients consists
of sales of dried foods sold to third parties and
is recognised at a particular point in time when
customers have control over the goods, which
generally coincides with the date of delivery.

(c) Revenue from cooperation with Freshippo

Revenue is recognised at a point in time
when customers have control over the goods,
which is generally the time when the goods is
delivered to or consumed by the customers.

Other income
Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see note 3.13).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.27 Leases 3271 HHE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBEHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.27 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 3.9).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

327 HE (@0

TERAETEA (8)

ML HEREK HERERHEHENK
ZN-i- ﬁﬁ%'JEFaﬂEZE'J%TéﬁHE‘iE%
MEEHAE - TEHORRE — R
RN BEAENKTIBREE
HERENE AUREEL
VEETHIRNBE P X o

REEERCRERNEREE
EVNZRRAGE BRHEER
BE i BN EERE Ak
ZHI X ERBEENT - AR
EENEMTLZERKAR - £i8
RBERT EREEENKAKNT
BREFREBHREBEEIER
HEAEESZEEMEMEE
MEFTRAN  ZRABFTRER
RELHREMERNBEEESR -
£ 1 & ERE 1R R A AR = R 5H
FrEMRERBERYIR (RHES.9)

**Xﬁfﬁ SR Sk i=f 2 Q1
XEPMEBFE HEAKEEY
ﬁﬁkﬁ%ﬁﬁ#ﬁ%%ﬁ%@
BRAEE EEHFIHAEEE
BB ERTEREE &H
IRPEERMELEZS  AlE
ENEHERGE -RUSTAE
MAEHERGER ERREE
B B T B A AR B AR B - Bk e i
%%é?%%ﬁ@aﬂxﬁ Al
REFEBmATIRR -

AEBGEREEERHEERE
D RI25 R ERE MBI R o

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2020 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FE®

Policies (Continued)

3.28

3.29

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the members of the
Company and its subsidiaries is recognised as a
liability in the consolidated statement of financial
position in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the shareholders or director, where
appropriate, of the respective companies.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group
entity are initially measured at their fair values and,
if not designated as at FVTPL and do not arise from
a transfer of a financial asset, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be acquired without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)

Policies (Continued)

3.30 Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)

Policies (Continued)

3.30 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

4 Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs, which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020. The Group has adopted the following new and
revised standards for the first time for the current year’s
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior periods and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

4

Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities
and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the
inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have also
narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

4

Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2021; and (i) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted
and shall be applied retrospectively.

The Group has early applied the practical expedient to
all qualifying COVID-19-related rent concessions. Rent
concessions totalling approximately HK$8,276,000 have
been accounted for as negative variable lease payments
and recognised in other expenses in the consolidated
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the
lease liability. There is no impact on the opening balance
of equity at 1 January 2020.

The Group has not early applied any other new standard,
amendment or interpretation that has been issued but is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 43).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

B RS ERRMIEE (@)

5 Financial Risk Management

5.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk
exposures to changes in foreign exchange rates
and interest rates.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Foreign exchange risk arises when
recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not
the Group entities’ functional currency.
Most of the income and expenditures
of the Group are denominated in HK$
and RMB, which are the functional
currencies of the respective group entities.
Even HK$ is not pegged to RMB, the
historical exchange rate fluctuation on
RMB is insignificant. Thus there is no
significant exposure expected on RMB
transactions and balances. Hence, the
Group does not have any material foreign
exchange exposure. The Group has not
implemented or entered into any type of
instruments or arrangements to hedge
against currency exchange fluctuations
for the years under review. As at 31
December 2019 and 2020, the Group
did not have any outstanding hedging
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A MBERARME @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(Continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from bank deposits and borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by bank deposits
held at variable rates. The interest rate
profile of borrowings is disclosed in Note
31. The bank deposits generate interest at
the prevailing market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances and
bank borrowings. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates on
bank balances and the Best Lending Rate
arising from the bank borrowings.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
effective interest rates for the variable-
rate bank borrowings at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, if the
effective interest rates of bank
borrowings amounting to approximately
HK$22,408,000 had been 1%, 2%,
3% higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, profit before tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$89,000, HK$178,000, HK$267,000
lower/higher respectively, mainly as a
result of higher/lower finance costs on
floating rate borrowings.

As at 31 December 2019, if the
effective interest rates of bank
borrowings amounting to approximately
HK$7,444,000 had been 1%, 2%, 3%
higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss before tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$89,000, HK$179,000, HK$268,000
lower/higher respectively, mainly as a
result of higher/lower finance costs on
floating rate borrowings.

B 7% [ B B 2B (@)
51 BB EKEZE @)
(@) MiHRE R (&)

(i) HzmERDLEFE
/7/)7 (Z""
RZZE EE‘T‘ H
=9 = BB

22,408,0005%75%&??1%%’?
HE R A R 8,
1% 2% 3% MFT B
Hib & giE &
7 BR B A F 9 Bl
/18 11 #4789,00058 7T »
178,000 7T ~ 267,000
B EZARNIZEERE
KE BB AR AN 0,
DETER

—E—NAFE+ A
+—HB WAHY
7,444,00078 JT IR 17 8 3
/B BR A R 80, A

1% 2% 3% MFTHB
HthEH@F &
IR B AT & 1B 8 2 BIR
> /18 AN#789,000 7 TT
179,000 7T ~ 268,000
BT TEZEANEEME
RE BR B AR AN 30, R
LR o

12

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2020 1 75



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5 HMERERERE @

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 5.1 B E M EZE (@)
(b) Credit risk b) EERR

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables, loan receivable, other
receivables, amounts due from related
companies and amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from bank deposits
is limited because the Group places their
deposits to certain reputable banks with a
minimum rating of “investment grade” ranked
by an independent party. See note 26 for
further disclosure on credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group applied simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected credit loss allowance
for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2020

5 BIXERER @
51%&@@@%@)

(b)

e
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TREGEBARER =T
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and 2019: N8B 5 EKE Em&%#%
BENEH
2020 2019
o ki “I-hE
2020 2019 Gross Gross
Expected  Expected Loss  carrying Loss  caming
Status R lossrate  lossrate allowance  amount  allowance amount
ZECRE CE-AF
BRER: RMERE FREE RESE PRRE  RALE
% %  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000
% % Tz TExr TEr  TER
Current S 3%-5% 19%-2% 145 4,780 50 3,401
00 30 days past due BH0E30A 14%  4%-10% 30 214 9 219
3110 60 dlays past due AHNZ60H 15%-17%  6%-11% 32 206 10 165
Over 60 days past due BHEE0 AN £ 0%-20%  15%-25% 118 587 4 170
325 5,787 11 3,965

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
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B 7% [ B B 2B (@)
51 BB EKEZE @)
b) EERE (@)

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivable, other receivables, amounts
due from related companies and amount
due from a non-controlling shareholder

The Group applied lifetime approach to
measuring expected credit losses for loan
receivable, other receivables, amounts due
from related companies and amount due from
a non-controlling shareholder. The Directors
of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these
amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-month ECL.

In determining the 12-month ECL for loan
receivable, other receivables, amounts due
from related companies and amount due from
a non-controlling shareholder, the management
of the Group has taken into account the
historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate. The Group
has considered the consistently low historical
default rate in connection with payments, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in these
Group’s outstanding balances is insignificant.
Accordingly, no loss allowance based on
12-month ECL was provided for these assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

©)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with debt covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from banks and other financial institutions to
meet their liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. Management believes that
there is no significant liquidity risk as the
Group is able to generate net cash inflow
from operating activities and has sufficient
committed facilities to fund its operations and
debt servicing requirements and to satisfy
its future working capital and other financing
requirements from its operation cash flows and
available bank financing.

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specially, bank borrowings with a
repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights.
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Lessthan Between1 Between2 Over
1year and2years and 5 years 5years
—&£R —EWE R EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
TERT TET FET THER
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-EF
+ZA=+-H
Trade payables B A ENFIR 19,418 - - -
Accruals and EFrERREM
other payables BT 308 29,329 - - -
Amount due to a non- B —RIEERRR
controlling shareholder HFB 241 - - -
Bank borrowings |ITER 24,062 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 51,374 44,405 80,707 28,833
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©)

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5 HMERERERE @
5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 51 B EKEZ @)
Liquidity risk (Continued) ) AEMRER (&)
Lessthan  Between 1 Between 2 Over
1year and2years and5 years 5 years
—FR  —ERE ZERF  AFHNLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THET THT
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-NE
t=A=+-~H

Trade payables B2EMNFIR 16,350 = - -

Accruals and FEEr B A R AR
other payables A 25,382 = = -
Bank borrowings RITIEN 7,531 - - -
Lease liabilities AEMERIE 69,209 53,664 88,909 43,853

The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the bank loan
agreements. The amount includes interest
payments computed using contractual rates.
Taking into account the Group’s net assets,
the Directors do not consider that it is probable
that the bank will exercise its discretion to
immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the bank loan agreements.

180 smmeRsRAR —E-TEEERE

TRBE M B R B REE F
KEVIRTT 8 KR IBR1TE K
195 =% PIT 8 B9 195 E 48 7K {5 SR AF
HHEHBEST - EETSR
BREAGHMERFTENNE
KB -REEAEENEE
FECBEERRRTAET
EERAFERNBBRE -
E=MHE BRRITERSE
SRFRITE R G ZEAED
FHEIERBHER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #

R oE—FFEF =+ —FHIFE

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5 HMERERERE @

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c)

5.1 5 ks R = ()
MEDIE R (80

Maturity Analysis — term loans subject to
a repayment on demand clause based on
scheduled repayments

IMESN-BEREREERRNEHER

(B BB B H)

Over1year Over2years
but less than  but less than

Within 1 year 2 years 5 years
BR—F BBWE
R—FR EMER EHER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FET TET
At 31 December 2020 R_T_ZTHF
+=-—A=+—H 3,690 5,286 15,086
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-—A=+—8H 7,531 - -

5.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as interest-bearing debts
divided by capital. Debts are calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position). Capital represents total equity
of the Group.

52 EXEMEE

AEBEAEERRRERAS
BEEFRHERE - ARBIRER @ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M HRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5 HMERERERE @
5.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 5.2 EXERER (&)

The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
during the year, was to lower the gearing ratio to
an acceptable level. The Group’s gearing ratio at 31
December 2019 and 2020 were as follows:

AEERAFERSTENRE
ERBERELXBREEAEN
HKF - REEBR-_ZTE—NAFR
—E_EF+_A=+—HHE

EBELERNT

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

—g-%5 -Z-h%

t=A=+-B +=A=+-AH

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT FET

Bank borrowings (note 31) RITIE R (FIFES1) 22,408 7,444

Lease liabilities (note 32) HEBE (M:E32) 168,640 208,865

Total borrowings Rt 191,048 216,309

Total equity of the Group REEBER 60,054 92,799

Gearing ratio BERRELL = 318.13% 233.09%
5.3 Fair value of financial assets and financial 53 kREMHBRAABITESH

liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their fair values as at
31 December 2019 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

6

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal to the related actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(@ Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment
The Group has significant investments in property,
plant and equipment. The Group is required to
estimate the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment in order to ascertain the amount of
depreciation charges for each reporting date.

Useful lives are estimated at the time of purchase
of these assets after considering future technology
changes, business developments and the Group’s
strategies. The Group performs annual reviews
to assess the appropriateness of the estimated
useful lives. Such review takes into account any
unexpected adverse changes in circumstances or
events, including declines in projected operating
results, negative industry or economic trends and
rapid advancement in technology. The Group
extends or shortens the useful lives and/or makes
impairment provisions according to the results of
the review.

6 EFEGETEFTRAE

AEERBEBELRLEMBEAZE (B
EHREBRATRAEENRKEMHTER)
oF BEEE SR e i

AEBERKELABARBR BH
BE ENEAAELEEHEE
PRERBER - P RERTEMBRFEE
BENABENRAEAFLERAE
R ERRR A G RERmRALDAT o

@ ME BMERREH LA
F 1
REBEBAEESRYE K
B REME - AEEAMGE - K
FREBEHEOAIERFH LT
EREAHNTEHEE -

ZEEEMNAERFHRNEAR

Ko 7 & B B SRBE 1R 4F i fh & o
SESFETRIUFEERMA
AAREHREAEE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

6 Critical Accounting Estimates and 6 T E&&H b5 & H @
Judgements (Continued)

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based
on fair value less costs of disposal or value-in-use
valuations. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing:

U)

(i)

(i)

whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable;

whether the carrying amount of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and

the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of its operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2 —FE - FF+ - A =+—HIFE

6 Critical Accounting Estimates and 6 TE&:{hsHRHE @
Judgements (Continued)

(c) Income tax (c) FrER

The Group is subject to current tax in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred
tax assets based on the enacted or substantively
enacted tax rates (and laws) and the best
knowledge of profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the deferred tax assets
are expected to be utilised. In assessing the amount
of deferred tax assets that need to be recognised,
the Group considers future taxable income
and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning
strategies. In the event that the Group estimates of
projected future taxable income and benefits from
available tax strategies are changed, or changes
in current tax regulations are enacted that would
impact the timing or extent of the Group’s ability to
utilise the tax benefits of net operating loss carry
forwards in the future, adjustments to the recorded
amount of net deferred tax assets and income
tax expense would need to be made. In addition,
management will revisit the assumptions and profit
projections at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

6 Critical Accounting Estimates and 6 T E&&H b5 & H @
Judgements (Continued)

(d) Provision for reinstatement costs

(e)

Provision for reinstatement costs is estimated at
the inception of leasing property with reinstatement
clause and reassessed at each reporting date with
reference to the latest available quotation from
independent contractors. Estimation based on
current market information may vary over time and
could differ from the actual reinstatement cost upon
closures or relocation of existing premises occupied
by the Group.

Estimated impairment of trade and loan
receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of loss allowance for trade and loan
receivables based on the credit risk of trade and
loan receivables. The loss allowance amount is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of expected
future credit losses. The assessment of the
credit risk of trade and loan receivables involves
high degree of estimation and uncertainty as the
management of the Group estimates the loss rates
for debtors by using forward-looking information.
When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment
loss may arise accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

6 Critical Accounting Estimates and 6 TEg&

Judgements (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 3.27, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term. In
determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation. The lease term is reassessed when
there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any
increase or decrease in the lease term would affect
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.

Contingent liabilities

The Group is exposed to the risk of litigation in
the course of its normal operation. The Group will
make provision and/or disclose information as
appropriate. Changes in the assumptions around
the likelihood of an outflow of economic resources
or the estimation of any obligation would change
the value recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

(f)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

7

Segment Information

The chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) has been
identified as the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “CEQ”) who reviews the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
CODM has determined the operating segments based
on these reports.

The CODM assesses the performance based on a
measure of profit after income tax. The CODM considers
all business is included in a single operating segment.

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of food
catering services through a chain of Chinese restaurants.
Information reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment
focuses on the operation results of the Group as a whole
as the Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete
operating segment financial information is available.
Accordingly, the Group has identified one operating
segment — operation of restaurants and no operating
segment information is presented.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, there
are no single external customers contributed more than
10% revenue of the Group.

Geographical information

The following table presents revenue from external
customers for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2020 by geographic area.

7

7 #R &

TREEREE (EEEEREE))
ERIAEEAABREUATERRAR
HERERNOAD ATRAE (1784
)  EBRERKEENBEMBRE

BEKEDHR -

TERERRERBRASEHEEN
MFEFERR  BRAEERBAA—
BEEBNEEDE -

AEEIERBTABREHELE
BHRE - ARAKEEBEER I
BEINKEEDHYBER  wmE
BREAXAREBEARDEER KT
HRANENEBER LT E/AEEN
RERE - Bt AKREEIIR—EL
ENB-EERT MALEZIEZED
BB -

BE-_ZT—NWEr-_ZE_ZFTF+_A
—t-—HUEFEE TEEIIFTER
HAREEWZNERBIBE10% °

i B &
TEREWRFIEBE_FT-NAFR=
E_THE+_A=+t—HLEFERXE
ShEREE R R 2

2020 2019
—E-%2F TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Revenue from external customers B /N EFEEE UL
Hong Kong BB 79,479 187,227
Mainland China R A b 156,918 165,634
236,397 352,861

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

8 Revenue 8 W=
An analysis of revenue during the years ended 31 BE_ZE—NGFR-ZE_ZFF+_A

=t—HLEFENKEDITOT

December 2019 and 2020 are as follows:

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Revenue from customers and REBHEBEINEF KR
recognised at point in time
Revenue from Chinese restaurant B E E B M
operations 208,972 344,967
Revenue from Thai Cuisine FREBEFEB R E
restaurant operations 7,553 7,823
Revenue from cooperation with HEFEERE
Freshippo 19,646 -
Revenue from sale of food HERM R
ingredients 226 71
236,397 352,861
Other income Hapug A
Interest income on short-term bank %2 BBER 1777 2 B9 F1 UL A
deposits 60 588
Interest income from deposits KESBRRBERERN
placed for life insurance policies FEWA 101 105
Forfeiture of deposits received R E WiR e - 49
Reversal of provision for B SR K AN B
reinstatement cost 338 -
Government subsidies and RS 475 B Ko £2 B (B 5T0)
incentive (note i) 9,207 567
Government grants (note ii) AT & B (B &Eii) 11,340 -
Miscellaneous income IR 682 504
21,728 1,813
Total revenue and other income WK H U A4 %8 258,125 354,674
Total interest income on financial REBERAGTENEREE
assets measured at amortised cost  F B UL A 42 %8 161 693
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.t NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBEmERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

8 Revenue (Continued)

Notes:

(0] Government subsidies represent the refund of VAT in respect of
COVID-19 from the PRC Government. The government incentive
represented the amounts granted by the Economic Development
Bureau of different districts in the PRC to support the Group’s
contribution to local economy with no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies and are recognised as other income upon receipts
during the year (2019: same).

(i)  Government grants represent subsidies from Catering Business
Subsidy Scheme under the Anti-epidemic fund in respect of COVID-19
from the Hong Kong Government.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by geographic markets is disclosed in Note 7.

(i) Contract liabilities
The Group has recognised the following revenue-

8 Uiz @)
et -

[0} 5T %8 B & B BR i 5 COVID-19 45 F R &
FiRB o BT 4EE) A P B [ i [ /O 48 7 (R
RAXFBAEEEE CEELERmRHE
S 4 R E ARG SRS AR IEM I - W KEE
BRAFEERABEMBA (ZF—NF : HHR) -

(i) A& B A BSBUA B COVID-197E [ & i &
HEETRIUMEREAMEBTEIGE THRAL -

R MSEASTNREETF A O RS
ZAFWBERIMFET

(i) 8HEE
REBEHRRUTHZEEEEL

related contract liabilities: aE:
2020 2019
—EEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Contract liabilities (note 30) EHEE (M:E30) 21,823 16,590
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to (i) MENEBRIANKR
contract liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRITFABEBRNELEESNE
recognised in related to carried-forward contract BEEENKEESE -
liabilities.
2020 2019
—EZEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Revenue recognised that was FFAFEUIEHBEEH
included in the balance of B B BRI e
contract liabilities at the beginning  (Fff & 30)
of the year (note 30) 8,033 10,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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e HRERMNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

9 Employee Benefits Expense

9 EERAFAX

2020 2019

—EEF —E—NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Wages, salaries and bonuses T HaekiEe 63,194 89,314

Directors’ fees Tk 474 561
Pension costs — defined contribution 3R K& AR A — 57 5F it T &t 21

plans (note a) (Ffzxa) 2,490 5,081

66,158 94,956

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans
The Group’s net contributions to pension plans are
mainly for employees in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Summary of the pension plans are as
follows:

U)

(i)

The Group contributes to an MPF Scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong, under which
the Group and each employee each makes
monthly contribution to the scheme at 5% of
the qualifying earnings of the employee, subject
to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2019: HK$1,500)
per month. Contribution totalling approximately
HK$221,000 and HK$60,000 were payable to
the MPF fund as at 31 December 2019 and
2020, respectively.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China also
contribute to retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China at a percentage of their
salaries in compliance with the requirements
of the respective municipal governments in
Mainland China. The municipal governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligation of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group in Mainland China.

(@) BT - REHRKGE
AREBEZERREAEHFFEE
EREARTEAMEEMR
BRASEEIBRNT

(i)

AEEREFTEEERLS
HEAEEEE BUEAE
BhEEEHEAREREZE
BRARSKIETAMHK

FAERBLRR1,5008 T
—ZF— jl¢ 1,500/ 7T) °

R= ﬂi&_g_y

t= H T—B8  2hlRE

AT fEH A £ 49221,000
75 7T &% 60,000 78 JT HY X o

AEBERTEANLHKHE A

B EESTHBETEAMH
BERRERERTBE A
MEBIFLAEFE —

7 L By AR R A B B3R o TR
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AEERTEAMEERNER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

9 EERANEX @
(b) == b
Bz-_T_ZF+-A=+—H
IEFE EF0ME&HIAT :

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of directors for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out below:

Basic Employer’s
salaries, contributions
allowances  Discretionary to pension
Fees  and benefits honuses scheme Total
v iR S HE |
e REREA ML EEfx g
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR THT ThR TAR
Executive directors: UTEs:
CHAN Chun Kt Rt - 2,206 - 6 2,232
WONG Ka Wai (Resigned on IRE(R-F-FF
24 June 2020) NAZTHEER) - 45 - 2 47
LAM Kwok Leung (Resigned on WER (K=F=FF
16 May 2020) BAT AR - 4 - 2 %
Chan Josephine Wai Sz BB (H-F-F
Hopointed on 7 January 2020) —-ftHEER) - 702 - 19 721
ZHU Xuegin fAopointed on REE(R-E-%%
7 danuary 2020) —ftHEZH) - 361 - 15 376
Non-Executive director: Fy7ES.
CHOW YiuPong fe-desirated BRA (R-F-FF
fiom executive director on —HtABHTEE
7 danuery 2020) H) - 88 - 4 9
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors:
WONG Lung Tak, Patrick BEE 153 - - - 153
TAM Tak Kei, Raymond EEH (R -F-FF
(Resigned on 14 Februay 2020) A +AEHE) 15 - - - 15
LIU Chi Keung Resigned on BEd (R-F-FF
1 Seotamber 2020) NA-A#F) 103 - - - 103
Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RER(K-E-FfF
(Agpointed on 7 January 2020) —HtAEFT) 153 - - - 153
Kan Sze King Kenneth Bt (R-F-FfF
Hopointed on 1 Seotember 2020) 1 A—FEZ(E) 50 - - - 50
474 3,456 - ) 3978
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
The emoluments of directors for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out below:

9 EER/ABEXZ @

(b)

BEEHFM @
Hz_Z—NWF+_-_A=+—H
HFEE  EEMeIHHIWOT :

Basic Employer's
salaries, contributions
alowances  Discretionary to pension
Fees and benefits bonuses scheme Total
Y. S R RARHE
e REREN ML Exiii k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT TERL TEx T ThER
Executive directors: #iTEs.
CHAN Chun Kit Rk - 2762 220 18 3,000
WONG Ka Wai I5E - 179 - 9 188
CHOW Yiu Pong A& - 179 - 9 188
LAM Kwok Leung HER - 179 - 9 188
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE:
directors:
WONG Lung Tak, Patrick iR 187 - - - 187
TAM Tak Kei, Raymond e 187 - - - 187
LIU Chi Keung BER 187 - - - 187
561 3,299 220 45 4,125

No director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2019: Nil). No incentive
payment for joining the Group or compensation for
loss of office was paid or payable to any directors
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of
the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020 by a defined contribution plan operated by the
Group in respect of their services as directors of the
Company (2019: Nil). No other retirement benefits
were paid to the directors in respect of their other
services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings
(2019: Nil).

RAFE BMEETREXRE
BEXEAFMH(ZE—hF: &) -
REE_ZE_TF+_A=+—
HIEFE SESNKEMER
BEEMARNE R ZE KBRS
B(ZE—hF &) -

EERKER
REBEE-_ZE_FTF+_A=+—
HLEFE ASBEZEENRTH
HETE Y ER AR EEAIEM
R E X M EAEREREN(ZF
—NEF &) - HMEREFEER
ARKHENB AR EBMRERN
H Ath AR 75 ) H A E b iR K48 F
(Z2—hF: 8&) -
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9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued)
(d) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company did not pay any considerations to any
third parties for making available the services of
themselves as directors of the Company (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were
entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings in favour of the directors of the
Company, a controlled body corporate or a
connected entity of such directors at any time
during the year (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the
notes to these consolidated financial statements,
no other significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2019:
Same).

194 snmpersRA? —E-TEEERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

9 EER/ABEXZ @
(d) EEZEBER

REBE_T_TF+T_A=+—
HIEFE #IEEE2hmE$
WEE B A (ZE— N 5F -
&) -

MENEERBEME@AE=F
T F2Z2RE
REE-_ZE_TF+_A=+—
BIEFE AR A)WEGRERAK
RAIEERBEMAERNE=ZAX
HEMRE(ZE—NF &) o

FBUESE ES52ZEH
ZERBEERASZALZ
EX - EERRHMXZ 2
RAERETAEREA KRB H
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EE2XEMWEEAHREERS
RBmANETER  EERLEHM
RH(ZFE-NEF: &) -

EERRS RSN Z
BERERHE
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BEZX5 UEBBEAKHE
EBEMARBMEREF —H AKX
RAEENEF (TREZRXHEER)
BEEREDE RAFFEINF
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BH(ZF—NEF: R °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued) 9 EEFFEX @
(h) Five highest paid individuals (h) EfuEEHF AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were HE-_T-TF+-H=+—H
the highest in the Group for the years ended 31 HtFE AEBRAUESHFAL
December 2020 include two directors (2019: one BREMBEF(ZTE—NEF: — %
director) whose emoluments are reflected in the ) FENFHEIN LIS
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable M- RAFE BRBT=% (=
to the remaining three (2019: four) individuals during T-NF - mB) ATHEFMAT

the years are as follows:

2020 2019
—EEF —T-hnF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Basic salaries, allowances EXFH®  EZBERER
and benefits 1,291 2,126
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT - 103
Employer’s contribution to
pension scheme RIREETEME EHK 43 69
1,334 2,298
The emoluments of the above three (2019: four) =R (ZE-NAFE:@mA)A
individuals were within the following bands: :I: E’] FEN T AT EE -
Number of employees
EBEA™
2020 2019
—BRF —ZE-hF
HKS$Nil — HK$1,000,000 =77 —1,000,000 7 7T 3 4
No incentive payment for joining the Group or REE_ZE_FTF+_A=+—
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable HIFEE W8N ANEFH IZ
to any of the five highest paid individuals during the Bk BB EED MK EN T RA
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). BEEFATHER—((ZZE—Ah

FE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

10 Depreciation and Other Expenses 10 TERHMEAX
2020 2019
—EB-%F TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Depreciation weE

— Property, plant and equipment —ME  BE&ERE 17,739 13,424
- Right-of-use assets —EREEE 43,805 47,231
61,544 60,655

Other expenses include the following H M BFE A T & E

items:
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 5 Bl = A
— Audit services —BZR% 814 815
— Non audit services — LR 209 206
Amortisation on intangible assets mEEEH 729 =
Operating lease payments YL ERER K
of premises
— Contingent rent for premises* — IS A E* 817 3,879
— Coronavirus disease 2019 ——E-hEREER
(“COVID-19”) rent concessions (fcoviD-19]) &
R (8,276) =
— Variable lease payment —ZBHEEMNK 1,614 -
Lease payments not included inthe 2R E & ER W ETAH
measurement of lease liabilities HERR 3,626 5,502
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 & U 2% 18 il (B E5 48 209 14
Property, plant and equipment W% - WRE k&
written-off 4,770 -
The contingent rent refers to the operating rentals based on pre- - HABRSRDERESEEB S RS HEER
determined percentage to the restaurant revenue less minimum rentals SERSETHNEERS

of the respective leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M HRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

11 Finance Costs

11 B A

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hnF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Interest expenses on bank RITERFEFZ
borrowings 252 5113
Interest expenses on lease liabilites A& & EF EFX 12,897 10,880
Interest expenses on other borrowing £ b f& FX A8 2 52 =
Total interest expenses on financial ~ FEIZ A BT ABZEA
liabilities not at fair value through TREENEMAYERE
profit or loss 13,201 11,393
12 Income Tax 12 FR5 %
2020 2019
—EZEHF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Current tax B A 18
Current tax on profits for the year F N A #) BN EA R I8
- Hong Kong —B% - 31
- The PRC — 84 1,729
(Overprovided)/underprovided BAEFE (BEEE),
in prior year BETR (129) 274
(45) 2,034
Deferred tax ELEH IR
Origination and reversal of EERBETREEZR
temporary differences (note 34(a)) (BF 5% 34(a)) (29) 7,214
Income tax (credit)/expense s %),/ FxX (74) 9,248
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made in HE-_Z-FTF+_A=1+—RHLF
the consolidated financial statements as the Group B BMEBERNREMBEBRRTIZEE B F

has no assessable profits derived in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 December 2020. For the year ended 31 BEREN BE_T—
December 2019, Hong Kong profit tax was calculated in

accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regimes. SHMEHETE -

BHEE ARAKELTERNEFEN

NE+=

H T—RLEFE FENEHZER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

12 Income Tax (Continued)

12 FT B % @)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of qualifying subsidiary will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of subsidiaries not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

According to the PRC Enterprise Corporate Tax Law
promulgated by the PRC government, the PRC’s
statutory income tax rate is 25%. Except for certain
preferential tax treatment available to one of its
subsidiaries of the Group, the other PRC subsidiaries are
subject to income tax at the rate of 25% for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2020.

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using
applicable statutory tax rates as follows:

BREFNSHEMAG SERNMEA
AN E2H &8t m 1% 8.25% K i
B BiB2E BB LA G F 5%
16.5% R R R - TFA TS B MR
i B0 B B A R A i A S 4 4B 12 16.5%
OBt — B R EAR o

AR IR R B AT AR ) o B (R B -
BEIRAEREBER25% NBEZ
T AFRZFFFT-A=1+—
ALFE AKER-XHMEARZ
RETEBBRBEFBIN K+ B
B X RIZRHR IR 26% BN 1S Bt

7R 55 B B P 15 750 A &S 1R B B IR R 1208
AEERRFAEMESER LB HE
FZERNMT

2020 2019
—E-EE —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Loss before income tax BRET1S A E 1B (40,850) (50,093)
Tax calculated at applicable BHRAEEREFTENTIE
statutory tax rates (8,027) (8,476)
Income not subject to tax AR Z WA (1,675) (70)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 A
purposes 535 1,028
Current tax (overprovided)/ BEFEENETIE
underprovided in prior year (FREERHE) BB (129) 274
Tax effect of deferred tax assets
(underprovided)/overprovided in  IEEFIIBEEE (BETR),
prior year BERBNHETE (648) 5,598
Tax effect of temporary differences KR L =N HE T L
not recognised (1,094) 3,969
Tax effect of tax losses not RERREBENH ST E
recognised 10,964 6,925
Income tax (credit)/expense Frsfi (%), FxX (74) 9,248
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MRS ERARMEE (3

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

13 Dividends 13 R E
The Directors has resolved not to recommend the EECRRTEBRNEE_ZT=F
payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 F+_A=Z+—HIEFEENTMAERES
December 2020 (2019: Nil). BE(ZE—NF : &) -
14 Loss Per Share 14 BREE
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to the RRal B AREEREXREEBLR
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BATEEAE
2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Loss &8
Loss for the year attributable to NARHEE ARMGEARNEGE
the owners of the Company (39,817) (59,341)
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-hnF
’000 000
T’ T A%
Number of shares ii&vig:-4=|
Weighted average number of shares it E &R E KRBT K
for the purpose of calculating basic ~ Ii#EFHH XD & A
earnings per share 1,000,000 814,456
Diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per HREEZE-_E—NFR-E-_ZEF
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares TZA=+—BLEFEHRBELEEM
outstanding for the years ended 31 December 2019 and BEEELBERRG  WEREES
2020. BEEREXREEER -
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e M HRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

15 Property, Plant and Equipment

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

156 W% - BMERRE

Furniture, Utensils,
Leasehold ~fixtures and liners and Motor  Construction
improvements  equipment uniforms vehicles in progress Total
FE 2B 41 7B
HE%E EL] e RE RBIR aa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn i Tikn Tn Thn Tn
Cost A
At1 January 2019 R=F-hE-F-H 93,204 22,301 5,072 104 - 121,021
Aditions AE 28322 9,837 1,799 97 - 40,055
Disposals e (8,075) - - - - (8,075)
Exchange alignment ERHAE (638) (194) (46) ] - (881)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NETZA=1-A
at 1 January 2020 RRN-E-ZE-F-R 112,833 31,944 6,825 518 - 152,120
Avising on acquisition of subsidiaries WK BA RIBEE
(note 36) (B%36) 3,201 6,370 - 78 - 9,649
Addttions WE 4972 2,111 28 - 3,931 11,108
Transfer from right-of-use assets BB EFAREELE
(note 16) (B3t 16) - - - 919 - 919
Disposals i3 (25,687) (5,162) (1,269) - - (32,118)
Exchange alignment EXRE 4,677 1,096 335 2 276 7,306
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FET-A=T-H 99,996 37,325 5919 1,537 4,207 148,984
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

15 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15 Y1 ¥ - M E kR & @)
Furniture, Utensils,
Leasehold  fixtures and liners and Motor  Construction
improvements  equipment uniforms vehicles in progress Total
FE-KE 44 7E
HE%E EL] L RE RBIR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THL AL i
Accumulated depreciationand Bt frEREE
impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 56,115 16,843 - 337 - 73,29
Charge for the year ERmitR 10423 2,955 - 46 - 13,424
Impaiment loss HESR 2,669 - 910 - - 3579
Written back on disposal (HE R (8,075) - - - = (8,075)
Exchange alignment EiAE 276) (108) - (1) - (385)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NETZA=1-H
at 1 January 2020 RFR-E-F%-A-H 60,856 19,690 910 362 - 81,838
Avising on acoisition of subsidlaries WEMBAABEL
(note 36) (B3+36) 1,614 2,249 - 74 - 3037
Charge for the year Rt 10,714 6,972 - 53 - 17,739
Impairment loss REER 5,015 - - - - 5,015
Written back on disposal HERH B (21,680) (4,758) (910) - - (27,349)
Transfer fom right-of-use assets ~ BEEFAEELE
(note 16) (& 16) - - - 919 - 919
Exchange alignment ERAE 2,332 1,319 - 17 - 3,668
At 31 December 2020 R-E-RET-A=1-H 58,851 25,472 - 1,445 - 85,768
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2020 W_F-FETZA=T-H 4,145 11,853 5919 92 4,207 63,216
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NET-A=T-8 51977 12,54 5915 136 - 70,282

During the year ended 31 December 2020, as certain
restaurants in Hong Kong and the PRC underperformed
and incurred losses due to the COVID-19 outbreak,
the management of the Group concluded there was an
indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of relevant
restaurants. The Group estimated the recoverable
amount of these restaurants, each represents an
individual CGU, to which the asset belongs when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually.

HE-_T-_TF+-_A=+—8LHF
R EEEAxCOVID19k§x$§E "B
AR EERBRRENEZEE -
AEBEBESENERAEE RAED
S WEHEBBENYE  BERELHE
MEREEEMNTRE S EETRE
‘HE EEZERMHFTIRESERN
FAT  AEEEHBBBEEZN ] KE
SRETTHS SREBEBEEME
RE—(ERREEAESLM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = — & — &

e RRMEE @

15 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations by preparing cash
flow projections of the relevant CGU derived from
the most recent financial forecast approved by the
management covering the remaining lease term. The
cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rates
in the range of 7.3% to 11.53% (2019: Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of certain
CGUs exceeds their recoverable amount, therefore, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$13,534,000 and
approximately HK$5,015,000 which was allocated to
the assets including right-of-use assets and leasehold
improvements within the CGUs on a pro rata basis, was
recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the
restaurant assets was written down to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount was greater than
its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment of two
restaurants (i.e. Sheung Wan Restaurant and Beijing
House Restaurant) was nil which was determined by
reference to the property, plant and equipment’s fair
value less costs of disposal. As the property, plant and
equipment were disposed of at nil consideration in
February 2020 upon the closure of the two restaurants,
the fair value less costs of disposal those property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2019 was estimated
to be nil. Therefore, impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$3,579,000
and HK$18,155,000 were recognised in profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

202 FEMERERAT —ToTEEERE

F+ - HA=+—HIFFE

15 Y% - BERRE @

EREELBMNNTKESEIIRE
REEE  HEAREEBERESE
E@ﬂmﬁfmiﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁmﬁﬁ
B EREFHEERNFTOYEE
A5 W ofﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁmﬁl AL IR E AN
7.3% %= 11.53% —NFE)NE
ENEITRLIR -

RZZE_ZEF+_A=+—H8 ' HBH
REELEBEM 2 RAMBERLE T KE
%58 H It #913,534,0007%8 7T & 4
5,015,000/ 7T 2 B BB B E & L Hl 5

RERSELENACEE (BREEM
REENEERE) IXRFABERER

KEMERKEPER SRS

RZZE—NAFE+ZA=+—8 " WE
BEENREEAREMGFTIKREE
A AZEENREESHBREER
Yo 5 58 - M EERE (B EBRERZ K&
EREBE)WE  BENMREN A GO

G%U%E Ty2EYE - F“)%& ALY
NFHEREEXNAMET - ARYE
T B5 Ko & 1%7715’\_3_2$_Hfﬂf'ﬁ

BEARLTEXRATRELE  8R
—E-NAFT A=t -HNOQFE
MZEME BB RRENDLEXAK
B RT -t EREABaE A
feEmKamRANBRE NMERYE
BELEEBBAREREEERERRE
3,579,000/ 7T 5 18,155,000 78 JT °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

7 N =1

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

16 Right-of-use Assets

16 EHEEE

Motor
Vehicle  Premises Total
RE LS B
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHT FHET FHT
Cost R A
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—NF—H—H 919 108,002 108,921
Exchange alignment PE 5 FH 2 - (780) (780)
Additions NE - 124,720 124,720
Adjustments upon modification & 57 8 & i 78 &
of the leases - 1,136 1,136
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—-NF+=A
1 January 2020 =t+—BK
—T_TF—-H—H 919 233,078 233,997
Exchange alignment bE W, B - 7,154 7,154
Additions NE - 9,509 9,509
Arising on acquisition of HUENE A RESE
subsidiaries (note 36) (MF3E36) - 3,436 3,436
Adjustments upon modification & 57 0 & i 38 &
of the leases - 3,710 3,710
Transfer to property, plant HEBEEYE - WE KB
and equipment (note 15) (H5E15) (919) - (919)
Written-off 1 55 - (45,124) (45,124)
At 31 December 2020 RZZTZFTF+=A
=+—H - 211,763 211,763
Accumulated depreciation R FERRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NE—H—H 715 - 715
Charge for the year FNEHR 204 47,027 47,231
Impairment loss B E R - 18,155 18,155
Exchange alignment ME W, B - (65) (65)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

16 FAHAEEE @)

16 Right-of-use Assets (Continued)

Motor
Vehicle  Premises Total
RE LYE S e
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHET FET FET
At 31 December 2019 and RZE—NE+=A
1 January 2020 = + Ak
—E-FF—H—H 919 65,117 66,036
Charge for the year FAGTHE - 43,805 43,805
Impairment loss RIEEE - 13,534 13,534
Transfer to property, plant HEEYE - WE KB
and equipment (note 15) (MF3E15) (919) - (919)
Written-off 1 5 - (44,430) (44,430)
Exchange alignment bE 5 B - 2,083 2,083
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF+_A
=+—H - 80,109 80,109
Carrying amount IREIE
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZTF+=H
=== - 131,654 131,654
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-hF+H
=+—H - 167,961 167,961

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as
its office and restaurants through lease agreements. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 10
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
Total cash outflow for the leases for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 was approximately
HK$50,376,000 and HK$46,535,000 respectively.

204 rumEEsRAR —E-TEEERS

AEBEEEBRHEHZER Hﬂ%%ﬁﬁ
EEMAERBEBNER - HEWHH
TERETARD -HEEETE T’E
REFREER

%ﬁ% EOWNFHEBAA2E106E - — &
AKEIWE%\JEKEIQI\E”
Eﬁﬂ? i%é% HEREZE -z
FR= ﬂ¢+ A= + EIJL¢
E E’ﬁﬁ@ﬁ 42 %5 5 7l 49 & 50,376,000
5%%&46,535,000,%73 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

FRE MR RMET @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

16 Right-of-use Assets (Continued)

During the year, lessors of the relevant leases provided
rent concessions to the Group, these rent concessions
occurred as a direct consequence of Covid-19 pandemic
and met of all of the conditions in HKFRS 16.46(b), and
the Group applied the practical expedient not to assess
whether the changes constitute lease modifications.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the effects on
changes in lease payments due to forgiveness or waiver
by the lessors for the relevant leases of HK$8,276,000
were recognised as negative variable lease payments.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss for the year

16 FRAEEE @)

FR - HERENEEAAR
HESEE  ZSHELBEETICovid-19
ARITHEERR UHEEBWE
HEEB|F16.46(0) 15 K BT B 1§15
i BEEEENERERZE  TFE
ZEEHRECERBEE -BHE=
T-_ZF+_A=+—HLEFE A
HRAARESREABREmMERD
HENREE T 282760008 B
ERAARNEHEENK -

ERER

BE_T_TEN_FT-AFT+-A

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 in relation to leases == EI JJ: FE - -REZARHEER
are as follows: ROSEEAT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET
Depreciation charge of FRAEEENITERX
right-of-use assets 43,805 47,231
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNER 12,897 10,880
Expense relating to short-term leases £252 i E AR 3,626 5,502
Total amount recognised in RIBEANERNB SRR
profit or loss 60,328 63,613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MRS ERARMEE (3

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

17 Intangible Assets 7T BIEERE

Cooperation
Goodwill Trademarks Contracts Total
g [} BEER et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET TET TET
Cost %
At 1 January 2020 RZTZTF
—H—H - - - -
Arising on acquisition of B kg — B
a subsidiary (note 36) NAIEXE
(P %E36) 15,329 10,904 3,152 29,385
Exchange alignment BE 5 AR 997 709 205 1,911
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF
+-A=+—H 16,326 11,613 3,357 31,296
Accumulated amortisation R #i 85 &R E
and impairment
At 1 January 2020 RZTZTF
—H—H - - - -
Amortisation charge FA
for the year HIHE A - 565 164 729
Exchange alignment B 5, 3 B - 40 11 51
At 31 December 2020 RZZTZTF
+=ZA=+—H - 605 175 780
Carrying amount RESE
At 31 December 2020 RZTZTF
+-A=+—H 16,326 11,008 3,182 30,516
RZT—NEF
At 31 December 2019 +ZA=+—H - - - -
During the year ended 31 December 2020, amortisation B2 ZF+_-_A=+—HIF
of the Group’s intangible assets has been charged to E AEBNEFEEBECRNES
other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or BREEHME2EWARNEME L S
loss and other comprehensive income. Mk -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

17 Intangible Assets (Continued) 17 BILEE @)

Impairment test for goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible assets
in respect of the goodwill, trademarks and cooperation
contracts in the consolidated financial statements have
been allocated to an individual CGU, namely Yaoliang
(Shanghai) Food Co., Limited (“Yaoliang”), engaged
in operating food counters in the PRC. The total
carrying amount of the intangible assets in respect of
the goodwill, trademarks and cooperation contracts
allocated to this CGU is approximately HK$30,516,000.

The recoverable amount of the Yaoliang has been
determined based on the value-in-use calculations. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period and pre-tax discount rate of 16.15%. Assumed
growth rate is used to extrapolate the cash flows in
the following years. The financial budgets assume an
average growth rate ranging from -1.1% to 11% and
a terminal growth rate of 2.6% taking into account of
long term gross domestic product growth, inflation rate
and other relevant economic factors. The Directors
believe that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
would not cause the carrying amount of the CGU to
exceed the its recoverable amount.

At 31 December 2020, the management is of the view
that the goodwill was not impaired as its recoverable
amount exceed its carrying amount.

2R EAE
FREARME  EHEE  BERGE
VBBRERAEEHNEBNEFREEDS
PEFERIRESEEEMN  BRR (£
HRBARDR(BR])  ZAFR
FTRRELERMEE DR T%E
CELEBUNEE BREEREEEL
BT & E R 4 {8 4 530,516,000
AT o

RBRZAKESEEIREFERER
STEMEBE ZirE A AERANUERE
B ENAFHYFEEEAERNIE
= T8 R R B AT TR £ 16.15% © &
EREANEE R REFENIRE R ©
PBEEBRSFHERENT11%E
1% ZEIRPBERNEEREIER -
BERREREMEBALSEREZ &
RIBREA26% - NARIEZHEE
AlRESBAKENEEREKBEN
AEAEMNEY HISBHRRESE
AEMNEEERAE KBS -

R-_E-_ZEF+_HA=+—H ERE
EBRAEEYERE HAEEKRO
SHEBBHE®E -

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2020 207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

e EERRNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

18 Deposits Placed for Life Insurance 18 RESRRAERE
Policies
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Life insurance policy SkeRE 2,176 2,115
Life Insurance Policy :Efrf‘ﬁﬁ B

In April 2009, the Group entered into a life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure an Executive
Director, Mr. Chan Chun Kit. Under the policy, the
beneficiary and policy holder is Orient Century Limited
(“Orient Century”), a Company’s subsidiary and the
total insured sum is USD750,000 (approximately
HK$5,850,000). Orient Century is required to pay ten
annual instalments of USD26,055 up to 30 April 2019
(approximately HK$203,229) including a premium
charge at inception of the policy amounting to USD8,100
(approximately HK$63,180). Orient Century can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash back
based on the cash value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the accumulated
deposit payments plus accumulated interest earned and
minus the accumulated insurance charge and policy
expense charge.

In addition, if withdrawal is made between the 1st to
15th policy year, there is a specified amount of surrender
charge. The insurance company will pay Orient Century
an guaranteed interest of 5.55% on annum basis for first
20 years. Commencing on the 21st year, the interest will
become 3% per annum plus a premium determined by
the insurance company on an annual basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MRS ERARMEE (3

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

inventories stated at net realisable value.

19 Financial Instruments by Category 19 ZEREsHWEMIA
2020 2019
—EEF —FT-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets at amortised cost REIEKAY RN SR EE
Rental deposits Heke 14,871 14,948
Deposits placed for life insurance KESRRERE
policies 2,176 2,115
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 5,462 3,844
Deposits and other receivables & & H b FE W SR IE 16,693 14,620
Loan receivable R E 10,000 =
Amount due from a non-controlling  fEUY — & FE1% A PR
shareholder FE 9,825 -
Amounts due from related JiE Y A Bt 1 A
companies RIE 70 -
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER - 11,029
Cash and cash equivalents HeMkREEEY 28,949 71,151
88,046 117,707
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IRE #R AT BEN S R B &
Trade payables 2 SR 19,418 16,350
Accruals and other payables FEET B A K E b fE - 3R 29,329 25,382
Amount due to a non-controlling B — R IEIE Hxﬁx?ﬁﬁmlﬁ
shareholder 241 -
Bank borrowings RITER 22,408 7,444
Lease liabilities HEARE 168,640 208,865
240,036 258,041
20 Inventories 20 78
2020 2019
—EBEHF —T-hNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Food and beverages B MR m 12,375 13,968
As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, there were no RNR-_EBE-—HHERFR _E-_FF+ — ﬂ

_—i- EI R EF B #IRFESRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M HRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

21 Trade Receivables

21 ESEWFE

2020 2019
—E-EHF i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FHET

Trade receivables B 5’ FKIR 5,787 3,955
Less: Allowance for B BB R B

impairment losses (325) (111)

5,462 3,844

The Group’s sales from its restaurant operations are
mainly conducted in cash or by credit cards. The credit
period granted by the Group to its customers ranges
from O to 30 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on
invoice date (net of allowance for impairment losses) is as

AEBBEEBNEEETENRS
K EAFREE - AEERHEERER
REEHNTF0E30H -

RERZBHEINE S RIKFE (kR
REE R ER) Rk AT

follows:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
+=-—A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 4,635 3,352
31 to 60 days 31£60H 184 209
61 to 90 days 61&290H 174 155
Over 90 days Q0 HM E 469 128
5,462 3,844

The Group applies simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M HRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

21 Trade Receivables (Continued) 21

Movements in loss allowance recognised in respect of
trade receivables are as follows:

g 5 EWRFIE @)

HREFERUKRIEBECHERANEEREGE
2

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZT-hnF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHExT FHET

As at 1 January R—HA—H 111 99

Loss allowance recognised for FAERNEBRE

the year 209 14
Exchange alignment BEE 5, 38 B 5 @)
As at 31 December ®R+=—A=+—H 325 111

Due to the short-term nature of the trade receivables,
their carrying amounts approximate to their fair values
and are denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the
functional currencies of the respective group entities. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying value of trade receivables mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

REZEBAENERREEER B
FREHEREAALERE  ABITHA
RE(REEEERNIEER)E-
RBESAHMEENSEXEERRS
B ZEEFENREE  A%E
WER A TR RIERTER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBEmERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

22 Deposits, Prepayments and Other 22 &% - B RER Mt EWRR
Receivables by |
2020 2019
—E-EHF —NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Rental deposits Hekse 17,056 21,749
Utility deposits INZE & 1,308 1,913
Other deposits, prepayments and Hiize - BIREREM
other receivables JE U 3R 18 9,938 8,229
Government grant receivables JFE M50 B T 7 B 4,575 —
32,877 31,891
Less: Non-current portion — B FERNHAER D —
rental deposits Heke (14,871) (14,948)
Current portion BN ER &L 18,006 16,943
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and & B RIE RE M E R EIE A R
other receivables approximate their fair values and are i) @ HEAAEBEESE UWETHAR
denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the functional BN EEERBNINEERE)FE -

currencies of the respective group entities.

23 Loan Receivable 23 EWE R
2020 2019
—2-RE ZF-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fixed-rate loan receivable EFREKRE 10,000 =

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s loan receivable
represents unsecured loan receivable of HK$10,000,000
from an independent third party bearing interest at a
fixed rate of 6% per annum and repayable in June 2021.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MRS ERARMEE (3

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

24 Amounts Due from/(to) Non-Controlling 24 FEU(FE{T) FEERIRERKIE

Shareholders
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Amount due from a non-controlling & Ug — 2 3E 2= i% A% B8 30 08
shareholder
Interest-free (note i) % B (FFsED) 3,805 —
Fixed rate of 3% per annum (note ii) [& F & 3[E (M xii) 6,020 -
9,825 -
Amount due to a non-controlling FEA — & FEE R IR SR K
shareholder (note iii) (Bff &) 241 -
Notes: Bt 3
[0) Secured and has no fixed repayment term. i) BER - EEEERE -
(i) Secured and repayable in December 2021. i) AHEHR EBR_T-_—F+-_AEE-
@iy  Unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment term. (i) EIIR - B REEFER -
25 Pledged Bank Deposits 25 EEHFRITENR
As at 31 December 2019, the balances, which were RZE-NF+ZA=+—H &R
carried at the prevailing market interest rate at 1.2% to THMBHNEFNNEA2EZ14EFT R
1.4% per annum represent deposits pledged to banks B S SR FE IR T ER 1T A9 17 SR LA E B
to secure short-term bank borrowings (Note 31) granted FAREEMDHRITER (HFES)
to the Group, and therefore classified as current assets. hEIERRBEE R —AN
As at 31 December 2019, all the pledged bank deposits F+HA=+—H FBEEEFR]T
were denominated in HK$. BFEF B TTEHE -
No pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2020. N_E_FTF+_A=+—H ¥ &
EHRRITER °

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2020 21 3



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MRS ERARMEE (3

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

26 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 26 RE& RBEEEEBYREMERE £

Cash Flow Information nEER
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a RERREEEYEE -
2020 2019
—E-EHF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Cash at banks RITHEE 28,546 70,201
Cash on hand FHERE 403 950
Cash and cash equivalents in RErE M BikR K &
the consolidated statement FERERELRM
of financial position and in the RERREEED
consolidated statement of cash
flows 28,949 71,151
Maximum exposure to credit risk ~ fx =12 & &R 28,546 70,201
Majority of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents AEBARIEIREEREEEY
are denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the DWATHKARE(IEEEEREYW
functional currencies of the respective group e E®) FHE - RITRESUAEAR
entities. Cash at banks earns interest at floating RITHERANEREERZEF X

rates based on daily bank deposit rates. BREUFI B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

26 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 26 RE& RBEEEEBYREMERE £

Cash Flow Information (Continued) REER @)
(b) Reconciliation of loss before income tax b) RAITEHABEEKERS
to cash generated from operations: RENHER:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hnF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT FET
Loss before income tax BR P15 % Al B 1B (40,850) (50,093)
Adjustments for: KR EE
Depreciation TE 10 61,544 60,655
Amortisation 5 10 729 =
Finance costs BbE AR 11 13,201 11,393
Interest income A B A 8 (161) (693)
Premium charged on life SRRBEWRIRE
insurance policies 40 38
Impairment loss on property,  ¥1% - WE L& &
plant and equipment B E 1R 15 5,015 3,579
Impairment loss on right-of-use {# A& & & B (E
assets BE 16 13,534 18,155
Impairment loss on trade 2 5 W GIBRE
receivables fE5 18 10 209 14
Reversal of provision for B OHEE K A B
reinstatement cost 88 (338) =
Gain on early termination of RELUHE 2
leases, net R RE (21,059) -
Rent concessions HERE 10 (8,276) =
Property, plant and equipment EMSE % - BE
written-off B 10 4,770 -
Operating cash flows before & & & & & 8 AT#Y
changes in working capital RZHESRE 28,358 43,048
Changes in working capital: LEEEH
Decrease in inventories FER D 2,332 1,836
Decrease in trade receivables & 5 & U 538 R > 1,079 184
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, &% ~ a1+ 7 IE &
prepayments and other H fth f& W IR
receivables B (HAn) 1,017 (3,207)
Increase in loan receivable JE YL B SR8 B0 (10,000) -
(Decrease)/increase in trade B 5 M 58 Ok
payables )10 (2,600) 9,010
Increase in amounts due from & 1451 kNGBS ]
related companies i‘ il (70) -
Increase in contract liabilities A KB EHE 4,158 848
Decrease/(increase) in pledged E Tfﬁﬁ RITEFOR
bank deposits /() 11,029 27)

(Decrease)/increase in accruals, fE=tE A - B &
provisions and other payables £ {th &~ Z1& O

)10 (6,951) 9,192
Cash generated from REFMBRS
operations 28,352 60,3884
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

26 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 26 RE& RBEEEEBYREMERE £

Cash Flow Information (Continued) REER @)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METEEMELEBENHE:
financing activities:
The table below details changes in the Group’s TR AEEEREETSNE
liabilities from financing activities, including both AEECZEY (RERE LIRS
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from 2E)FIEc EMEEHAMEED
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flow % BERAEENRGZERENER
was, or future cash flow will be, classified in the SPERBETHMEREMNEN
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash REMEBIRKRESRE ©

flows from financing activities.

Bank Lease Other
borrowings liabilities borrowing Total
RiTER HEEE HHEX s

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000
TET THEL TET TET

At 1 January 2019 R-—B-hE—BA—8 10567 120,263 ~ 130,830
Changes from financing HBERLSREZEE :

cash flows:
Repayment of bank EERITIER

borrowings (3,123) - - (3,123
Capital element of lease ENHEEHESHER

rentals paid 5 ~ (35,655) ~ (35,655)
Interest element of lease ENHEERSHFE

rentals paid #Ho - (10,880) = (10,880)
Borrowing costs paid EANEELNZZ (519) - - (513)
Total changes from financing & éfﬁ/}_\ TmEZEH

cash flows Rk (3,636) (46,535) - (560,171)
Other changes Hith @5
Increase in leases liabiites ~ HE & EEFRNFT L

from entering into new A8 & & n

leases during the year - 123,655 - 123,655
Adjustment on the FHE & GBI mE

modification of the lease FOFEE

term - 1,136 - 1,136
Interest expenses (Note 11)  F| 8 F 2 (FH7E11) 513 10,880 - 11,393
Exchange alignment bE 5 S - (534) - (534)
Total other changes Hip B8 1B5E 513 135,137 = 135,650
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

26 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 26 RE& RBEEEEBYREMERE £
Cash Flow Information (Continued) REER @)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MEFREBMEEEENHE:
financing activities: (Continued) (%)

Bank Lease Other
borrowings liabilities borrowing Total
RITER HEEE HMEX mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FERT FAT

At 31 December2019and R=Z—h&E+=A
at 1 January 2020 =t+t—HRR

—E_ZF—-H—H 7,444 208,865 - 216,309

Changes from financing HBERELARECEE :

cash flows:
Repayment of bank EERITER

borrowings (7,444) - - (7,444)
Proceeds from new bank BITIEFRATE A

borrowings 20,000 - - 20,000
Repayment of other EEEMBER

borrowing - - (1,363) (1,363)
Capital element of lease ENHEHENER

rentals paid o - (38,074) - (38,074)
Interest element of lease ENHEERESHNFE

rentals paid Bo - (12,302) - (12,302)
Borrowing costs paid BAHERK A (252) - (52) (304)
Total changes from financing BER & REZ EE)

cash flows R 12,304 (50,376) (1,415)  (39,487)
Other changes Hith# 5
Increase in leases liabilities & A &] I &

from entering into new EENHEAR

leases during the year bhill - 9,509 - 9,509
Arising on acquisition of RE W B E A

subsidiaries (note 36) (FfzE36) 2,261 6,345 1,363 9,969
Adjustment on the BT E R

modification of the E

lease term - 3,710 - 3,710
Adjustment on early RELILAER

termination of leases AR - (21,754) - (21,754)
Rent concessions Heme - (8,276) - (8,276)
Interest expenses (Note 11)  F. 8> (fzE11) 252 12,897 52 13,201
Exchange alignment BEE 3, 3 B 147 7,720 - 7,867
Total other changes Hin B8 4B58 2,660 10,151 1,415 14,226
At 31 December 2020 R-E-BF+ZA

Sr=1[g 22,408 168,640 - 191,048
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27 Share Capital

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B RS R R MIEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

27 K’

Number of Nominal value
Ordinary shares  of Ordinary share
TmRE A TEREE
HK$’000
FET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 R—ZZE—NF—H—H
each as at 1 January 2019, UWERZF-—NFR
31 December 2019 and 2020 —E-FF+—-HA
=+—HBSKEE
0.01 87T 2 T f Mk 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: CRITRAR :
As at 1 January 2019 R-—T—hF—F—H 800,000,000 8,000
Issue of new shares pursuantto 1R 18 (A% 21T 3T D
rights issue (Note) (Bt 3E) 200,000,000 2,000
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE—NFE+=A
31 December 2020 =t+t—HEZZE-Z
+=—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000

Note: On 17 December 2019, the Company completed its rights issue

by issuing 200,000,000 rights shares on the basis of one rights
share for every four then existing shares, at the subscription price of
HK$0.238 per rights share (the “rights issue”). The net cash proceeds
of approximately HK$45,750,000, after share issue expenses of
approximately HK$1,850,000 were used for the repayment of the
Group’s indebtedness and interest expenses; payment of renovation
and refurbishment costs incurred for recently opened restaurants
and other existing restaurants; and for the general working capital
for the Group. The rights issue has increased the share capital and
share premium of the Company by HK$2,000,000 and approximately
HK$43,750,000 respectively. Those rights shares rank pari passu in
all respects with the ordinary shares of the Company in issue on that
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

gv?/_\

IR ERR R (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

28

29

Trade Payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice
date is as follows:

28

B S ENFE
BREZHHENNE S EMNFEERE
DU :

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

—_ 7 — ﬂE :%—j‘l_]f‘f

+=—B=+-H +=ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FHET

0 to 30 days 0zZ30H 8,708 10,996
31 to 60 days 31260H 7,334 3,427
61 to 90 days 612 90H 906 1,747
Over 90 days 90H M E 2,470 180
19,418 16,350

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate ‘féf SENFRENEEHEEERAREME

their fair values and are denominated in HK$ or RMB,
which are the functional currencies of the respective
group entities.

A RBTHARE (BEEEER
E’JI BEE®)FHE -

Accruals, Provisions and Other Payables 29 EEE‘f ER BEURHMES
K IE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZT-hnF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Accrued expenses FEETR 20,513 18,222
Other payables H {th & 1~ 3018 8,027 6,856
Temporary receipts R 789 304
Provision for unutilised paid ~ FREVB A HFBREE
annual leave - 644
Total accruals, provisions and FEFTER - BEBTE K EMA
other payables JETFRIR 29,329 26,026
All of the accruals, provisions and other payables are FEstER - ﬁéﬁ LA K B Wiz & 78 8 7%
expected to be settled or recognised as income within E—FRNEFTIBERBRA  HiRHE
one year or are repayable on demand. BE -
The carrying amounts of accruals, provisions and JEFtER  BEUREMENKIERN
other payables approximate their fair values and are FHEREQAALEMRSE  WABTX

denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the functional
currencies of the respective group entities.

N
ARE (ASEEERHIIEERE)HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M HRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

30 Contract Liabilities 30 ENER
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related AEEDHERBUATRSEEEHNEE -
contract liabilities.

2020 2019

—EEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FiET FiET

Current mE 21,823 16,590

Contract liabilities represent the advance payments
from customers, while the underlying services are not BR =

BRNREETFEMNKIE - MAERER
F— ﬂi&_g_giﬂ—:ﬂ

yet provided as at 31 December 2019 and 2020. The =+ —HAEREHR E’\Riﬁz HIR 18
portion to be recognised within one year after the end of —FAHETER o Th R 47 ./:.\ B 7%
each reporting period is classified as current liabilities in Hﬂ(/ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%um@ﬁﬂ\
the consolidated statements of financial position.
Movement in the contract liabilities balances during the RBE_Z—AER T _TF+—
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 is as follows: A= —1— BILFEFENAH B BLEHD
BEMT
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BHREE 16,590 15,885
Exchange alignment ME H, A 1,075 (143)
Revenue recognised during the year A 2 #ERURES (B 73 8(i))
(note (i) (8,033) (10,428)
Consideration received from BWEFPRE  TEEFA
customers, excluding amounts B R AW S B RIE
recognised as revenue during the
year 12,191 11,276
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—HWEAE 21,823 16,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

31 Bank Borrowings

31 RITENK

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—E-TF —E-NF
+=ZA=+—-8 +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Bank borrowings due for —F R EEERT
repayment within one year — 1ﬁ - BB
secured - 7,444
Bank borrowings due for R—F AR BEERT
repayment within one year — &7k — £ K 3
unsecured 3,099 -
Bank borrowings due for —FIR B EEEET
repayment after one year Fi HR(ERREXER
which contain a repayment on 1§ 3%) — £ 4K 3
demand clause — unsecured 19,309 =
22,408 7,444

As at 31 December 2019, the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by bank deposits of approximately
HK$11,029,000 of the Group and corporate guarantee
of the Company.

At as 31 December 2020, the banking facilities of the
Group with HK$20,000,000 were guaranteed by the
Hong Kong Government, certain of the existing and
former controlling shareholders and HK$2,408,000 was
guaranteed by one of the non-controlling shareholders
and third parties.

No covenants relating to the Group or the subsidiary’s
financial ratios were required by the banks as at 31
December 2019 and 2020.

—hE+ZA=Z+—8 " &%
Emﬁﬂﬂﬁmﬁﬁlmﬁowmm
BITHIBITER R ARG AR AER
(=i

RZEZTF+_A=+—H0 &K
@mﬁﬁﬂézmmmm%xméﬁ
BRIFTHRE & TRAE RATERKRE
YER 0 T 2,408,000 T B E & — & 3F
PERRR R M B = ER o

RZE—NFRER_ZE_FTF+_A
=+t B BOTESREAEEK
BB A B MBS L R R R4 -
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31 Bank Borrowings (Continued)

Repayments of bank borrowings based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MRS ERARMEE (3

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

31 RITERE

?ﬁ%ﬁrﬂiz’;%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’] STEIERE HE D
HERRITERNFEBET

2020 2019

—E-ZTHF —NEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Within one year —F R 3,099 7,444
Over one year but less than BB —FED M E

two years 4,815 -
Over two years but less than  HBRBMEE DR AE

five years 14,494 =

22,408 7,444

The weighted average effective interest rates at the

RIARHR S A B N4 T B R =X

respective reporting date were set out as follows: HIE R -
2020 2019
—E_EF —E—NF
Bank borrowings RITHERK 2.83% 4.82%
The carrying amounts of current bank borrowings RS ERITHF R EL K

approximate their fair values, as the impact of
discounting was not significant on the borrowings carried
floating interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M HRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

32 Lease Liabilities

32 HEEARE
TREVNAEMEE BN REHR

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

At 31 December 2020

Mg TAEIHAE

At 31 December 2019

R-ZZB-FHF R-_ZE—N%F
+=A=t-H +=—A=+—-8
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payment payment payment payment
REHEE REHEE =EHE =EHE
HREE RS- IR E B
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
THx  FEr  TET AR
Within 1 year —F R 40,431 51,374 67,267 69,209
After 1 year but within BB —FELRME
2 years 35,731 44,405 48,994 53,664
After 2 years but within HBBMEEIRASE
5 years 66,693 80,707 68,469 88,909
After 5 years HF# 25,785 28,833 24,135 43,853
128,209 153,945 141,598 186,426
168,640 205,319 208,865 255,635
Less: Total future interest 38 : AR F| 25X
expenses e (36,679) (46,770)
Present value of lease HEAERE
liabilities 168,640 208,865
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

33 Provision for Reinstatement Costs 33 BERAEE

2020 2019

—E-EF —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FET

At 1 January m—H—H 6,055 4,823

Additions 30 - 1,250

Reversal made during the year FAEN 2 #EE (338) -
Exchange alignment bE H, SH 168 (18)

At 31 December R+—_HA=+—8H 5,885 6,055
Less: Non-current portion W SEBNHERER (4,573) (4,743)

Current portion BN ERER 5 1,312 1,312
Provision for reinstatement costs is recognised for BEXABE IR ASENEBEEE
the costs to be incurred for the reinstatement of the BB EEREMBYEMEED
properties used by the Group for its operations upon RAMER - AEBEBHZEXNSH

expiration of the relevant leases. The Group expected REEEKBBKAESE ©

that the present value of the costs approximates their
undiscounted costs.

34 Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets 34 EERIBE(AE) EBE
(@) The analysis of deferred tax (liabilities)/ (@ EZEHE (BE) EEIN
assets is as follows: R
2020 2019
—B-RE  —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIERE (2,902) -
Deferred tax assets REMIAE B 852 1,144
(2,050) 1,144
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M HRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

34 Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets
(Continued)

(@) The analysis of deferred tax (liabilities)/
assets is as follows: (Continued)
The movements in deferred tax (liabilities)/assets
during the current and prior years, without taking
into consideration the offsetting of balances within

34 EEBIE(BRE) EE@®

(@ EXHE (BE) EEDN

wmn ()

RAFERBEFEHBART
MR (BE), BEEY (LEFR
Rl — M 7% BAHE [ 1) 45 BR 1K ) 20

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: T~
Deferred tax BEFTR R
Decelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
AERERE REER Hity B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT T THET
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F—H 4,906 3,268 206 8,380
Exchange alignment i 5 % (17) @ (1) (22)
Charged to consolidated statement I B4R BH R EM
of profit orloss and other 2EMEE (F:12)
comprehensive income (note 12) (3,763) (3,264) (187) (7,214)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-N%FTZA
=1—A 1,126 - 18 1,144
At 1 January 2020 WZE-F4—-F—H 1,126 - 18 1,144
Exchange alignment RIS 51 40 (215) (124)
Avising on acquisition of a subsidiary ~ EWE—EHEBLAREL
(note 36) (Mi3x36) - 415 (3,514) (3,099)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated 5P A/ (31 B) B E&HA
statement BRRkANZE
of profit or loss and other Kk (Mz12)
comprehensive income (note 12) (343) 190 182 29
At 31 December 2020 RZB-TETZA
=1—H 834 645 (3,529) (2,050)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

34 EEREEE &
(b) jtiliﬁ'fbu—l_lﬁﬁﬁﬁm\ 7T B

34 Deferred Tax Assets (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets have not been

recognised in respect of the following HEE
items:
2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHBT
Deductible temporary differences B 13 & b =58 10,762 19,884
Tax losses MIEEE 109,076 51,812
119,838 71,696
Notes: BisE -

)  The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the 0] BBRTEE AR ERERTT S
current tax legislation. ZIE -

BIRBIRE  AEERPEZEE
% E A MBI E5 18 49 18,186,000 78
T (ZZ— N4 :7,085000% ) 8
ELBEEFERASESAFIE  mMASE
ERBEEZHEMHBRARDEENTIE
/&5 18 4790,890,000/8 7T (ZF — N -
44,727,000 70) W A& EI H -

(i) Tax losses of approximately HK$18,186,000 (2019: (i)
HK$7,085,000) arising from the Group’s restaurant business
in the PRC will expire in the fifth year commencing from the
year the loss incurred whereas tax losses of approximately
HK$90,890,000 (2019: HK$44,727,000) arising from the
Group’s other subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not expire under
the current tax legislation

35 Major Non-Cash Transactions 35 FEHFRERFH
For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, HE_ZT-_TFR=-_ZT—NF+=A
the Group entered into lease arrangements in respect =+—BLtFE AEERHEEBE]
of lease modification and the acquisition of right-of- RKNECRAEEEIIVHERHE  H
use assets with a total capital value of approximately B AREED B4 /13,219,000 7T &
HK$13,219,000 and HK$125,856,000, respectively. 125,856,000 7% JT °

36 WHIEKMIEB A

36 Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(i) Accounted for as business combination (i) 1’!52’%%5]'%/—\1#A AR
On 9 January 2020, the Group entered into an RZZEZFTFE—HANLH A5E
equity transfer agreement to acquire 70% equity AIVREEEG R UARK

interest in Yaoliang (Shanghai) Food Co. Ltd
(“Yaoliang”) (B R (L /8)R M B R 2 &) which
operates more than 30 food counters selling roasted
meat and delicatessen under the brand names of
“Sun Kau Kee* (¥TEA52)” and “Chaojiangjun* (%
)" through online and offline stores at Freshippo
in Shanghai, the PRC at the consideration of
RMB22,400,000.

* For identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

36 Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Accounted for as business combination
(Continued)

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement, there
is a consideration adjustment mechanism, if the
audited revenue for the financial year 2019 is less
than RMB40,000,000, the consideration will be
adjusted downwards by the adjustment amount,
being calculated at 70% of the 80% of the excess
of the RMB40,000,000 over the audited revenue.
As a result, the consideration was adjusted to
approximately to RMB21,387,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$24,178,000).

The acquisition of Yaoliang was completed on 22
July 2020 and has been accounted for using the
acquisition method. Yaoliang is principally engaged
in operating food counters in the PRC. The fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Yaoliang
acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows:

36 WEBHI B 2 A (@)

(i)

EREBS AR @

BEREEERZ FEREHA
B E-_T-APREER
= iz U AR R A R # 40,000,000
7T AR EBRBIRARSER THE
% A B ¥ 40,000,000 7T #8 H & &
BRI 80% HY 70% 5T & - A -
REAELEHZE AR 21,387,000
7T (FE R #)24,178,000/87T) °

WERBRER_T_TF LA
“+ B  WERAWIBEAR
BREZETERXELERME
BB RNKE B BN
HHEENBENRLEEDT

HK$’000
FHET

Property, plant and equipment M - BE &R 2,422
Right-of-use assets EREEE 887
Intangible assets (note i) mEEE 14,056
Rental deposits ek (D) 196
Inventories FE 271
Trade receivables g 5 EWGRIA 2,782
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %% ~ B 7RI M H Ath fE U Z0 8 2,013
Amount due from a shareholder FEW — B R R FIE 9,225
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 2,366
Trade payables B 5 R IR (5,078)
Accruals and other payables FEET B R K B b FE T 3R (5,726)
Amount due to a shareholder FEf — R R EFIE (254)
Lease liabilities HEAE (3,796)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEAE (3,099)
Bank borrowing RITIE R (2,261)
Other borrowings Ho At f& 53X (1,363)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRARENAHANEEFEEE 12,641
Less: Non-controlling interests (note i) B FEPERR RS (BT (3,792)
Identifiable net assets acquired AIHER B WEEEFE 8,849
Satisfied by cash consideration IR e REEN 24,178
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

36 Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

i)

36 WEBHI B 2 A (@)

Accounted for as business combination (i) EREKSHAR®@E
(Continued)
HK$’000
FHET
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WIS EEREE
Consideration transferred EEERERE 24,178
Less: recognised amount of identifiable net & : FTUREE AT B E EFHEANE
assets acquired BREHE (8,849)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WIEEE NS 15,329

Notes:

)

(i)

(iii)

Fair values of acquired identifiable intangible assets

The fair values of the acquired trademarks and cooperation
contracts amounting to approximately HK$10,904,000 and
HK$3,152,000 respectively are recognised upon the acquisition
based on valuation for these assets. Deferred tax liabilities of
approximately HK$3,514,000 has been provided in relation to
these fair value adjustments.

Non-controlling interests

The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling interests
at proportionate share of net assets for this acquisition.

The fair values of the identifiable intangible assets acquired were
estimated by applying the income approach. This is a level 3
fair value measurement. The key assumptions are set out as
follows:

Discount rate 11.97%
Terminal growth rate 2.6%
Revenue growth rate 1%

The Group recognised the excess of fair value of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired as the goodwill.

The goodwill will not be deductible for tax purpose.
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Yaoliang
is attributable to the anticipated profitability of its
operations in the new markets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

36 Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) W B Bt 8 2 B
(i) Accounted for as business combination (i) 1?%%5%%@?)\&5(%)

(Continued)

HK$’000
FHET
An analysis of the cash flow in respect of the B REWEE —FHHB A MRS R
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: ENMBAT
Cash consideration BeRE 24,178
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BEeRReEED (2,366)
Cash outflow on acquisition of the subsidiary 4% 3& K B A A1V IR & 7 21,812

The Group incurred HK$780,000 transaction costs
for this acquisition and that amount was included in
other expenses in profit or loss.

Impact of acquisition on the result of the
Group

Included in the loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 was revenue of approximately
HK$13,621,000 and loss of approximately
HK$1,143,000 contributed by Yaoliang.

Had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2020, the
revenue and loss for the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 would have been approximately
HK$256,275,000 and HK$44,780,000 respectively.

The proforma information was for illustrative
purposes only and was not necessarily an indication
of total revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2020,
nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

AEERZBETHREER HK
780,000/ 7 © & ®BBaT AR
B E AR -

WHEEEHAEBXENY
;E'B
HEe—_ZTZ-_ZF+_A=+—H
TETFENFAEERRBERED
13,621,000 T B R B - A S
491,143,000/ 7T ©

1huﬂzﬁ§%§$1£_ 2 _TF—F—
CAEEERE_Z_TF =
H =+ —BLEFEMHYEKRE
B 5 Bl 49 A& 256,275,000 7 7T &
44,780,000 7T °

ﬁ%éﬁﬂ@f\uﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁs_ i[7f—

ERNHEEEER ?ﬁ
_)E] EEW{§$%.,\E\
BB s MR R ﬁT%ﬁ

TERARIREENTEA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

36 WEBHI B 2 A (@)

(i) IEERAEEWREAR
BiERBHAE T 24+ 8
—t+—HWMEEmZ AEEA
GCHEREMBLIE=HWE &

36 Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii) Accounted for as asset acquisition
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement dated 31
July 2020, the Group has conditionally agreed to
acquire 70% equity interest in a PRC entity, \F/&&

# R MmAR A A, from independent third parties.
The acquisition was completed on 12 August 2020.
In the opinion of the directors, the acquisition of =
EEERMAR A A has been accounted for as
an asset acquisition as the acquired company did
not have significant business prior to the acquisition
by the Group except for holding property, plant
and equipment for food processing. The identifiable
assets and liabilities as at the date of acquisition are
as follows:

EEREMAR A RT70%H A E -
Hﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\_%@_?ﬁﬂﬂﬂ—_ﬁ
TR CEERAE WELEER
BRA TET’EZ%%?H&ZE%)\EE
A A&z A B AR & E Uk B B I &
FEER (RFEERMMNIANYE -
BE KRR o RUKEE R HR - 7]
A EEREBELT

HK$’'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB R E 3,290
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,549
Rental deposits HeEe 349
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %% ~ B F0I8 M E Ath fE I 3008 483
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 11
Other payables H b fE A~ 5B (2,910)
Amount due to a shareholder FET — R R EFIE (349)
Lease liabilities HEBE (2,549)
Total identifiable net assets Al A EE%‘TE CEE] 874
Less: Non-controlling interests (note i) /FJZ FE 7 AR 2 (262)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities AHEREERBETFSE 612
Satisfied by cash consideration NI e REEN 612
Notei: The Group has chosen to recognise the non-controlling Mzt BURKERS  ARERERFE
interests at proportionate share of net assets for this EE R LE DIl i s FE 1 A i 25 o
acquisition.

An analysis of the cash flow in respect of the 75 B8 U B8 — S FI B 2 A1 &Y

acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: REMEDWTAT :
Cash consideration ReRE 612
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERBESEEY (11)
Unpaid cash consideration included in T AR B E b FE T RIE Y
other payables of the Group KBS RE (75)
Cash outflow on acquisition of the subsidiary U &M B A &l HIR 4 i 526

AEBRZREFRITEELS
RRBEA °

The Group incurred no material transaction costs
for this acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

37 1B

37 Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
127 of the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserves

Other reserves of the Group represent (i) the amount
arising from a reorganisation of the Company in
connection with the listing; (i) wavier of amounts due to
a non-controlling shareholder, related party, and ultimate
controlling shareholders; (i) the difference between the
acquisition of additional equity interests from the then
non-controlling shareholders and the nominal value of the
shares of an existing subsidiary of the Group issued in
exchange therefore prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares; and (jii) the difference between the consideration
received on disposal of the entire equity interests of the
subsidiaries and the carrying amounts of the net liabilities
of the subsidiaries.

AEBEERMAMEFHEBE LB RE
HE2INEEMBRRF127TBAEAE

Hib &
AEBEBEMFEERNKERNARE LT
HEZEAN DR (i) BIFZERRE -
BAEE T MR ERRRE RO RS
B (M R B R R R AR B
iR EENEE —RRAME QA
P fn E B < B~ AR B B fp £ AT
BITINBE XX P e Z 88 ¢ M (i) I & P B
DA 2 ER RS BT A (B SR B B R RDF
BEZEEENER -
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g =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = — & — &

e RRMEE @

38 Litigation and Contingent Liabilities

Except for the case set out below, the Group did not
have significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report.

As announced by the Company on 6 January 2020,
Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company received a Writ
of Summons together with an indorsement of claim
(the “Indorsement”) dated 31 December 2019 and a
statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”) dated 17
January 2020 issued in the High Court of The Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Court Action”)
by Foxhill Investments Limited as plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”)
against Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited as defendant
(the “Defendant”).

It is stated in the Indorsement that the Plaintiff’s claim
against the Defendant is in relation to the breach of the
Tenancy Agreement dated 18 April 2018 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) for wrongfully failing and/or refusing to pay
the rent and/or management fees and/or government
rates in respect of the Premises located at Units 201—
202 on the Second Floor of Infinitus Plaza, No.199 Des
Voeux Road, Central, Hong Kong (the “Premises”) since
1 October 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had recognised a payable approximately HK$3,525,000
as the rent, management fee, penalty and related interest
in relation to the Premises in the consolidated financial
statements.

Up to the date of this report, the case is still in
proceedings. On the basis of currently available
information, the Director’s considered that the legal
proceedings are unlikely to result in any other material
outflow of economic benefits from the Group and no
further provision has been made in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

39 Capital Commitments 39 EAREKIE
Capital commitment outstanding at 31 December 2020 RZE_TF+_A=+—H K&
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements REMBRRPBENERNEENT :
were as follows:
2020 2019
—EB-EHF —ET-hNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Contracted for: EEEE
— property, plant and equipment —WE - BEREB 1,496,000 -
40 Related Party Transactions 40 BBRERS
(a) Transactions with related parties () HEBMAINXKS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated MR E IR BB IREEI
financial statements, the Group had the following REBREMFEEHBER FE]E
significant transactions with its related party during UTEARS :
the years:
2020 2019
—EB-EHF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Rental expenses paid to Richfield A= # ¥ E AR A &) X+
Develop Limited (Note) HeMZ (M) 214 214
Note: Richfield Develop Limited is a related company controlled by M:zr ERAEERAF ANAGEERIRE
Mr. Chan Chun Kit, a director of the Company. Rental expenses S PR B A E o T4 TR A T
paid to the related company were charged at term mutually WS B S RS IR E e e E AR -

agreed by both parties.
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e MBEmERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

40 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Balances with related parties
Particulars of amounts due from related companies,
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

(b) 5

40 BB AR Z @)

EH B8 B 5 BV 45 BR
BRAECE B 2 B HEBI) 5 383()(d) &
(REl (BBEEFZER) HF)
FEI3EL - EULRAE: D RIRIBR B
;T

Maximum Maximum
amount amount
outstanding outstanding
during the year 2020 during the year 2019
ERER FRNER
AEESE -Z-BF  REERE Z—E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T a7 THL THTL
Richfield Develop Limited? ERBRERAFD 66 66 - -
Poly Wealth Limited EflRERAR0 1 1 - -
Star Catering Management Limited? ~ FIZHHREEERARD 3 3 _ -
70 70 - -
Note: B aE
[0) Controlled by Mr. Chan Chun Kit, a director of the Company. 0] AR Rl E ERRIRMGE ST £ 1 5
Receivables from related parties are unsecured EW A S RIEREER £ 8
interest free and repayable on demand. NIz EER -
(c) Key management compensation (c) EEEBAEFHM
The emoluments of directors and members of key EENTEEEERNENETMAOT
management were as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Basic salaries, allowances EAXFH ¢  RZMEREF
and benefits 4,357 8,188
Discretionary bonuses ) IETEA - 364
Employer’s contribution to BRE qu SR EHER
pension scheme 80 122
4,437 6,219

Total remuneration is included in “Employee benefits
expenses” (see note 9).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M HRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —F —ZFF+ - H=+—HIFF

41 Statement of Financial Position of the 41 &2 BB AR KR

Company
(@) Company-level statement of financial () AFEEMBENRRE
position
2020 2019
—EEH —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Notes FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN T 41(c) 34,946 28,231
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other TET 5RIR KR B b fE
receivables WK IE 135 223
Pledged bank deposits B BTER - 4,029
Cash and cash equivalents HekREEEY 4,641 16,824
4,776 21,076
Total assets EEHARH 39,722 49,307
EQUITY =
Share capital A&7 27 10,000 10,000
Share premium A& 10 5 (B 41(b) 98,884 98,884
Other reserve H b 41(b) 78 78
Accumulated losses 25 BB 41(b) (70,575) (60,742)
Total equity FEHBEE 38,387 48,220
Current liabilities REBBEE
Other payables H b & 50 1,335 1,087
Total liabilities afERsE 1,335 1,087
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEERAE 39,722 49,307
Net current assets REBEERE 3,441 19,989

These financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 30
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHAN Chun Kit
BR % 45
Director

EF

R—ZEBE-_—F=ZA=+H E=F
%Tbt/&&%é%%éﬂu%%ﬁﬂ%#&%%

WHANALTRER

CHAN Josephine Wai Sze
PR 2 5
Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

41 Statement of Financial Position of the

41 KRPQ BB R T @

Company (Continued)
(b) Movements in components of reserve of (b) AR EHERNEE
the Company
Share Other Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total
RoEE  HttRE  RAER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT THET FET

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—A—AK
e 55,134 78 (43,639) 11,573

Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRBERZEH Y AH
expense for the year - - (13,103) (13,103)
Dividend paid (note) BT S (FEE) - - (4,000) (4,000)

Issue of new shares under rights 4% i 247 57 IR 13 5 8
issue, net (note 27) (Hisx27) 43,750 = = 43,750

Balance at 31 December 2019  RZZT—HAF+=A

=+—AmEs 98,884 78 (60,742) 38,200

Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRBERZEH Y A%
expense for the year - - (9,833) (9,833)

Balance at 31 December 2020 W -Z_-ZTF+_A

=t+—HAEH 98,884 78 (70,575) 28,387

Note: Final dividend of HK$4,000,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 was declared on 25 March 2019, and was paid
in June 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR MR @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

41 Statement of Financial Position of the 41 A2 T EAR TR @)
Company (Continued)

(c) EEMM B R RFE
RBEBROEZHE R R FE

(c) Particulars of principal subsidiaries
Details of the principal subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are as follows: /(N N
Place of Effective
incorporation Particulars of interest held
and business and issued share by the
Name type of legal entity capital Company  Principal activities
B AL B AR B KRR
a8 RieERERY ERTRAFE EREZ TZEH
Solarday Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited HK$20,000 100%  Restaurant operation
liability company
HEREARAA % BREMAR 20,0007 100% EREE
Orient Century Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$20,000 100%  Restaurant and Thai
liability company cuisine restaurant
operation
RBBRAT BF BREMRAR 20,0008 100% EERFXEEZE
Great Virtue Investment Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited liability company
ERmRERRRF B5 BBREMAR  10,000#T 100% EREE
Great Virtue (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 100%  Restaurant operation
Investment Limited liability company
Em(BR)REBBAR  BE BREMELQA  10000% T 100% EREE
Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100%  Ceased business
Limited liability company
&8 (FE)BRAA % BREAAR 1AL 100% FIEEE
Smart Best (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$100 100%  Ordering of food
liability company ingredient for the
Group
& (M) BRDA &% BREAAR  100#T 100% AREEIBERN
FIZ® ORI ERAER AR People’s Republicof  RMB23,530,000 100%  Restaurant operation
China, limited
liability company
MER ORI EREBRAR hEARLNE AR #23,530,0007C 100% EREE
BREELNR
FER (R ESEHR People’s Republic of ~ RMB13,000,000 100%  Restaurant operation
BRAT China, limited
liability company
MER ORI B EHK mEARLME AR #13,000,0007T 100% EEEE
ARAT BREERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 = F = FF - H =+ —HIFFZ

41 Statement of Financial Position of the 41 A2 T EAR TR @)
Company (Continued)

(c) EEHNH B D AFIE (@)

(c) Particulars of principal subsidiaries

(Continued)

Place of Effective
incorporation Particulars of interest held
and business and issued share by the
Name type of legal entity capital Company  Principal activities
B 3L AR 3t B AR R it
28 RieERER BITRAFHS ERELZ TEXR
MERZE ORI BR People’s Republic of ~ HK$5,000,000 100%  Ceased business
BRAA China, limited
liability company
%IJ%E%E(WI)%@K hEARLNE 5,000,000 7T 100% fRILEE
BRA BREERA
FIBZE ( STE-3/5 People’s Republic o~ HK$500,000 100%  Food counters of
AR China, limited selling cantonese
liability company dim sum
MEZE ORI B hEARLNE 500,000 70 100% HEBABLHRM
BRAR BREERAT 5
LETHERMARRT People’s Republic of ~ RMB3,750,000 100%  Not yet commenced
China, limited business
liability company
TEERERMBRAF hEARLNE AR¥3,750,0007C 100% HARBKEE
BREAAT
BR (LB ERERAR People’s Republic of ~ RMB5,500,000 70%  Food counters selling
China, limited roasted meat and
liability company delicatessen
BR(EB)RREBRAR  HEARLNE- AR #5,500,0007C 0% HERKRARD
BREERA Rem/EH
The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the INEMBARTDERESEERA
Group which, in the opinion of the Directors, ,\2T$El$¢r% EEEZNH
principally affect the results of the Group for the year HESEARAEBRAFEREEF

or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group at the end of the year.

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital in issue
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

41 Statement of Financial Position of the 41 A2 T EAR TR @)
Company (Continued)

(d) FFEZERER
TRILBERR (NEEE— %
BEAFEREDROHERR) D
BH - U T2 EE
MRERABREHANSE

(d) Non-controlling interest
The following table lists out the information relating
to Yaoliang, the only subsidiary of the Group which
has a material non-controlling interest (NCI). The
summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

2020

—E-EF

HK$’000

FHBT

NCI percentage EEREZR S 30%

Current assets MEEE 8,350

Non-current assets JERBNE E 17,493
Current liabilities mEBE (10,555)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (3,048)

Net assets BEFE 12,240

Carrying amount of NCI FEERE R REE 3,672

Revenue Uz 13,621
Loss for the year FAEE (1,143)
Total comprehensive expenses 2T S 2% (401)
Loss allocated to NCI DR E IR S A 1R (120)

Dividend paid to NCI BT IR E AR B -

Cash flows from operating activities KEFEMBHESR 3,032
Cash flows from investing activities KEEBMERESR (166)
Cash flows from financing activities REEEBFRER (5,216)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2 —FE - FF+ - A =+—HIFE

42 RPN RRS

42 Share-Based Payment Transactions

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 16 June 2016 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to Directors, employees,
consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners and services
providers of the Group, the directors, employees,
consultant or adviser of the Group or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners and
services providers may, at the discretion of the board, be
granted options (the “Options”) to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price determined by its directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a trading day, (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the
Shares on the date of grant of the option.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, and the number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
from the date of its adoption. Options granted must be
taken up not later than 7 days after the date of grant. A
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the
offer of grant of an option.

The exercisable period of an option, which shall not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant, is determined by
the Board of Directors of the Company at their discretion.
No options have been granted since its adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2

FRE MR RMET @

—EFEFEf A=+ —HIFE

43 Possible Impact of Amendments, New 43 BZ-—S=-ZTFf+=-H=+—
Standards and Interpretations Issued HEFEEEMFEESRERZ
but not yet Effective for the year ended L?EE'JJ 1Z3] - T ERARBER
31 December 2020 BETE
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial Eiﬁt%ﬁ M EmETEB AL
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of BEASHMASERMZEREEZE
amendments, new standards and interpretations which ‘E_gi +ZA=+—BLEEFEEMNR
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December ERBRUEEFGRENBRERAL KT
2020 and which have not been early adopted in these SR ERNERT - T ERIRERE -
consolidated financial statements. These include the ZEIEAEBEH 2 EBEUAT
following which may be relevant to the Group. I8 o

Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning

on or after

RUTBEH®

ZEBBRY

BHBER

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

(BEBMBHREENE175R REEE &Y —ET-=F—AH—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023
Non-current

CEAGFTERDFE 15 (BFTA) BEESEARESNIERE —ET-=F—HF—H

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
Framework

(BEEMBREEDEINR (BFTA) BB SERMREMR T —F—Hf—H

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: 1 January 2022

(CEBEETERDE 165 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 37

(BEGTERIDE 375 (BFTA)
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
—E-N\FE_T_TFAY
(BFEFBRE L FESE

Proceeds before Intended Use

%% EE&E  MERAENME —T-_—_F—H—H
IR

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulffiling a 1 January 2022
Contract

EEMEN-BITEANKAR —E-—#—H—H

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, 1 January 2022
HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41

(BAVBREEADE 15 —E-—F—Hf—H

(BEMBHRELEDFE IR
(BEMBRELEDFE165R M
(BEGERDE 4158 (BFTAK)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

FRE MR RMET @

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 = F =L F+ - H=+—HIFFE

43 Possible Impact of Amendments, New 43 BZ_-Z—

Standards and Interpretations Issued
but not yet Effective for the year ended
31 December 2020 (Continued)

—H
= R
Al &

+Fér|?-i—|-
B HE
e &+
=N

#E B[4S T -

—'—/\

EF
Emiﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁ
el 2
Es-/.z. (&)

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
RUT AR
ZEBARH
B HBEN

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Venture

(BAUBHREEDFE 105 R

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

BREFREBENRAHAERRZHE

No mandatory
effective date
yet determined

SR AR A BIRE

(EAGERDFE 285 (BRI A) HENBRMEE

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — 1 January 2021
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Phase 2

(ERTBHRELADFE 5 MEEERE-F2EER —E—F—H—H

(CEAEFTER)EI9H -

(BB BRELERDNETH
(BB RELERNFE4HER
(AP BREERDFE 1657 (BETA)

These standards are mandatory for first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2021. At this stage, the
Group does not intend to adopt these standards before
their effective date. The Group has not early applied the
new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
oh
HBHME
RESULTS ES
Year ended 31 December
BEt-HA=1t—-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
S“ECEE ZZ-NF ZE-\F ZT—+F ZTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT TET TET THT
Revenue Yezs 236,397 352,861 360,509 307,001 278,429
(Loss)/Profit before income tax B FT/5 %Al (B518) /S Fl (40,850) (60,093) 5,007 30,109 16,148
Income tax PR 74 (9,248) (2,745) (6,921) (4,800)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(BEB),/ &7 (40,776) (69,341) 2,262 23,188 11,348
Attrioutable to: AT :
Owners of the Company N/NCIETZ=UN (39,817) (59,341) 2,262 23,188 11,348
Non-controlling interests FERER (959) - - - -
(40,776) (59,341) 2,262 23,188 11,348
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Continued)
BIREEE (|\)

Assets, Liabilities and Non-Controlling
Interests

EE -RERFERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

“EIEF “R-NF B N\Ff —TtF T F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TEX FTHET THET TET

Total assets BEBT 330,700 374,672 181,261 198,918 174,361

Total liabilities BERE (270,646)  (281,873) (57,978) (62,520) (55,570)
Net assets FEE 60,054 92,799 123,283 136,398 118,791
Non-controlling interests FERER (4,105) - - - -

Equity attributable to the KREHRAEAEGER

owners of the Company 55,949 92,799 123,283 136,398 118,791

The financial information for the years ended 31 December
2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 is extracted from the
consolidated financial statements in the Company’s annual
reports.

The summary above does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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